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OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANY

FEEXK PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

BRAERGAERARTARRDEEWEA Qingling Motors Co. Ltd (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
A(AREEDETENELEEREERL TR “Group”) is principally engaged in the production and sale of Isuzu
Bl .p Al BERIEAE - K RE - ZIEEAR light, medium and heavy-duty trucks, pick-up trucks, multi-purpose

B EEURAETH - BHEREM - FTE vehicles, chassis and automobile parts, accessories and others. All of the
REBEERBIEEEREAREMBE(H production facilities of the Group are located in the People’s Republic of

Bl]) o REE 2B RIBMHHEMEFBREELE - China (the “PRC") and substantially all the sales of the Group are also
AEERN  AEEARBEIEOHEE - He made in the PRC. The Group had export sales to overseas countries
FIEASE 2 FEEREH0.56% ° during the year, which accounted for approximately 0.56% of the Group's

turnover for the year.

LFMIAR NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

R-Z—)\F+_A=1+—H AEEBEITA The Group had 3,008 employees as at 31 December 2018.
#A3,008A °

2 #2018 ANNUAL REPORT
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ESERME
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

| am pleased to present the annual report of Qingling Motors Co. Ltd (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2018 for your review.

2018 RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company sold 47,677
vehicles, a decrease of 5.36% over 50,379 vehicles sold last year.
Revenue was RMB5,253 million, an increase of 3.55% over RMB5,073
million as recorded last year. Profit after tax was RMB462 million, a
decrease of 8.03% over RMB502 million as recorded last year.

REVIEW OF RESULTS

China's automobile industry slipped into a continuous decline in the
second half of 2018, and many automobile enterprises saw their profits
plunge amid intensified competition. Against such backdrop, we rose
up to the challenges by adhering to the new development philosophy,
promoting reform and innovation within the Company as well as
increasing external marketing efforts. We made persistent efforts on four
fronts (i.e. industry, product, marketing and mechanism), and achieved
satisfactory operating results, thus accumulating resources and laying a
foundation for our sustainable development.

1. Initial success was achieved in building up own R&D capability
with the release cycle for new products shortened. Firstly, our
development team was gradually expanded with an increasing
number of in-house developers, and we have enhanced our
capability to organize and coordinate the efforts of foreign partners,
suppliers of key system components & parts and scientific research
institute on product development and innovation. Secondly, the
"1+4+1+2+1 (hydrogen fuel chamber)” R&D system and the new
development process ran effectively, the “three-batch” integrated
new product R&D and launch mechanism worked in an orderly
manner, and the release cycle of new products was shortened.
Thirdly, our development efforts were increasingly market-oriented,
enabling us to make quicker response to market changes. Fourthly,
our capability to carry out independent product R&D and innovation
was enhanced. Fifthly, the construction of the platform for the
internet of vehicles had started and advanced in an orderly manner.
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Breakthroughs were made in business expansion. Firstly, with
production qualification passing review, our new energy vehicle
segment made a breakthrough and new energy vehicles produced
by us were introduced to the market in small batches. Secondly,
the agreement for the 4JZ engine project was executed, and the
new engine company will first introduce Isuzu’s latest technology
and products. The products are to be sold both at home and abroad,
which is conducive to the expansion of our engine business.

Efforts have been made to systematically enhance marketing
competitiveness. Firstly, we have formulated a network building
plan to support medium-term sales objectives, and throughout
the year we have developed a number of first-level distributors,
retail branch stores and direct retail stores. Secondly, we have
formulated measures to support and manage our distributors,
construction standards for distributors and corresponding
policies to support network building. In addition, we adopted
comprehensive incentive and evaluation measures for distributors,
S0 as to boost their operational capacity. Thirdly, the “three top 20"
principles were introduced for customer development tasks and
methods, differentiated development methods were adopted for
major customers of our traditional products, of competing products
and of new business lines, sales have thus increased significantly.
Fourthly, the after-sales mechanism was reformed to improve
service quality and customer satisfaction. Fifthly, we explored and
established channels and mechanisms for directly exporting our
vehicles.

Institutional reform was further deepened. Firstly, we
formulated and implemented the annual promotion scheme,
making job promotion a regular practice. Secondly, we revised and
improved the Implementation Guidelines for the Incentive Scheme
in Relation to New product Development and the Management
Measures for Innovations in Relation to Process Technologies and
Administration of the Group, to increase incentives for innovation
projects that demonstrate originality and inventiveness and bring
notable economic benefits. As a result, the number of innovations
has increased rapidly. Thirdly, we accelerated the construction of
our information system, and reengineered our management system
and processes by scientific measures to ensure accurate and timely
management.
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Management was optimized to increase economic benefits.
Firstly, our production department strove to enhance techniques
and efficiency while giving due regard to safety and environmental
protection. Secondly, our quality management department studied
feedback and opinions from customers, further improved our
quality management system and trainings, and enhanced initial
production control for new products and quality improvement.
Thirdly, our procurement, finance, planning, energy and other
comprehensive departments sought cost reduction through
procurement and capital management, ensured the implementation
of favorable government policies, and enhanced control over
energy consumption and expenses.

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

In 2019, China's economy is expected to maintain a generally stable
performance, but there will be new and worrisome developments amid
mounting downward pressure. In such micro environment, the Company
will focus our efforts on the most important, critical and urgent tasks
to seek effective results and breakthroughs, with an aim to boosting
operating efficiency. To this end, the Company has set the following
major tasks:

1.

Enhance in-house innovation capacity and launch products
meeting the “National VI” emission standard. Our teams
responsible for product development, mass production, cost
control, quality management and marketing shall work together and
make coordinated efforts to timely launch products that comply
with the “National VI” emission standard. To be specific, the
development team will press ahead with their work according to
the schedule approved by the Company and the receipt of approval
announcements; the development, procurement and production
teams will speed up the design, trial production, evaluation and
defect rectification of vehicle parts and ramp up mass-production
capacity, ensuring all preparations for mass production are finished
as scheduled; and the planning, finance, procurement and internal
control departments will enhance cost control to raise the cost
competitiveness of new products. In addition, we will strengthen
the integrated control of technical quality and manufacturing quality
and establish an effective initial production control system to
ensure the reliability of products put on sale. In sum, we will get
fully prepared to capitalize on the market of “National VI" vehicles.
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2.

Strengthen organizational construction and cultivate
marketing competitiveness in an all-round way. Our marketing
organization will be further optimized to systematically enhance
the sensitivity and accuracy of its response to market demand; and
plans will be made to expand sales networks step by step with
reference to the scales of regional markets, the sales volumes of
competing products, and our sales targets and existing marketing
networks. In addition, while making more efforts to develop
and secure deals with major customers, we will strengthen our
capability to exploit overseas markets such as those along the “Belt
and Road"” with a focus on developing markets in Southeast Asia,
Middle East, Central Asia, Africa and other developing countries,
and accelerate the establishment of export sales and overseas
marketing networks. We will further improve after-sales services
to boost customer satisfaction, and improve research methods to
bolster the effect of market research.

Propel the development of new energy vehicle business. \We
will continue to enhance business planning and the implementation
thereof, beef up the development of products that are in line with
market demand, push ahead with the dual-combined projects (£
%&IEH), ramp up production and quality assurance capabilities,
cultivate core technical capability, and improve after-sales service
system.

Foster strong market, quality and responsibility awareness
and reinforce quality control. We will enhance the quality
control of “National VI" standard-conforming vehicles and new
energy vehicles, scientifically compile and perfect quality control
documents such as instructions for inspection and work process to
ensure standard operation. We will strengthen quality management
by deepening 8 quality management activities and Isuzu IMM
activities, carry out three-level quality inspection (i.e. on and off
assembly line and delivery inspection), refine the quality evaluation
covering development, trial production and small-lot production
to ensure the reliability of quality before mass production, and
conduct assessment and supervision over quality management to
emphasize the significance of product quality.
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5. Deepen human resources reform and adjust the mechanisms

for fixing remuneration and assessing performance. We will
adjust the mechanism for fixing total remuneration and strengthen
post setting and staffing to enhance quality and efficiency. Besides,
we will improve our performance appraisal mechanism and increase
incentives for capable, responsible and hard-working and well-
performed employees, recruit high-caliber experts required for our
business development, improve technical staff career development
programs, cooperate with universities, research institutes and
professional training institutions to provide job skills training and
tests for employees at all levels, and ensure our effectiveness
of training and promotion mechanisms and explore more flexible
employment arrangements.

Looking ahead in 2019, the Company will insist on innovation, reform
and opening up, increase benefits through enhancing management, work
together to cope with challenges, concentrate on our major tasks, and
renew our efforts to expand markets and make breakthroughs. As long as
we make solid efforts consistently and act with a sense of urgency, the
Company shall be able to achieve high-quality development.

LUO Yuguang
Chairman

27 March 2019
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DIRECTORS

Mr. LUO Yuguang, aged 49, has been an executive director, the
Chairman, a member of the remuneration committee and the chairman
and a member of the nomination committee of the Company since 22
December 2016. He graduated from Beijing Agricultural Engineering
University (bR BE T AE) in 1992, specialized in Construction
and Environmental Engineering (28R T#2) with a Bachelor's
degree in engineering. Mr. LUO also completed and graduated from an
undergraduate program in Chongging Normal University (5 Efi§5AE2)
in 2008, majoring in Accounting. He joined the Company after obtaining
his Bachelor's degree and has a consecutive 24-year experience in
the car industry. At the early stage, Mr. LUO underwent an internship
at the Assemble Workshop (#2#£#f), Repair Workshop ({8 R),
Infrastructure Department (E#E6) and Procurement Department (£
f§36) of the Company. Later he was the Deputy Head of the Planning
and Construction Department (}R £|3E 2 & &85 K), Deputy Head of
Secondary Pressing Vehicles Workshop (Z & BE®EM&|=T), Deputy
Head of the Finance Department (/% #f&/E8&) and Deputy Head of
the Integrated Planning Department (434 52|28 &IZ8 ). In 2009, he
joined the Management team of the Company and was the Deputy Chief
Economist and the Head of Procurement Department (&I|424% 753 £7
BEEBEK), and the Deputy General Manager of Qingling Motors (Group)
Company Limited (“Qingling Group”), the substantial Shareholder of the
Company, responsible for the production, logistics, domestic support and
import, etc.. He took up the post of the Director and the General Manager
of Qingling Group in September 2016. Mr. LUO studied abroad for
several times, including the Advanced Course in Corporate Governance
organized by the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Studies on Special Topics such as production, quality, development
and sales organized by Japan Isuzu. Mr. LUO has been the Chairman of
the Qingling Isuzu (Chongging) Engine Co., Ltd. from April 2015 to 30
November 2016.

Mr. Shuichi HAYASHI, aged 61, has been an executive director, the vice
chairman and the general manager of the Company since 30 May 2018.
Mr. HAYASHI graduated from School of Social Sciences of WASEDA
University. Mr. HAYASHI joined Isuzu Motors Limited (“Isuzu”) in April
1982 and worked as an employee of the Purchase Department, deputy
officer of the engine group of the second purchase department, the head
of the fourth purchase department and the executive officer in charge of
cost planning department/purchase department, Section Chief and deputy
officer of Isuzu Motors America INC and a Head in Isuzu Motors (Thailand)
Ltd GEEI A 82 A8 @k & 4t). Mr. HAYASHI worked at the Global CV
Engineering Center of Isuzu (A+#2FKCVIIEF L)) from 2014 to 2017
and is currently a senior executive of | Metal Technology Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Keiichiro MAEGAKI, aged 61, has been an executive director and
the vice chairman of the Company since 28 May 2015 and has been the
general manager of the Company since 16 November 2015. He resigned
as the vice chairman and the general manager of the Company with
effect from 30 May 2018. He graduated from the Faculty of Law of Keio
University, Japan. He joined Isuzu in April 1981 and has been working
at Isuzu for over 30 years. He served in a number of positions, including
the manager in charge of the domestic service improvement office, the
manager in charge of the domestic management office, the manager in
charge of the domestic planning office, the head of the business planning
department, the merchandise manager of MKT office and CV project,
the head of the project management department, the executive officer
in charge of the project management department and cost planning
department, the executive officer in charge of the eighth and ninth
divisions of the overseas business and the assistant to the head of the PT
business department. Mr. MAEGAKI is currently the managing executive
officer of Isuzu, the general representative of the Chinese business
division of Isuzu, the assistant to the second division of the business
department at the headquarters of Isuzu and the chairman of Isuzu (China)
Investment Co., Ltd. and has been the vice chairman of Qingling Isuzu
(Chonggqing) Engine Co., Ltd. from 2010 to 2014.

Mr. Masanori OTA, aged 63, has been an executive director of the
Company since 15 June 2016. He graduated from the Faculty of
Engineering of Nagoya Institute of Technology in 1979. Mr. OTA joined
Isuzu in April 1979, and successively served as the Section Chief of FO
Technology Division of Raw Material Factory Technology Department
(HAM TIBRMTEFORIT4A5R &) and the key member of |.T. Forging
Department of Isuzu (Thailand)(FL 182 Z=B1.T.$8:EZE &) from 1993 until
2000. Mr. OTA was re-designated back to Isuzu in 2000 to serve as the
Section Chief of PT Production Technology Department (PTAERIITER
%) and later held the position as the Head of the Third Department of PT
Manufacturing (PT &5 = Z02[ ) and the Head of the PT Public Works
Department (PTLH3E&). He had served as the Executive Officer
(#F1TR 8) of Main Department of Technology (FfliZ<&F), Production
Department (4£Z&ZF9), PT Manufacturing Department (PT2&3&36) and PT
Quality Management Department (PTFAE & 12 Ef) since 2013.
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Mr. LI Juxing, aged 53, has been an executive director of the Company
since 28 May 2015. He graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology,
majoring in casting. He holds a bachelor degree of engineering and is a
senior engineer. Mr. LI successively served as a technician of a foundry
of Chongaing Automobile Manufacturing Plant (EE/TEREEM), a
head of the biotechnology department, a head of the quality department,
a deputy chief engineer and a deputy general manager of Chongqging
Qingling Casting Company Limited (EEE$#EEARR A F) since July
1990. He became a deputy chief engineer of Qingling Group since 2005
and concurrently served as the general managers of Chongging Qingling
Aluminium Casting Co. Ltd. (EEE R EIREMR A7) and Chongging
Qingling Forging Co. Ltd. (EEERBEAFRZAR]). Since 2010, he has
been working as a deputy general manager of Qingling Group and he also
serves as the vice chairman of Isuzu Qingling (Chong Qing) Autoparts
Co., Ltd, the chairman of Chongging Qingling Forging Co. Ltd. and a
director of Qingling Isuzu (Chongging) Engine Co., Ltd.. During the period
from 26 September 2016 to 22 December 2016, Mr. LI served as the
acting Chairman of the Company.

Mr. XU Song, aged 51, has been an executive director of the Company
since 15 June 2016. He is a senior engineer. Mr. XU joined the Chinese
Communist Party in June 1988. He graduated from the Faculty of
Engineering Machinery of Jilin University of Technology in July 1989,
majoring in crane transport and engineering machinery. Mr. XU was
awarded a bachelor degree in Engineering and a master degree in
Business Administration. He worked in the equipment department of
Chongging Automobile Manufacturing Plant as an internship in 1989 and
successively served as an assistant engineer and the deputy head of
manufacturing factory. From 1995 to 2004, he worked at the Company
and successively served as the deputy head, the head of manufacturing
factory and the head of the product development department. Since
2004, Mr. XU served as an assistant to general manager of Qingling
Group and the Company, and successively served as the head of the
business planning department of Qingling Group and the Company and
the director of chief engineer office of the Company. Since 2005, he
served as an assistant to general manager of Qingling Group and the
vice general manager of the Company, and also served as the head of
the business planning department of Qingling Group and the Company.
He also served as the head of the procurement department of Qingling
Group in November 2005. From 2009 to 2012, he successively served
as the deputy general manager and a member of the party committee
of Qingling Group, the general manager, the secretary and a member of
the Party Committee of Chongging Qingling Casting Company Limited.
From 2012 till now, Mr. XU served as the deputy general manager and a
member of the Party Committee of Qingling Group.
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Mr. LONG Tao, aged 67, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 28 April 1994. He is also a member of
the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. LONG graduated from Research
Institute for Fiscal Science, Ministry of Finance, majoring in accounting.
Mr. LONG holds a master’'s degree in economics. He had served at
Accountancy Division of Central University of Finance and Economics,
and New York office of KPMG Peat Marwick. Mr. LONG had acted
as a member of Securities Issue and Approval Committee of China
Securities Regulatory Commission and member of Chinese technology
expert panel for China-Hong Kong Securities Team. Mr. LONG also
served as the independent director of Luoyang Glass Company Limited,
Beijing Hua'er Company Limited (3t 72/t —f%1p BBR A 7)), Beijing Capital
International Airport Co., Ltd., Baotou Iron and Steel Co. Ltd., China
Asset Management Co., Ltd., Beijing Bashi Company Limited, Jiangxi
Copper Company Limited, Beijing North Star Company Limited and
Wangfujing Department Store Co., Ltd. (E/FH B ERERMNBRA
A]). Mr. LONG has extensive knowledge and experience in corporate
finance, accounting, audit, assets appraisal, restructuring of enterprise
and listing. Mr. LONG currently serves as the chairman of Beijing Haiwen
Entrepreneurship New Technology Investment Management Co., Ltd. (1£
FOBMAIEN IS EEE AR AR, an independent director of Beijing
Whoswho Culture and Media Co., Ltd., UBS SDIC Fund Management
Co., Ltd., Crown International Corporation Limited (a local company in
Hong Kong), Wangfujing Department Store Co., Ltd. (E/FH & EXEHK
PAMRAT]) and Aimer Co., Ltd. (EERN AR A F).

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang, aged 68, has been an independent non- executive
director of the Company since 28 April 1994. He is also the chairman and
a member of the audit committee and the remuneration committee and
a member of the nomination committee of the Company. Mr. SONG is
general manager of Chongqging Ping Zheng Law Office, a member of the
China Economic Law Association and the China Lawyers Association, and
a council member of the Chongging Lawyers Association, a vice chairman
of the Foreign Affairs Committee of Chongging Lawyers Association
and a member of the Chongqing Legal Academy. Mr. SONG has been a
lawyer and notary for 29 years. Mr. SONG graduated from South West
Institute of Political Science and Law and also studied international law in
the China University of Political Science and Law and foreign economic
law at Shenzhen University. He was formerly vice chairman of Chongging
Notary Office and vice chairman of Chongging Foreign Law Office.
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Mr. LIU Tianni, aged 55, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 31 May 2011. He is also a member of
the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. Mr. LIU is also the executive director, the
chairman and the chief executive officer of Wonderful Sky Financial
Group Holdings Limited (the shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1260) and an independent non-executive
director of Luoyang Glass Company Limited (the shares of which are
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1108). Mr. LIU
has resigned as an executive director and deputy managing director of
Silver Grant International Industries Limited (the shares of which are
listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 171) with effect
from 29 January 2019. Mr. LIU graduated from Beijing Normal University
with a master degree in science. He has over 15 years of experience
in corporate administration and trade business. In October 2008, Mr.
LIU was awarded “Qutstanding Young Chinese Entrepreneur of the
World" by Asiaweek, as an acknowledgement of his excellent corporate
management and prominent business strategies.

Mr. LIU Erh Fei, aged 60, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company and a member of the audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company
since 28 May 2015. He graduated from Harvard Business School with a
master degree in Business Administration. He graduated from Brandeis
University with a bachelor degree in Economics and International
Relations in 1984 and from Beijing Foreign Studies University, majoring
in English, in 1981. From 1987 to 2012, Mr. LIU served as the head of
China region for Goldman Sachs Group, the head of Thailand and China
regions for Morgan Stanley Group, the head of Asia Pacific region for the
Smith Barney investment bank of the US, the head of Asia Pacific region
for the investment banking department of Crédit Agricole Corporate and
Investment Bank and the chairman of China region and the co-head of
the Asia Pacific region for the investment banking department of Merrill
Lynch Group. He is now working as the vice-chairman of Xin Tai Fund
Management Company ((EZ=RE & B A 7)) (the largest shareholder
of which is Cinda Group) and the independent director of Hwabao
Financial (financial segment of Baosteel) and Wing Lung Bank Limited
(@ wholly-owned subsidiary of China Merchants Bank Company Limited
(the shares of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, Stock
Code: 3968)).
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SUPERVISORS

Ms. MIN Qing, aged 51, has been the supervisor representing the
Shareholders since 15 June 2006. Ms. MIN ceased to be the Chairman
of the Supervisory Committee on 28 May 2015. Ms. MIN is the deputy
secretary of the Party Committee and the Chairman of the Trade
Union of Qingling Group, and has 25 years of experience in corporate
management. Ms. MIN graduated from Chongging Communication
College in Mechanical Engineering in 1988 and had undergraduate
education. She also studied corporate management in Japan.

Mr. LEI Bin, aged 44, has been a supervisor representing the staff and
workers of the Company since 6 June 2012. Mr. LEI graduated from
Hunan University, specializing in international finance, and obtained the
bachelor degree in economics. He joined the Company from July 1997
until the present. Mr. LEI served as a deputy head of comprehensive plan
department. He is the head of the financial department of Qingling Group.

Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

13
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Dear Shareholders:

Since the establishment of the Supervisory Committee, each member
has been performing his duty in accordance with the Company's Articles
of Association with a view of protecting the interests of shareholders
and the Company. We have attended the board meetings and have
given our opinions regarding the business development, market
expansion, technological reform, basic management and team building
of the Company. We have also monitored the guiding ideology of the
management and considered whether the decisions made by the
management were in compliance with state laws and whether they
were appropriate for the development of the Company and were in the
interests of shareholders.

According to its power, the Supervisory Committee has reviewed
evidence of the Company’s accounts, books, reports and other
accounting information in a timely manner. In our opinion, the financial
statements have been properly prepared while the accounting principles
and the method of financial management adopted are in compliance with
relevant rules and regulations and no issues were identified.

The Supervisory Committee have carefully examined the financial
statements, the Directors’ Report and the proposal for appropriation of
profit to be presented before the annual general meeting by the Board of
Directors. In our opinion, the chairman of the Board, directors, managers
and senior management have not engaged in any malpractices which
would be prejudicial to the interests of shareholders and employees of
the Company.

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the performance as well as
the economic results of the Company, and we are confident about the
future development of the Company.

Supervisor
MIN Qing

Chongging, the PRC
27 March 2019
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The Board is pleased to present its annual report and audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the production and sale of Isuzu light,
medium and heavy-duty trucks, pick-up trucks, multi-purpose vehicles,
chassis and automobile parts, accessories and others. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries, an associate and joint ventures of the Company are
set out in notes 37, 19 and 20 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and analysis of the business review as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a fair view
of the business and a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of the financial year 2018 and an indication
of likely future development in the Group’s business are set out in the
"Chairman’s Statement”, “Directors’ Report”, “Corporate Governance
Report” and “Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements” sections
of this annual report. In addition, a discussion of the Company’s
environmental policies and performance, the Company’'s compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Company and the relationship between the Company and significant
stakeholders is set out in “Directors’ Report” and “Corporate Governance
Report” sections of this annual report. The business review in the above
sections comprise part of this report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 71. The directors recommend the
payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.16 per share to the shareholders
whose names appear in the register of members on 13 June 2019,
amounting to approximately RMB397,163,000 in total.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to environmental protection, energy- saving and
emission reduction, and the integrated use of resources. Adhering to the
principles of making production and operation harmony to the ecological
environment, the Group has adopted the concept of environmental
protection, energy-saving and emission reduction and the integrated use
of resources in its production and operating activities through reducing
emission, protecting the environment and saving of resources while
putting into practice the scientific concepts of environmental protection
and integrated use of resources.
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The Group keeps placing strong emphasis on environmental protection
issues and coordinates the relationship between production development
and environmental protection, with the aim to develop pollution-free
production modes. The successive operation of the newly-installed
environmental protection facilities, the improvement of working
environment and the integrated measures adopted to prevent and
mitigate pollution have made the pollutants produced not exceeding
the standards set by local environmental authorities. The Group strives
to protect and improve the environment, enhance the environmental
awareness of our staff, ensure the well-being of our staff and builds a
clean and favorable production and working environment. With various
measures such as resources recycling and reusing and energy- saving
and emission reduction putting in place in the production process,
the Group endeavors to produce energy-saving and environmentally-
friendly products while keeping in mind the well- being of the production
workers. The implementation of the above measures fully demonstrates
the Group's sustainable development strategies and its determination on
environmental protection.

The environmental social and governance report will be published on the
websites of the Company and Stock Exchange on or before July 2019.

COMPLIANCE OF RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

With regard to the protection of intellectual properties — The Group has
complied with the terms stipulated under the Trademark Law of the
People’s Republic of China and its Regulation for the Implementation of
the Trademark Law and the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China
and Rules for the Implementation of the Patent Law and the specific
requirements of the city to carry out the work in relation to the design
and file registration of trademarks and patents and has actively taken
measures to protect the trademarks and patents of other interested
stakeholders.
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With regard to the product quality and consumer rights — The Group
has strictly complied with the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Product Quality and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests in the manufacturing and
selling procedures of automobile products and automobile parts. With
respect to product quality, the Group strengthens source management
and formulates stringent standard in evaluating parts suppliers to ensure
the quality of parts products and prevent substandard goods being
passed off as high-quality ones while purchasing automobile products
and parts. During the production process, standardized management
is strictly implemented with an emphasis on the management of
craftsmanship quality, and defective and substandard parts are prohibited
to be assembled at the production line in order to ensure the satisfactory
rate at the production line. Before the products are transferred into the
warehouses, product quality inspection system were strictly put in place
to forbid defective products being launched. In terms of protection of
consumers’ rights, we have complied with the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Protection of Consumer Rights, and product
manuals with full details are provided to consumers while advertisements
are tailored to truly reflect the authentic characteristics of products.

With regard to the interests of the employees — The Group strives
to comply with the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Social Insurance
Law of the People’s Republic of China, so as to safeguard the legitimate
interests of workers. All full-time employees are entitled to work-related
injury insurance, unemployment insurance, medical insurance, pension
insurance, and maternity insurance and housing fund as required by the
state regulations. The Group has also arranged annual body check for
all of its staff, and this further protects the legitimate interests of the
employees. Moreover, the Group also actively organizes activities for its
employees with regard to the education of prevention of occupational
disease and other safety and health related issues.

With regard to tax payment — The Group complies with specific
regulations of the People’s Republic of China on various taxes, and
pays taxes according to the law for the purpose of ensuring that all
tax payment made by the Group is in compliance with the laws and
regulations.

DESCRIPTION OF THE PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES

Risks relating to the decline in sales and profit as a result of
weakened market environment

As China’s economy is turning into ‘'new normal’ amid the cross
impact of the ‘overlapping of the three phases’, the sales of domestic
commercial vehicles decline as a result of the overall decline in demand
for commercial vehicles. With the protracted economic downturn, the
competition in the domestic commercial vehicles market may further
exacerbate, causing impact to the Group's sales for commercial vehicles
and hence affecting the Group’s profit.
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Risks relating to the insufficient research and development and
the increase in costs in order to adapt to the tightened national
regulations on emission and consumer demand

Taken into the consideration of environmental protection, the national
regulations on emission tend to be tightened and the switching time
tends to be shortened while the consumer demand tends to be more
diversified and competitors tend to launch new products more frequently,
this has put forward higher requirement for the Group’s research and
development capability. However, there exists lead time from research
and development to commercial production of replacement products,
the Group's capability in research and development is crucial in
satisfying national and consumer requirements while outperforming the
competitors. Nevertheless, it may not be possible to timely launch new
products that can outperform competitors every time due to constraints
on capital, time, and ability. Since the Group’s costs on research and
development will be driven up by the launching of new products, such
research and development costs may have to transfer to the product
price to the extent not offset by the reasonable reduction of the Group's
internal costs, and this will inevitably weaken the Group’s product
competitiveness.

Risks relating to the fall of products’ popularity and reputation
arising from consumers’ comment

In recent years, the competition among domestic commercial vehicles
enterprises intensifies as the market environment deteriorates.
Competitors keep launching mid-to-high end commercial trucks into the
market, causing unfavorable impact to the Group’s dominant position in
the mid-to-high end commercial truck market.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group incurred approximately RMB46,184,000
on acquisition of property, plant and equipment for expansion of its
production facilities.

Details of these and other movements during the year in property, plant

and equipment and investment properties of the Group are set out in
note 15 and note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year or at any
time during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

According to the Company’'s Articles of Association, the amount of
profit available for distribution shall be deemed to be the lesser of the
amount of profit determined in accordance with the relevant accounting
principles and financial regulations applicable to companies established
in the PRC (“"PRC GAAP") and that determined in accordance with
the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards. The Company's profit
available for distribution to shareholders as at 31 December 2018 was the
retained profit of approximately RMB1,705,242,000 (2017: approximately
RMB1,703,184,000) (determined in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards).

The profit of the Company for a financial year shall be applied in
accordance with the following order:

(i)  making up losses;
(i) allocation to statutory surplus reserve fund;

(i) if there are preference shares, payment of dividends in respect of
preference shares;

(iv)  allocation to discretionary surplus reserve fund; and
(v)  payment of dividends in respect of ordinary shares.

The detailed proportion of distribution in respect of items (ii) to (v) above
for any financial year shall be formulated by the Board in accordance
with the operational conditions of the Company and its development
requirements and shall be submitted to shareholders’ general meeting for
approval.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The directors and supervisors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. LUO Yuguang (Chairman)

Mr. Keiichiro MAEGAKI

Mr. Masanori OTA

Mr. Etsuo YAMAMOTO
(resigned on 30 May 2018)

Mr. Shuichi HAYASHI
(appointed on 30 May 2018)

Mr. LI Juxing

Mr. XU Song
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Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. LONG Tao

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang
Mr. LIU Erh Fei

Mr. LIU Tianni

Supervisors:

Mr. GUAN Jinming (Chairman)
(resigned on 30 May 2018)

Ms. MIN Qing

Mr. LEI Bin

All directors of the Company (except Mr. Etsuo YAMAMOTO) were re-
elected or appointed as directors of the Company to hold office from the
date of annual general meeting for 2018 to the date of the annual general
meeting for 2021.

All supervisors of the Company (except Mr. GUAN Jinming) were re-
elected as supervisors of the Company to hold office from the date
of annual general meeting for 2018 to the date of the annual general
meeting for 2021.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All the executive directors and independent non-executive directors that
had been re-elected and appointed had renewed or entered into service
contracts or appointment letters with the Company for a term of three
years commencing on 30 May 2018.

All the supervisors that had been re-elected had renewed appointment
letters with the Company for a term of three years commencing on 30
May 2018.

None of the directors or supervisors has a service contract with the
Company or its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS" REPORT

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive directors as regards to their independence to
the Company and considers that each of the independent non-executive

directors is independent to the Company.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS" AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, none of the directors or the supervisors and
chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions in
any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations as defined under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFQO") as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR

DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors and supervisors of the Company to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company

or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ MATERIAL
INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS

OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation
to which the Company, its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which any directors or supervisors or their
connected entities had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at any time during the year or at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts other than employment contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into by the Group or existed

during the year.

fR 2 7] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

21




22

B

EEEHRE
DIRECTORS' REPORT

o

AARBOOFRER

EFERESENREERBZNR

RAFER  ARBZERZREEILENER
RAIEBERBFHARBRF 2 EBT TR

EF EFERERTHRARM&R
EmwMAL

B BEERERTRAEMEERESHMA
T2HBERGAEMIERRMEI0 - RASF
A AR ARBRSHFMALHIE=2/ER
AEEREE-

BXRABR EREE

RIB-N\F+ZRA=+—H  EARFREH
M EMBRRAZBBI39%E - MARRES - &
FRBESTRABINZ RRERREBEES K
HIE 15 B 336 15 MR FE B I A R BB 7 MR AD
W MR R BRM ARG AR BB EERD
BATRAE % A RS FORBINT ¢

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the directors or supervisors of the Company had
any interest in any business which compete or may compete with the
business of the Company.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’" AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ REMUNERATION AND THE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

The details of directors’, supervisors’ and chief executives’ remuneration
and the highest paid individuals are set out in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements. Three out of five highest paid individuals of the
Company for this year were directors and supervisors.

NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS AND SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2018, there were 139 shareholders recorded in the
register of shareholders of the Company and the shareholders other
than a director, supervisor or chief executive of the Company, having
an interest and short positions in 5% or more of the relevant class of
the issued share capital of the Company as recorded in the register of
interests in the shares and short positions required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the shares of the Company:

EHERERN
BFESL 11 S
Percentage of Bk

FriSARHEE

the relevant Percentage of

Partners LLP

3R 2018 ANNUAL RE

BRER Bt %R Number of H{3 class of  entire share
Name of Shareholders Class of Shares shares held Capacity share capital capital
B AEEE)BERRA W& R 1,243,616,4038 EmEHB A 100.00% 50.10%
Qingling Motors (Group) Domestic shares  1,243,616,403 shares Beneficial owner 100.00% 50.10%
Company Limited
At+RREARAA HA% 496,453,654% EmHEA A 40.08% 20.00%
Isuzu Motors Limited H shares 496,453,654 shares Beneficial owner 40.08% 20.00%
Allianz SE HA% 102,122,000 (7)) ZHEHIEE 8.24% 411%
Allianz SE H shares 102,122,000 shares Interest of a 8.24% 4.11%
(Note)  controlled
corporation
Edgbaston Investment HA% 68,655,0000% & & #38 5.54% 2.77%
Partners LLP
Edgbaston Investment H shares 68,655,000 shares Investment 5.54% 2.77%

Manager
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st - Note:
LA BAllianz SEFTRFE AR Al 2 iD= AHES The details of the interests held by Allianz SE in the Company are as follows:
BRiZIERERN
Total interests in shares
RERRAE HEER

ZREERB Name of controlling EHaSt Hiz@ER Indirect

Name of controlled corporation shareholders % controlled Direct interests interests

Allianz Asset Management AG Allianz SE 100% _ 102,122,000

Allianz Global Investors GmbH Allianz Asset Management 100% - 101,600,000
AG

RCM Asia Pacific Ltd. Allianz Global Investors 100% 98,240,000 -
GmbH

Allianz Global Investors Taiwan Ltd. Allianz Global Investors 100% 3,360,000 -
GmbH

Allianz Asset Management of America Holdings Allianz Asset Management 100% - 522,000

Inc. AG

Allianz Asset Management of America L.P. Allianz Asset Management 100% - 522,000
of America Holdings Inc.

Allianz Global Investors U.S. Holdings LLC Allianz Asset Management 100% - 522,000
of America L.P.

Allianz Global Investors Fund Management LLC  Allianz Global Investors 100% 522,000 -

U.S. Holdings LLC

B FYEFRIEEIN  ARFHE—T— \F Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any

+ - A=1+—BUEEETAEBAAARE% other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of
(TR AR (R E pb AR A RE RS A B B9 B AN o the Company as at 31 December 2018.

7 BN I 3R EMOLUMENT POLICY

HMEES(H—BRITES RIUL BT IESH The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
AEEMAR)BIEZEE B - BB RN Remuneration Committee (composed of one executive director and
FAEBES Y EHBGE o four independent non-executive directors) on the basis of their merit,

qualifications and competence.

HIESSRIEANT T LEBEEE  BEER The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the

KB RO LR TSR T AN EE Y 3 Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company's operating
B o results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had continuing connected transactions with
(a) Qingling Group and its subsidiaries EEE 5§54 AR A alChongging
Qingling Casting Company Limited (“CQCC"), EEE K IBEER QA
Chongging Qingling Forging Co. Ltd. (“CQFC"), EEEXEBER AT
Chongging Qingling Axle Co. Ltd. ("CQAC"), EEE B ERFARAR]
Chongging Qingling NHK Seat Co. Ltd. (“CONHK"), EEERERARA
&lChongaing Qingling Plastic Co. Ltd. (“CQPC"), EEEXEIRAR A
Chongging Qingling Aluminium Casting Co. Ltd. (“CQACL"), EEE$%A
BIEX & AR A AlChongging Qingling Automobile Chassis Parts Co.
Ltd. (“QAC"), EEE =7 PR 2 FChongging Qingling Machinery
Parts Co. Ltd. ("QM") and EEE#RZEM/TEHBR A E("Qingling Zhuan
Yong”, formerly known as EEE$ /58 FREEHFR AT Chongging
Qingling Automobile Manufacture and Assembly Co. Ltd.), (b) EEE
#EBR A E]("Qingling Moulds”), a sino-joint venture company which is
owned as to 50.56% and 49.44% by the Company and Isuzu respectively
and a subsidiary of the Company, (c) Isuzu, (d) Qingling Isuzu (Chongging)
Engine Co.,Ltd. (“Qingling Isuzu Engine"”), an entity established and
jointly controlled by the Company and Isuzu absorbed and merged
with Isuzu Qingling Autoparts on 29 December 2018 and is now held
as to 50.61%, 30.06% and 19.33% by Isuzu, Qingling Group and the
Company, respectively, (e) Qingling Isuzu (Chongging) Automobile Sales
and Service Co.,Ltd ("Qingling Isuzu Sales”), an entity established and
jointly controlled by the Company and Isuzu, (f) Isuzu Qingling (Chongging)
Engineering Co., Ltd (“Isuzu Qingling Engineering”), an associate
controlled by Isuzu, and (g) Isuzu Qingling (Chongging) Autoparts Co., Ltd
(“Isuzu Qingling Autoparts”), a company controlled by Isuzu and invested
by the Qingling Group and was absorbed and merged by Qingling Isuzu
Engine on 29 December 2018 and was dissolved and deregistered.
Qingling Group and Isuzu held 50.10% and 20.00% of the equity of the
Company respectively as at 31 December 2018. Qingling Isuzu Engine
and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts entered into a merger agreement (“Merger")
on 2 October 2018. After the completion of the Merger, as Qingling
Isuzu Engine will be the surviving company which will assume all the
assets, liabilities, operations, qualifications, personnel, contracts and all
other rights and obligations of Isuzu Qingling Autoparts, all the terms of
the relevant agreements will remain unchanged (apart from the change
in the performing party from Isuzu Qingling Autoparts to Qingling Isuzu
Engine where applicable) and the continuing connected transactions
contemplated thereunder will continue to be conducted by Qingling Isuzu
Engine. Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the above parties are connected
persons of the Group. Details of the continuing connected transactions
with the parties are as follows:
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(@) Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling Group
and its subsidiaries:

(i

On 22 December 2016, the Company entered into the New
Parts Supply Agreements with Qingling Group, CQCC,
CQFC, CQAC, CQONHK, CQPC and CQACL, respectively,
relating to the supply of certain automobile parts by Qingling
Group, CQCC, CQFC, CQAC, CQNHK, CQPC and CQACL,
respectively, to the Company, and the supply of certain
consolidated services by the Company to CQFC and the
lease of certain machineries by the Company to CQAC. With
respect to the automobile parts provided to the Company, the
price is based on actual costs or reasonable costs (whichever
is lower) incurred plus a profit margin of not more than 8%
determined in the following order: at prices not higher than
market prices; or if no comparable market price, at prices
based on actual costs or reasonable costs (whichever is
lower) incurred plus a profit margin of not more than 8%,
and in any event, at prices no less favourable than those
offered to independent third parties. The payment shall be
made within one month after delivery. With respect to the
consolidated services provided by the Company to CQFC, the
price is determined based on actual costs incurred plus taxes
payable. With respect to the lease of machineries by the
Company to CQAC, the rental payable is determined based
on the depreciation charge of the relevant machineries for
the relevant year plus taxes payable.
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On 22 December 2016, the Company also entered into the
New Autoparts and Materials Agreement with CQCC, CQFC,
CQACL, CQAC, CQPC, CONHK, QAC, QM and Qingling
Zhuan Yong respectively. The Company will sell to CQCC
the scrap metal left over from the Company’s manufacturing
process and the prices shall not be lower than the market
price of scrap metal of same type and the price of such scrap
metal sold by the Company to independent third parties (if
any); the Company will supply to CONHK and Qingling Zhuan
Yong semi-finished auto parts and the prices of which will
be determined based on costs incurred by the Company
plus a profit margin of not exceeding 8%, and the Company
will supply to all Qingling Autoparts Companies (refer to all
subsidiaries of Qingling Group in the supply agreements) raw
and crafting materials including but not limited to gasoline,
diesel, cutting fluid, tools and equipment, and machinery
spare parts, which will be sourced by the Company from
suppliers which are independent and not connected persons
to the Company, and the prices of which will be equivalent
to the cost of sourcing such materials from independent third
parties plus the relevant tax payable.

During the year, the amount for the above continuing
connected transactions are as follows:

Sales of automobile parts and others:

with respect to Qingling Group (Note 1): approximately

RMB11,853,000;

with respect to CQCC: approximately RMB23,642,000;

with respect to CQFC: approximately RMB2,673,000;

with respect to CQAC: approximately RMB13,949,000;

with respect to CONHK: approximately RMB9,806,000;

with respect to CQPC: approximately RMB1,447,000; and

with respect to CQACL: approximately RMB1,358,000.
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Purchases of automobile parts:

with respect to Qingling Group (Note 2): approximately
RMB20,566,000;

with respect to CQCC: approximately RMB30,525,000;
with respect to CQFC: approximately RMB40,961,000;
with respect to CQAC: approximately RMB421,801,000;
with respect to CONHK: approximately RMB61,347,000;
with respect to CQPC: approximately RMB59,321,000; and
with respect to CQACL: approximately RMB11,066,000.

Supply of consolidated services:

With respect to CQFC: approximately RMB581,000.

Lease of machineries:

With respect to CQAC: approximately RMB437,000.

Note 1: Including approximately RMB2,466,000, approximately
RMB5,498,000 and approximately RMB3,889,000
representing the sales of parts and raw materials to QM,
Qingling Zhuan Yong and QAC respectively during the
year.

Note 2: Including approximately RMB38,000, approximately
RMB9,038,000, approximately RMB6,869,000 and
approximately RMB4,621,000 representing the
purchases of automobile parts from Qingling Group, QM,
Qingling Zhuan Yong and QAC respectively during the
year.
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(ii)

(ii)

Qingling Moulds entered into the New Qingling Group
Moulds Supply Agreement with Qingling Group and its
subsidiaries CQCC, CQFC, CQPC and CQACL on 22
December 2016. And the price is determined on normal
commercial terms, relating to the supply of moulds and
related products and/or maintenance and processing services
by Qingling Moulds to the aforesaid companies. And the
price is determined on normal commercial terms. If there
are no sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
they are on normal commercial terms, the price shall be on
terms fair and reasonable to Qingling Moulds, referring to the
costs incurred by the Company plus a profit margin of not
exceeding 8%, which shall be no less favourable to Qingling
Moulds than terms offered to independent third parties, and
the payment shall be made within a month upon delivery.
During the year, the amount of the continuing connected
transaction was approximately RMB568,000.

The Company entered into a the New Chassis Supply
Agreement with the Qingling Group on 22 December
2016, relating to the sale of automobile chassis and related
components by the Company to Qingling Group, the price
is determined with reference to the market price of chassis
and related components with a credit period of three to
six months after the sale. During the year, the amount of
the continuing connected transaction was approximately
RMB1,239,140,000.
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The Company entered into the New Warehouse Leasing
Agreement on 22 December 2016 with Qingling Group,
relating to the lease of warehouse, the Land with an area
of approximately 19,880.4m? for storage of autoparts and
raw materials, the Land with an area of approximately
20,697m? for use as a testing site for autoparts; and the
Land with an area of approximately 10,000m? by Qingling
Group to the Company at a consideration of RMB5,827,000,
RMB920,000, RMB958,000, RMB463,000 respectively
per annum. The aforesaid considerations for the leasing
of warehouses are set by the Board by reference to the
depreciation charged by Qingling Group, on straight-line
depreciation basis, on the relevant assets during the year. For
the leasing of certain parts of the Land, the considerations
are determined with reference to the prevailing market rent
and existing rent payable by the Group under the current
leasing agreements. The considerations are set at prices not
higher than market prices; or at prices no less favourable
than those offered by Qingling Group to independent third
parties. The consideration payable by the Company under
the New Warehouse Leasing Agreement is determined after
arm’s length negotiations between the parties thereto. The
directors (including independent non-executive directors) are
of the view that the New Warehouse Leasing Agreement
are fair and reasonable, such transactions will continue to be
conducted on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group, and, such
transactions (including the rents payable by the Company),
are in the interest of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole.

The Company entered into the New Machinery Leasing
Agreement with CQFC, on 22 December 2016, relating to
the lease of machineries for further processing of casting
and forging parts from CQFC by the Company. Annual
rental was based on the depreciation charge of the relevant
machineries for the relevant year payable by the Company to
CQFC in cash on quarterly basis, subject to adjustment upon
consultation with each other if there is a material change
on the depreciation charge. During the year, the amount of
the continuing connected transaction was approximately
RMB20,089,000.
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(vi)  The Company entered into the Qingling Group Equipment
Lease with the Qingling Group on 22 December 2016,
relating to the lease of equipment, namely the 110kVA
electrical substation and its ancillary facilities from Qingling
Group by the Company. The rent for the Leased Equipment
(Qingling Group) is determined with reference to the annual
depreciation rate under the accounting policy currently
adopted by the Qingling Group. The monthly rents shall be
adjusted accordingly if there is material variation in the value
and/or material depreciation of the Leased Equipment. The
Company shall pay the rent of three months before the last
day of the quarter by crediting a bank account specified
by the Qingling Group. During the year, the amount of
the continuing connected transaction was approximately
RMB873,000.

The details and amount of the above connected transactions with
Qingling Group and its subsidiaries during the year are set out in
note 33(i) to the consolidated financial statements.

Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling Moulds:

On 22 December 2016, the Company and Qingling Moulds entered
into the following agreements:

(i) The New Qingling Moulds Supply Agreement, relating to the
supply of moulds and related products and maintenance and
processing services by Qingling Moulds to the Company,
the supply of raw materials and processing services by
the Company to Qingling Moulds, and the provision of
consolidated services including but not limited to water and
gas supply services, equipment repair and maintenance
services, medical and hygiene services and the Three
Warranties by the Company to Qingling Moulds. The price
is determined on normal commercial terms, if there are no
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether they are
on normal commercial terms, on terms fair and reasonable
to the Company, and the terms are no less favorable
than the terms available to independent third parties from
Qingling Moulds. During the year, the purchase amount of
the continuing connected transaction was approximately
RMB1,428,000, the sales amount was approximately
RMB14,405,000 and the consolidated services income was
RMB350,000.
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The New Qingling Moulds Lease, relating to using the
Land for its operations only by Qingling Moulds from the
Company. The agreement shall be effective from the date
upon obtaining all relevant approvals and/or completing all
other procedures in accordance with all applicable laws, rules
and regulations or 1 January 2017 (whichever is later) to 31
December 2019. The monthly rent for the Land (Qingling
Moulds) is determined with reference to the market value
of the Land (Qingling Moulds) and the rent paid by Qingling
Moulds under the Qingling Moulds Lease plus taxes
payable for leasing. The monthly rent under the Qingling
Moulds Lease is RMB3,946.09 per month. During the year,
the amount of the continuing connected transaction was
approximately RMB43,000.

(c)  Significant continuing connected transactions with Isuzu:

(i

(ii)

On 22 December 2016, the Company entered into the
New Isuzu Supply Agreement with Isuzu whereby Isuzu
provides the Company with certain automobile parts and
components produced by Isuzu and which are required in the
production processes. As there are no sufficient comparable
transactions, the price of the Company’s purchases of
automobile parts and components is determined with
reference to actual or reasonable costs (whichever is lower)
incurred plus a profit margin of not more than 10%, and the
payment shall be made at the time of delivery. During the
year, the amount of the continuing connected transaction
was approximately RMB387,765,000.

On 22 December 2016, the Company entered into the
New Company Supply Agreement with Isuzu whereby the
Company provides Isuzu with certain accessory sets and
other automobile parts and components produced by the
Company and which are required in the production processes
of Isuzu. As there are no sufficient comparable transactions,
the sales price of those parts and components is determined
with reference to actual or reasonable costs (whichever is
lower) incurred plus a profit margin of not more than 10%,
and the payment shall be made within 40 days after delivery.
During the year, the amount of the continuing connected
transaction was approximately RMB4,168,000.
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(iii)

During the year, the Company continued the transactions
under the technology transfer agreements with Isuzu entered
on 20 February 2000, 23 May 2008, 21 December 2012, 27
April 2016 and 26 March 2014 for the transfer of technology
and provision of technical know-how and the permission to
use the trademark of Isuzu and the emblem by Isuzu to the
Company for the production and sales of F series Chassis
and related parts and components, 700P3X series vehicles
and related parts and components, GXR/GXZ vehicles, FXZ
vehicles, FYH vehicles, CYH vehicles, CYZ vehicles and EXR/
EXZ vehicles.

The price is set at an initial fee (among which, the initial fee
for F series Chassis and 700P3X series vehicles and related
parts and components, GXR/GXZ vehicles, FXZ vehicles, FYH
vehicles, has already been fully paid by the Company to Isuzu),
plus royalties, which is determined with reference to the
price of the parts and components manufactured and sold by
the Company pursuant to the agreement, staff training fees
and technical assistance fees.

Also, the Company and Isuzu made the Trademark Licensing
Agreement on 26 March 2014. Isuzu continues to grant the
Company a non-transferrable right to use the trademarks
and emblems of Isuzu, “ISUZU" and “H+%$4", in the sale
of the 600P, 100P and TF/UC series vehicles produced by
the Company. And the License fee for each series of vehicle
is as follows: JPY2,000 for each 600P series vehicle sold,
JPY1,500 for each 100P series vehicle sold and JPY1,500 for
each TF/UC series vehicle sold.

During the year, the amount incurred for the continuing
connected transaction under the technology transfer
agreements and technology licensing agreements was
approximately RMB22,137,000.

The details and amount of the above connected transactions with

Isuzu during the year are set out in note 33(ii) to the consolidated

financial statements.
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Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling Isuzu
Engine:

On 22 December 2016 the Company and Qingling Isuzu Engine
entered into the following agreements:

(i

(ii)

The New Supply Agreement, relating to the provision of parts
of engines and raw materials for assembling and composing
engine assemblies by the Company to Qingling Isuzu Engine,
whereas Qingling Isuzu Engine provides engines and their
parts to the Company for assembling and maintenance of
automobile. The agreement shall be effective from the date
upon obtaining all relevant approvals and/or completing all
other procedures in accordance with all applicable laws, rules
and regulations or 1 January 2017 (whichever is later) to 31
December 2019. The actual selling price of the products to
be supplied/purchased and other related terms in any further
specific agreement shall be the actual costs of the supplying
party plus a profit margin of not exceeding 10%. Such
premium shall be finalised by both parties on the basis that it
is fair and reasonable to both parties. Payment will be within
half a month after delivery. During the year, the purchase
amount of the continuing connected transaction was
approximately RMB1,200,482,000 and the selling amount
was approximately RMB728,736,000.

The New Consolidated Services Agreement, relating to the
provision of certain services (including services such as
water and gas supply, transportation, equipment repair and
maintenance, medical and hygiene and three warranties)
by the Company to Qingling Isuzu Engine. The agreement
shall be effective from the date upon obtaining all relevant
approvals and/or completing all other procedures in
accordance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations or 1
January 2017 (whichever is later) to 31 December 2019. The
actual price for the services to be provided by the Company
under the New Consolidated Services Agreement or any
further specific agreement(s) shall be the actual costs of the
Company plus taxes payable. During the year, the amount
of the continuing connected transaction was approximately
RMB1,019,000.
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(i)~ The New Equipment Lease, relating to the lease of leased
equipment by the Company to Qingling Isuzu Engine. The
agreement shall be effective from the date upon obtaining all
relevant approvals and/or completing all other procedures in
accordance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations or 1
January 2017 (whichever is later) to 31 December 2019. The
monthly rent is determined with reference to the depreciated
value of the leased equipment at the time of valuation
previously conducted by an independent international asset
appraisal firm and the market value of the leased equipment.
During the year, the amount of the continuing connected
transaction was approximately RMB39,285,000.

(iv)  The New Factory Lease, relating to the lease of land
and factory premises by the Company to Qingling Isuzu
Engine. The agreement shall be effective from the date
upon obtaining all relevant approvals and/or completing all
other procedures in accordance with all applicable laws,
rules and regulations or 1 January 2017 (whichever is later)
to 31 December 2019. The monthly rent is approximately
RMB392,000, which is determined with reference to the
value of the Leased Land and the Factory Premises taking
into account its annual depreciation and taxes payable for
leasing. During the year, the amount of the continuing
connected transaction was approximately RMB4,260,000.

The details and amount of the above connected transactions with
Qingling Isuzu Engine during the year are also set out in note 33(iii)
to the consolidated financial statements.

Significant continuing connected transactions with Qingling Isuzu
Sales:

On 22 December 2016, the Company and Qingling Isuzu Sales
entered into the following agreements:

(i) The New Sales JV Lease, relating to the lease of the Sales
JV Leased Land and Sales JV Premises by the Company to
Qingling Isuzu Sales. The lease agreement shall be effective
from the date upon obtaining all relevant approvals and/
or completing all other procedures in accordance with all
applicable laws, rules and regulations or 1 January 2017
(whichever is later) to 31 December 2019. The monthly rent is
determined with reference to the value of the Sales JV Lease
Land and the Sales JV Premises taking into account its annual
depreciation plus taxes payable for leasing. The monthly rent
is approximately RMB143,000. During the year, the amount
of the continuing connected transaction was approximately
RMB1,550,000.
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The New Sales JV Consolidated Services Agreement,
relating to the provision of certain services (including services
such as transportation, equipment repair and maintenance,
medical and hygiene and three warranties) by the Company
to Qingling Isuzu Sales. The agreement shall be effective
from the date upon obtaining all relevant approvals and/
or completing all other procedures in accordance with all
applicable laws, rules and regulations or 1 January 2017
(whichever is later) to 31 December 2019. The price is
determined at actual costs plus tax payable. During the year,
the amount of the continuing connected transaction was
approximately RMB2,000.

The New Sales JV Supply Agreement, relating to the provision
of automobiles and parts by the Company to Qingling Isuzu
Sales. The agreement shall be effective from the date upon
obtaining all relevant approvals and/or completing all other
procedures in accordance with all applicable laws, rules
and regulations or 1 January 2017 (whichever is later) to 31
December 2019. The actual selling prices of the automobiles
or their parts to be supplied/purchased and other related
terms in any further specific agreement shall not be lower
than the market prices of the automobiles or their parts and
shall not be lower than the prices offered to independent
third parties. If there are no comparable market prices,
prices shall be based on actual costs or reasonable costs
(whichever is lower) incurred plus a profit margin of not more
than 8%. Reasonable cost is the estimation of the cost of the
relevant products by the parties using the historical cost in
the market as reference and based on the relevant enterprise
technology, craft and comprehensive management level.
During the year, the amount of the continuing connected
transaction was approximately RMB36,142,000.

The details and amounts of the above connected transactions with

Qingling Isuzu Sales during the year are set out in note 33(iv) to the

consolidated financial statements.
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Continuing connected transactions with Isuzu Qingling Engineering:

On 22 December 2016, the Company and Isuzu Qingling
Engineering entered into the following agreements:

(i

(ii)

The New Factory Lease (Isuzu Qingling Engineering), relating
to the lease of the factory premises by the Company to
Isuzu Qingling Engineering. The agreement shall be effective
from the date upon obtaining all relevant approvals and/
or completing all other procedures in accordance with all
applicable laws, rules and regulations or 1 January 2017
(whichever is later) to 31 December 2019. Pursuant to
the New Factory Lease (Isuzu Qingling Engineering), the
rent consists of fixed portion and float portion. The fixed
portion includes basic rent in respect of the leasing of the
Engineering Factory Premises, the provision of basic service
facilities and maintenance cost; the float portion represents
the replacement cost of materials consumed by Isuzu
Qingling Engineering when using the Engineering Factory
Premises or the basic service facilities. The total monthly
rent is expected to be RMB101,000, including the monthly
fixed rent of RMB81,000 and the pre-determined monthly
float rent of RMB20,000. During the year, the amount of the
continuing connected transaction was nil as there was an
early termination of the lease on 30 June 2017.

The New Consolidated Services Agreement (Isuzu Qingling
Engineering), relating to the provision of certain services
(including services such as water, electricity and gas
supply, vehicle rental, telecommunication and medical and
hygiene) by the Company to Isuzu Qingling Engineering. The
agreement shall be effective from the date upon obtaining
all relevant approvals and/or completing all other procedures
in accordance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations
or 1 January 2017 (whichever is later) to 31 December 2019.
The consideration is determined at the actual costs of the
Company plus taxes payable. During the year, the amount
of the continuing connected transaction was approximately
RMB1,105,000.

The details and amount of the above connected transaction with Isuzu
Qingling Engineering during the year are also set out in note 33(v) to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Continuing connected transactions with Isuzu Qingling Autoparts:

On 22 December 2016, the Company and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts
entered into the following agreements:

(i) The New Supply Agreement (Isuzu Qingling Autoparts),
relating to the provision of parts of engines and related
products by Isuzu Qingling Autoparts to the Company, and
the provision of automobiles, parts of engines and raw
materials by the Company to Isuzu Qingling Autoparts. The
agreement shall be effective from the date upon obtaining
all relevant approvals and/or completing all other procedures
in accordance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations
or 1 January 2017 (whichever is later) to 31 December
2019. Prices for products provided shall not be higher than
the market prices and shall not be less favourable than the
prices offered to independent third parties. If there are no
comparable market prices, prices shall be determined based
on the actual or reasonable costs incurred (whichever is
lower) plus a profit margin of not more than 8%. During
the year, the purchase amount of the continuing connected
transaction was approximately RMB8,732,000 and the selling
amount was approximately RMB92,469,000.

(i)~ The New Consolidated Service Agreement (Isuzu Qingling
Autoparts), relating to the provision of certain services
(including services such as water, electricity and gas
supply, vehicle rental, telecommunication and medical and
hygiene) by the Company to Isuzu Qingling Autoparts. The
agreement shall be effective from the date upon obtaining
all relevant approvals and/or completing all other procedures
in accordance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations
or 1 January 2017 (whichever is later) to 31 December 2019.
The consideration is determined at the actual costs of the
Company plus taxes payable. During the year, the amount
of the continuing connected transaction was approximately
RMB1,035,000.

The details and amount of the above connected transactions with
Isuzu Qingling Autoparts during the year are set out in note 33(vi) to
the consolidated financial statements.
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(h)  Other Continuing Connected Transactions:

The Company, Qingling Isuzu Engine, Isuzu Qingling Engineering
and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts entered into the New Testing
Agreement on 22 December 2016, relating to the provision of
certain testing services (including but not limited to smoking tests,
external property tests and combustion analysis tests for full-
loading and steady rolling engines; temperature resistance tests and
heeling tests for vehicles; and endurance tests and vibration tests
for parts) by the Company to Qingling Isuzu Engine, Isuzu Qingling
Engineering and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts. The agreement shall be
effective from the date upon obtaining all relevant approvals and/
or completing all other procedures in accordance with all applicable
laws, rules and regulations or 1 January 2017 (whichever is later)
to 31 December 2019. Prices for services provided shall not be
higher than the market prices and shall not be less favourable than
the prices offered to independent third parties. If there are no
comparable market prices, prices shall be determined based on
the actual or reasonable costs incurred (whichever is lower) plus a
profit margin of not more than 8%. During the year, the Company
did not provide the testing services to Isuzu Qingling Engine, Isuzu
Qingling Engineering and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts.

The details and amounts of the above connected transactions with
Qingling Isuzu Engine during the year are also set out in note 33(iii) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Company's auditor was engaged to conduct audit work in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Pursuant to the Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the
auditor has issued a letter to the Board of the Company that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group (except those de minimis
transactions which are fully exempted pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1) of the
Listing Rules):

1. have not been approved by the listed issuer’s board of directors;
2. for the transactions involving the provision of goods or services by
the Group, were not, in all material respects, in accordance with

the pricing policies of the Group;

3. were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

4. have exceeded the annual caps set by the Company.



RAREMIFTESHR  ARRXSIAR
AR A EEBREIL - B REERGERREE
ZIERR - YARIBE AR 5 2 B T &
REBAFARE BNAARRBRRNEREN

<
Zs o
I

REX 5

(i) ARAFR2015F12A18HER+5
BIBET T () CYHEAMTRF Al 5k ¢ (i)CYZ
RAMTEF el a8 ¢ (i) EXR/EXZ BT &7
At ARBR A TREAQRRE
Rtk E - 8 TR
AR ARABERR TR ZAERIEZ
TR IETB (R B R R B A E R (i)
CYH : (i)CYZ ; (i) EXR/EXZIRE ©

BRCYHREM A haE s XEA
700,000,000 EIfERARBIIZA N
RENFRTE  (\EREBREZI0%E
B B R & B B30
RS (D ERERBEHCYHD
CYH® : CYHORCYH® » BARAF A
A+RYEMERRESBECYHER T
o BEI#30ER BEIMNEHLE
BZ10%  a@XEXBHZ40% : &
(I BEEAREFHCYHD « CYHD -
CYHORCYH®  BARAAIEA 1§25
EMMERZECYHEHAEAEZ B
I30EAR BRELNEHAERAZE%
SHERERZ20% - NATDH2016
£ £1280,000,000 B B » AF % f
245,000,000 8 [ °

BRCYZEMHFAIHE  BXEA
700,000,000 H [ElfE AR BIZ LA T 75
AEXHFFRTER: (IBRERZ40%
& B M FE B 9% L it B BB 30
BASZAM  (NEXEBEZ40%EE K
NAHEA TR ERBEREME LR
sk 2 BEE30B AT ¢ Kiii)E
REBRHZ20%EEANQAHEA 1
EHERACYZRERELEEZ B
30 A - AARER2016F X+
280,000,000 [&] * #: T420,000,000H
BEEARFEME -

EEEHRE
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The independent non-executive directors of the Company confirm that
the transactions have been entered into by the Company in the ordinary
and usual course of its business, on normal commercial terms or better
and in accordance with the agreement governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(i)

On 18 December 2015, the Company and Isuzu entered into (i)
the CYH Technology Licence Agreement; (ii) the CYZ Technology
Licence Agreement; and (iii) the EXR/EXZ Technology Licence
Agreement, respectively, in relation to the provision of technology
and technical know-how, staff training and technical assistance and
the licence to use the trademark and the emblem of Isuzu by Isuzu
to the Company for the production and sale of (i) CYH; (ii) CYZ; and
(iii) EXR/EXZ vehicles in the PRC on an non-exclusive basis.

For the CYH Technology Licence Agreement, an initial fee of
JPY700,000,000 is payable by the Company to Isuzu in the
following manner: (i) 40% of the initial fee shall be payable within
30 days from the date of approval granted by the relevant PRC
authorities; (i) 10% of the initial fee for each of the sample vehicles
CYH®, CYH®, CYH® and CYH® and a total of 40% of the initial
fee shall be payable within 30 days from the date of completion
of the provision of each CYH vehicles confirmed in writing by both
the Company and Isuzu; and (iii) 5% of the initial fee for each of the
sample vehicles CYH®, CYH®, CYH® and CYH® and a total of
20% of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days from the date
of the bulk production of each CYH vehicles confirmed in writing by
both the Company and Isuzu. The Company paid JPY280,000,000
in 2016 and paid JPY245,000,000 in the current year.

For the CYZ Technology Licence Agreement, an initial fee of
JPY700,000,000 is payable by the Company to Isuzu in the
following manner: (i) 40% of the initial fee shall be payable within
30 days from the date of approval granted by the relevant PRC
authorities; (ii) 40% of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days
from the date of completion of the provision of technical know-how
confirmed in writing by both the Company and Isuzu; and (i) 20%
of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days from the date of
the bulk production of the CYZ vehicles confirmed in writing by
both the Company and Isuzu. The Company paid JPY280,000,000
in 2016 and the remaining JPY420,000,000 has been settled in the
current year.
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(ii)

For the EXR/EXZ Technology Licence Agreement, an initial fee
of JPY700,000,000 is payable by the Company to Isuzu in the
following manner: (i) 40% of the initial fee shall be payable within
30 days from the date of approval granted by the relevant PRC
authorities; (ii) 40% of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days
from the date of completion of the provision of technical know-how
confirmed in writing by both the Company and Isuzu; and (iii) 20%
of the initial fee shall be payable within 30 days from the date of
the bulk production of the EXR/EXZ vehicles confirmed in writing by
both the Company and Isuzu. The Company paid JPY280,000,000
in 2016 and the remaining JPY420,000,000 has been settled in the
current year.

The Company will also have to pay royalties to Isuzu in relation
to the sale of each CYH, CYZ and EXR/EXZ vehicles, which are
calculated at 3% of the on-site added value of each vehicle. (Please
refer to page 32 for details.)

On 16 February 2016, the Company and Isuzu entered into the CAN
Signaling Technology Development Agreement, pursuant to which
the Company engaged Isuzu to develop the CAN Signaling System
with the corresponding specifications meeting the VC61series
vehicles and the corresponding engines for the 6U National V
and the 6W National V standards. Upon the completion of the
development, Isuzu shall submit the Company with the technical
information and records, the documents with their details and
electronic data during the development based on the provisions
of the CAN Signaling Technology Development Agreement and
the instructions of the Company. The Company shall pay a total
consideration of JPY116,715,427 to Isuzu in the following manner:
(i) JPYB8,357,713 shall be payable within 20 days from the signing
day of the CAN Signaling Technology Development Agreement;
and (i) JPY58,357,713 shall be payable within 20 days from the
completion day of the business development. The Company paid
JPY58,357,713 in 2016 and the remaining JPY58,357,713 has been
settled in the current year.
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On 4 July 2018, the Company and Isuzu entered into (i) VC66(CYH)
National Vlb Technology Development Agreement; (ii) VC66(CYZ)
National VIb Technology Development Agreement; and (iii)
VCB6(EXR/EXZ) National VIb Technology Development Agreement,
respectively. The Company engaged Isuzu to carry out design
change related development for the relevant (i)VC61(CYH), (ii)
VCB1(CYZ) and (iii)VCB1(EXR/EXZ) basic vehicles so as to allow
equipping such vehicles with the sample engine for VC66 series
vehicles and ensure compliance with the relevant National
VIb emission regulations and other regulations required by
certifications on model (announcement), oil consumption, safety
and CCC, compliance with the same CAN (Control Area Network)
communication standard as used for the basic vehicles, and to
provide technical guidance or study services. Isuzu shall submit the
Company with the relevant technical information together with a
set of documents and electronic data recording the details of such
technical information in accordance with the agreement. The term
of the agreement is from 28 June 2017 to the date of completion
of payment of consideration under the agreement.

In respect of the VC66 (CYH) National VIb Technology Development
Agreement, the Company shall pay the consideration to Isuzu in the
following way: (a) Payment of JPY 125,356,000 within 30 days from
the date of entering into of the VC66(CYH) National VIb Technology
Development Agreement; (b) Payment of JPY 125,356,000 within 30
days upon completion of Isuzu’s provision of relevant information
on development technology to the Company as confirmed by both
parties in writing; (c) Payment of JPY62,678,000 within 30 days
from the date of commencement of manufacturing and assembling
vehicles using the relevant information on development technology.

In respect of the VC66 (CYZ) National Vlb Technology Development
Agreement, the Company shall pay the consideration to Isuzu in the
following way: (a) Payment of JPY 125,356,000 within 30 days from
the date of entering into of the VC66(CYZ) National VIb Technology
Development Agreement; (b) Payment of JPY 125,356,000 within 30
days upon completion of Isuzu’s provision of relevant information
on development technology to the Company as confirmed by both
parties in writing; (c) Payment of JPY62,678,000 within 30 days
from the date of commencement of manufacturing and assembling
vehicles using the relevant information on development technology.

In respect of the VC66(EXR/EXZ) National Vib Technology
Development Agreement, the Company shall pay the consideration
to Isuzu in the following way: (a) Payment of JPY257,284,000
within 30 days from the date of entering into of the VC66(EXR/EXZ)
National VIb Technology Development Agreement; (b) Payment
of JPY257,284,000 within 30 days upon completion of Isuzu's
provision of relevant information on development technology to the
Company as confirmed by both parties in writing; (c) Payment of
JPY 128,642,000 within 30 days from the date of commencement
of manufacturing and assembling vehicles using the relevant
information on development technology.
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The consideration payable under the above agreements is
determined based on the technical advancement and market
prospect of products and with reference to the consideration under
the technology licence agreements of other companies in the
industry. The above payments shall be made by the Company to
Isuzu in JPY after deduction of taxes payable by Isuzu to the PRC
government.

During the year, the Company paid JPY125,356,000,
JPY 125,356,000 and JPY257,284,000 to Isuzu in respect of (i)
VCB6(CYH) National Vlb Technology Development Agreement :
(i) VCB6(CYZ) National VIb Technology Development Agreement;
and (iii) VCB6(EXR/EXZ) National VIb Technology Development
Agreement, respectively.

The details and amounts of the connected transaction with Isuzu
during the year are also set out in note 33(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements.

On 18 September 2018, the Company convened a Board meeting
at which the proposal regarding the Merger was considered and
approved. Qingling Isuzu Engine and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts
entered into the Merger Agreement on 2 October 2018 (after
trading hours), pursuant to which, Qingling Isuzu Engine will absorb
and merge with Isuzu Qingling Autoparts, and Qingling Isuzu Engine
will be the surviving company upon completion of the Merger
and assume all the assets, liabilities, operations, qualifications,
personnel, contracts and all other rights and obligations of Isuzu
Qingling Autoparts and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts will be dissolved
and deregistered. Further, on 2 October 2018 (after trading hours),
the Company, Qingling Group and Isuzu also entered into (i) the
JV Agreement to set out their respective rights and obligations in
Qingling Isuzu Engine in accordance with the Merger; and (ii) the
Priority Supply Memorandum to set out the agreement in relation
to the priority supply of goods by Qingling Isuzu Engine to the
Company.
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The proportion of the capital contribution by the Company, Qingling
Group and Isuzu to Qingling Isuzu Engine upon completion of the
Merger are determined with reference to their respective capital
contribution to Qingling Isuzu Engine and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts
before the Merger and the net asset values of Qingling Isuzu
Engine and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts as valued by the Independent
Valuer with 31 December 2017 as the valuation benchmark date.
According to the Qingling Isuzu Engine Valuation Report and the
Isuzu Qingling Autoparts Valuation Report, the total interests of
shareholders of Qingling Isuzu Engine and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts
as at 31 December 2017 amounted to RMB884,919,700 and
RMB1,404,035,500, respectively. The amount and proportion of
their respective capital contribution are set out in the table below:

HE&H tHR LR
BREE Amount of capital Proportion of
Name of shareholder contribution capital contribution
€]
(USD)
il Isuzu 164,107,986 50.61%
EREH Qingling Group 97,472,556 30.06%
/N The Company 62,679,458 19.33%
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The Existing Continuing Connected Transactions entered into
between the Group with Qingling Isuzu Engine and Isuzu Qingling
Autoparts including the followings:

(@) the New Supply Agreement dated 22 December 2016
entered into between the Company and Qingling Isuzu
Engine relating to the provision of parts of engines and raw
materials by the Company to Qingling Isuzu Engine, and the
provision of engines and their parts by Qingling Isuzu Engine
to the Company;

(b)  the New Equipment Lease dated 22 December 2016 entered
into between the Company and Qingling Isuzu Engine relating
to the leasing of the Leased Equipment by the Company to
Qingling Isuzu Engine;

(c)  the New Factory Lease dated 22 December 2016 entered
into between the Company and Qingling Isuzu Engine relating
to the leasing of the Leased Land and the Factory Premises
by the Company to Qingling Isuzu Engine;
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(9)

the New Consolidated Services Agreement dated 22
December 2016 entered into between the Company and
Qingling Isuzu Engine relating to the provision of certain
services by the Company to Qingling Isuzu Engine;

the New Supply Agreement (Isuzu Qingling Autoparts) dated
22 December 2016 entered into between the Company and
Isuzu Qingling Autoparts relating to the provision of parts of
engines by Isuzu Qingling Autoparts to the Company, and the
provision of automobiles, parts of engines and raw materials
by the Company to Isuzu Qingling Autoparts;

the New Consolidated Services Agreement dated 22
December 2016 entered into between the Company and Isuzu
Qingling Autoparts relating to the provision of certain services
by the Company to Isuzu Qingling Autoparts; and

the New Testing Agreement dated 22 December 2016
entered into between the Company and, among others,
Qingling Isuzu Engine and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts relating
to the provision of certain testing services by the Company to
Qingling Isuzu Engine and Isuzu Qingling Autoparts.

Following the conclusion of the Merger, Qingling Isuzu Engine,
being the surviving company, would assume all the assets,
liabilities, operations, qualification, personnel, contracts and all
other rights and obligations of Isuzu Qingling Autoparts, all the
terms under the aforesaid agreements, therefore, will remain
unchanged, except that the name of the party to an agreement will
be changed from Isuzu Qingling Autoparts to Qingling Isuzu Engine
in certain circumstances (as appropriate), and Qingling Isuzu Engine
will continue to proceed with the continuing connected transactions
contemplated thereunder.
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The information of the related party transactions entered into by
the Group is set out in note 33(i) to (vii) to the consolidated financial
statements. Those related party transactions also constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, and the Board confirms that the Company has
complied with the requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for
those transactions.

FIVE LARGEST SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the purchases from five largest
suppliers accounted for 41.69% of the total purchases of the Group.
The purchases from the largest supplier accounted for 21.11% of the
total purchases. Qingling Group and its subsidiaries, a joint venture of
the Company and a Japanese trading company, through which Isuzu
channels its supply of parts and components to the Group, are included
in the five largest suppliers of the Group. Details of transactions with
Qingling Group and its subsidiaries and with Isuzu are set out in the
section “Connected Transactions” above. Other than disclosed above,
the Company's directors and supervisors, their associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5%
of the Company's share capital), did not have any interests in the Group’s
five largest suppliers for the year ended 31 December 2018. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, Qingling Group was the largest customer. The
aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five largest customers (except
Qingling Group) were less than 30% of the Group's total sales.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS
OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company and its subsidiaries did not issue or grant any convertible

securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the year.

There were no outstanding or conversion of convertible securities,
options, warrants or similar rights issued or granted by the Company or
its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entity during the year.

DESIGNATED DEPOSITS
As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not hold any designated deposits

or any time deposits that were overdue but could not be collected upon
maturity.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, none of the Company or its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company'’s listed securities.

gling Motors Co. Ltd
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B/ EMPLOYEES

RZEBE—N\FE+ZA=+—H  ~5BEEA As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 3,008 employees (2017: 2,813
H 3,008 A (ZF—t4F 1 2,813A) c RAF employees). During the year, no material change was noted for the
EAN - EEABKEGMNERITERESERY number of employees or their remuneration policy. The Group actively
B AEERRASEEE THRI W EBEE formulated and implemented various training to its staff of all levels.
ZIIETE] -

& RiBRAETE STAFF RETIREMENT SCHEME
REE 2 & B RNEFFEIFBENGE VK Details of the Group's staff retirement benefits scheme are set out in
WERMIFES - note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

EEREFETESERHCHET MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
] DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

AR EERA TR B M 8 ATE IR ST The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
Bl e RARIMAEEERESELHEEENR to the Listing Rules. Based on specific enquires to all directors and
% HRMBESMESENAFEN—EEST supervisors, the Company confirms that all directors and supervisors

TEAEFAZARTE © have complied with the requirements of the Model Code during the year.
{2 5c R e 1 PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

ARABZARERWEFBELERE G There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
Koo of Association.

LFER CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
AARTEERBHAZENENEISECLE The information on the Company’s corporate governance practices is set
[(EEERMEIAN - out in the “Corporate Governance Report” from pages 48 to 64.
LRISFKRE PUBLIC FLOAT

EZZF—)\FHH - BEBEAREBESHNARE Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
KESHEEBEMAE  BRARBATIRAR within the knowledge of its directors, there is sufficient public float as
RIEEITRIN 225% » ARFIRERH - not less than 25% of the Company's issued shares are held by the public

throughout the year 2018.

FHREE REVIEW OF ACCOUNTS
BEREZESCEARNRERERZEMENT The audit committee has reviewed with the management and auditors
AEBRAz SRR BB FTmEZ of the Company the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
NPER LM BEREE  BEEMEBEE-Z Group and discussed auditing, internal controls and financial reporting
—N\F+Z A=+ —HIEFEZEEZEE M matters including the review of the audited consolidated financial
Tk - statements for the year ended 31 December 2018.

46 £ 3% 2018 ANNUAL REPORT



% BED

EREBEYERETMEFAEKRERE
BIEEDRIESBEART EEITAERA
BB AR RN - NERRBFR

g RS -
EREEG®
BFx
BEER

e E2E
—T-NF=A=++tH

EEEHRE
DIRECTORS' REPORT

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting for 2019
to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants
LLP Chongging Branch and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the
Company.

By order of the Board
LUO Yuguang
CHAIRMAN

Chongaing, the PRC
27 March 2019

5 {215 B FR A 7] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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The Company puts high emphasis on and endeavors to maintain a
high standard of corporate governance. The Board believes that good
corporate governance practices are important to promote investors’
confidence and protect the interest of our shareholders. The Company
attaches importance to our staff, our code of conduct and our corporate
policies and standards, which together form the basis of our corporate
governance practices. The Board has adopted sound corporate
governance and disclosure practices, and is committed to continuously
improving those practices and cultivating an ethical corporate culture.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has complied
with the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules except for the deviation from code
provision A.1.8 of the Corporate Governance Code as stated below.

Under code provision A.1.8 of the Corporate Governance Code, an issuer
should arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its directors. With regular, timely and effective communications
among the directors and the management of the Group, the management
of the Group believes that all potential claims and legal actions against the
directors of the Company can be handled effectively, and the possibility
of actual litigation against the directors of the Company is relatively low.
The Company will review and consider to make such arrangement as and
when it thinks necessary.

THE BOARD

Members of the Board are accountable to the shareholders for the
success and sustainable development of the Company. The Board
is responsible for the management of all the important issues of
the Company, including the duties of convening general meetings,
implementing the resolutions passed at the general meetings,
determining the operating strategies and investment proposals of the
Company, formulating the plans of the Company for annual financial
budgets and final accounts, establishing and approving the internal control
and risk management systems and monitoring the performance of the
members of the senior management. The directors shall make objective
decisions for the interests of the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted board diversity policy in September 2013 to comply
with the new code provisions in relation to board diversity effective from
September 2013.

When determining the composition of the Board, the Company shall
take into account our business operations and select candidates with
appropriate and necessary skills and experience and those who can
express their views in a multi-angle perspective. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.
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Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board of the Company is comprised of
10 members, including 6 executive directors and 4 independent non-
executive directors. Independent non-executive directors account for
40% of the number of Board members.

An analysis of the Board based on a scope of diversity perspective is set
forth below:

Number of Directors
9 B 11-20
EMITES
8 Independent
Non-executive
Director
7
6 2
Male
5
4
3
2
1
0
R B FHAER PRISFH
Sex Position Age Group Length of Service

WA KR EERE THEFABRMBERNITE
B ARAR T \FRRAFRSEEM
E—RERKTRABTITES  HHEILARPRE
ERBHECITESRRY - b ER(BEE
FHREE - AIBE—BEE - KEELEE -
FEERL - RIAKAE  BBREL  RIR
£ BREEERB -_REDR-_Z-NF
BERAFAE LERERRITREE/H—
[EEE -

Mr. Etsuo YAMAMOTO has resigned as an executive Director due to
work adjustment; Mr. Shuichi HAYASHI was elected as an executive
Director at the 2018 annual general meeting to succeed Mr. Etsuo
YAMAMOTO as an executive Director. Other directors (including Mr.
LUO Yuguang, Mr. Keiichiro MAEGAKI, Mr. Masanori OTA, Mr. LI Juxing,
Mr. XU Song, Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. SONG Xiaojiang, Mr. LIU Tianni and Mr.
LIU Erh Fei) retired at the 2018 annual general meeting upon expiry of
their term of office and were re-elected as Directors of the new session
of the Board.

2RI IRIA B R AR Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board of the Company is
comprised of 10 Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. LUO Yuguang (Chairman)

Mr. Shuichi HAYASHI (Vice Chairman and General Manager)
Mr. Keiichiro MAEGAKI

Mr. Masanori OTA

Mr. LI Juxing

Mr. XU Song

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LONG Tao

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang
Mr. LIU Tianni

Mr. LIU Erh Fei

Biographical particulars of the Directors are set out in the section headed
"“Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management”
in this annual report.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, all the Directors,
including independent non-executive Directors, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years, and their re-
election is subject to a vote of the Shareholders.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
each of the existing independent non-executive Directors in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with
the Listing Rules.

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION OF THE BOARD

The Board determines the overall strategies of the Company, and
monitors the performance of the senior management and the related
risks and control systems so as to achieve the development objectives
of the Company. Day-to-day management of the Company is delegated
to the executive Directors and the senior management, who are required
to report back to the Board. All the members of the Board have separate
and independent access to the senior management, and are provided
with full and timely information about the conduct of the business
and development of the Company, including monthly reports and
recommendations on significant matters.

The Board has delegated some of its functions to the committees under
the Board, and will seek independent and professional advices from them
in respect of related matters.
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EEgRRRHESR BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE
EESTHRTEERI AR RNTE L EE The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating

R WA RRERE - RZZE—N\F - AR performance of the Company and to discuss future strategy. In 2018, the
AIBRATI2REFEEE  NIASESR Company held 12 Board meetings, and the attendance record of each

ZE-NFHEEFERNDFLHE Director at the board meetings in 2018 is set out below:
BEARHEE

= HoSHESE FERB SWMRB(T1)
Attendance in Person/ Attendance by Proxy/

Directors Number of Meetings Number of Meetings (Note 7)

RiTEE

Executive Directors

BFNRGEEFEER) 11/ 1/1

Mr. LUO Yuguang (Chairman)

BBE—BRSAE

Mr. Keiichiro MAEGAKI

RNHEIELEE

Mr. Masanori OTA

AR e (M= —\F 1 A =1 B (Wi72)

Mr. Etsuo YAMAMOTO
(resigned on 30 May 2018) (Note 2)

MWE— ik (BIEFERRAGHTE)
(RZZE—-N\FHA=THEZMD

Mr. Shuichi HAYASHI (Vice Chairman and General
Manager)(appointed on 30 May 2018)

FEENAE

Mr. LI Juxing

(R

Mr. XU Song

WIAFRITES

Independent executive Directors
b

Mr. LONG Tao

RNTHEE

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang

Bl Rt

Mr. LIU Erh Fei

ZIRRFZE

Mr. LIU Tianni

B 1. BEARANDASERESE — E?E Notes:

o ESEAT L E SR
TUBEERABEBRALFES
B -

2. szﬁm%?ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ P RRRIERTT
TIREZEEH -

1.

10/10
9/9

A

9/9

12/12

10/10

12/12
10/10
12/12

12/12

2/2
3/3

2/2

0/0

0/0

2/2

0/0
2/2
0/0

0/0

Pursuant to Article 103 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, where a Director is unable to attend the board
meetings due to certain cause, he may in writing appoint other
Director to attend the board meetings on his/her behalf.

Prior to the resignation of Mr. Etsuo YAMAMOTO, the Company

held three board meetings.
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At the board meetings, the Board reviewed significant matters including
the Company’s annual and interim financial statements, annual budget,
proposals for final and interim dividends, annual report and interim report.
At least 14 days' notice is given to all directors for all regular board
meetings and all directors are given the opportunity to include matters for
discussion in the agenda. The agenda and board papers for each meeting
are sent to all directors at least 3 days in advance of every regular board
meeting. All minutes of the board meetings are kept by the company
secretary and are available to all directors for inspection.

There is no material financial, business, family, or other relationship
between any two members of the Board.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. ZOU Guanghua and Mr. TUNG Tat Chiu Michael were appointed as
company secretaries for PRC and Hong Kong affairs respectively on 27
May 2016 and 28 April 1994. Mr. ZOU Guanghua is a full time employee
of the Company, and works as the Chief Financial Officer of the Group.
He is familiar with the daily routine of the Company.

Mr. TUNG Tat Chiu Michael is a practicing lawyer in Hong Kong and
the senior partner of Tung & Co., the Hong Kong legal adviser of the
Company, and a China Appointed Attesting officer. He holds a B.A.
degree in law and accounting from the University of Manchester, the
United Kingdom. He has over 20 years of experience as a practicing
lawyer in Hong Kong. Mr. TUNG is also the company secretary of a
number of companies listed in Hong Kong. Although Mr. TUNG is not an
employee of the Company, he has been appointed by the Board to advise
on legal and governance-related issues. The primary corporate contact
person of the Company is Mr. ZOU Guanghua, the company secretary for
the PRC affairs.

As confirmed respectively by Mr. ZOU Guanghua and Mr. TUNG Tat Chiu
Michael, they had taken the relevant professional trainings for no less
than 15 hours during the year of 2018.

CHAIRMAN AND GENERAL MANAGER

Mr. LUO Yuguang and Mr. Shuichi HAYASHI hold the positions of
Chairman of the Board and General Manager respectively, which are two
clearly separate positions.

The Chairman is responsible for leading, and overseeing the operations of
the Board, effectively planning the board meetings and ensuring that the
Board is acting in the best interests of the Company. The Chairman shall
proactively encourage directors to fully participate in the Board's affairs
and make contribution to the functions of the Board. The Board, under
the Chairman’s leadership, has adopted good corporate governance
practices and procedures and has taken appropriate steps to maintain
effective communication with the shareholders.
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The General Manager is responsible for managing the business of the
Company, as well as formulating and implementing the Company’s
policies and is answerable to the Board in relation to the overall
management of the Company. The General Manager of the Company
works in close association with other executive directors and the
administration team of each core business division, ensuring the funding
requirements of the business of the Company are sufficiently met and
at the same time closely monitors the operation and financial results of
the Company according to business plans and budgets, and advises the
Board on matters in relation to the Company’s development. The General
Manager of the Company is required to keep close communication
with the Chairman and all directors to keep them fully informed of all
substantive matters relating to the Company’s business development,
and is also responsible for building and maintaining a highly efficient
administrative support team to support him to discharge the assigned
duties in this position.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Each newly appointed director is provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company's operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities
under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.

Directors’ training is an ongoing process. During the year, directors
are provided with monthly updates on the Company’s performance,
position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each director
to discharge their duties. In addition, all directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company updates directors on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
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RESRHENGLE  EFHE-F—N\F1+= According to the records provided by the directors, a summary of the

A=+—HIFEEZFIOBMEBHOT : trainings received by the directors for the year ended 31 December 2018
is as follows:

= o1l o

Directors Type of Trainings

BiTES

Executive Directors

BFHEE(EER) AC

Mr. LUO Yuguang (Chairman)

AR (R ZZE—N\FRA=THET) C

Mr. Masanori OTA (resigned on 30 May 2018)

WE—SE(GIEFRRGFE) RN_ZE—N\FRAA=THEEZMD) A,C

Mr. Shuichi HAYASHI (Vice Chairman and General Manager)

(appointed on 30 May 2018)
BBE—BRAE B,C
Mr. Keiichiro MAEGAKI
RNHEIELEE C
Mr. Masanori OTA
FEENAE C
Mr. LI Juxing
RN C
Mr. XU Song

BIUAFRTESE

Independent Non-executive Directors

REREAE A,B,C
Mr. LONG Tao

KRNI A AC
Mr. SONG Xiaojiang

2I=FRSTE A,C
Mr. LIU Erh Fei

BIR(R LA AC
Mr. LIU Tianni

et - Notes:
A. HEENE R LTS &R - A.  Attending briefing sessions and/or seminars and/or forums.

B. aENe R/ Ee R, SmiE FERE B. Making speeches at briefing sessions and/or seminars and/or forums.
e

C. MEAMLE —MREK ZEFWE LW C. Reading seminar materials or magazines and updates relating to

BASKEMEREERA TN EENHTE economy, general business, directors’ responsibilities and the

MBI SEFERETFER - Listing Rules or the latest development of other applicable regulatory
requirements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

Three committees have been set up by the Board, namely, the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Audit Committee. The Board is responsible for discharging corporate
governance functions as set forth in the Corporate Governance Code.
Sufficient resources are provided to enable the board committees to
undertake their specific roles.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established its nomination committee on 26 March 2012
with the terms of reference. The nomination committee is comprised of
four independent non-executive Directors (namely Mr. LONG Tao, Mr.
SONG Xiaojiang, Mr. LIU Tianni and Mr. LIU Erh Fei) and one executive
director (namely Mr. LUO Yuguang). Mr. LUO Yuguang, an executive
Director, serves as the chairman of the nomination committee, and
is responsible for the nomination of the Directors. The committee is
delegated by the Board to formulate the policies for the nomination of
Directors and establish the procedures for the nomination of Directors
and the standards for the selection and recommendation of Directors. It is
also responsible for the review of the structure, size and composition of
the Board and the assessment of the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors. Directors shall be elected at the shareholders’
general meeting for a term of three years. Upon expiry of the term, a
Director shall be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, all Directors are
appointed for a specific term. At the annual general meeting held on 30
May 2018, Mr. Etsuo YAMAMOTO resigned as an executive Director and
Mr. Shuichi HAYASHI was appointed as an executive Director.

The nomination committee held three meetings in 2018. It reviewed
the structure, number and composition of the Board, assessed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors, and made
recommendations to the Board on the formulation of board diversity
policy.
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The attendance record of the members of the nomination committee at
the meetings held in 2018 is set out below:

HEE FRRAB

Attendance/Number of Meetings

BITES
Executive Director
BTFREE

Mr. LUO Yuguang

WIERTESE

Independent Non-executive Directors
L pia

Mr. LONG Tao

KRNI R4

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang

Bl Rk

Mr. LIU Erh Fei

BIRR R

Mr. LIU Tianni
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FEER A SASEVE B - 281 A0 R FE BB A A

3/3

3/3
3/3
3/3

3/3

After discussing and understanding the demand for filling the vacancy for
directorship of the Company while balancing the board diversity policy,
the nomination committee identifies appropriate candidates for directors
through various channels (including in the Group, through the nomination
of shareholders and in the market out of the Group). After obtaining the
approval from the director on the nomination, the nomination committee
will assess his qualifications, academic degree, professional ethics,
relevant experience, independence and whether he can coordinate with
the future development plan of the Company, devote time and efforts in
performing his duties and responsibilities as well as the current structure
of the board. The nomination committee will make recommendations to
the board on the appointment of a new director after the completion of
the assessment.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established its remuneration committee on 20 April 2006.
The remuneration committee is comprised of four independent non-
executive Directors (namely Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. SONG Xiaojiang, Mr.
LIU Erh Fei and Mr. LIU Tianni) and one executive Director (namely Mr.
LUO Yuguang). The remuneration committee is chaired by Mr. SONG
Xiaojiang.

The main duties of the remuneration committee shall be: (a) to make
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for the
remuneration of all directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy; (b) to review and approve the management'’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals
and objectives; (c)(i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management; or (ii) to make recommendations to the Board on the
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Remuneration Bands (RMB)

remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management; (d) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the group; (e) to review and approve the compensation
payable to executive Directors and senior management for any loss or
termination of their office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent
with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive; (f) to
review and approve compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or
removal of Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent
with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and
(g) to make recommendations to the board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors.

The Company has adopted a model to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration package of individual executive Directors and
senior management.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band for
the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:

0%250,000
250,001 %£350,000

Bt LFARENSREBAEDNEEERE
=LMES -

FMEZRERN —F— \FRITTIRGHE 3
BIYENTEFENFMREESREZZE N
BERIMTEERSRERAERFTEHHFEMN
ERERLEE  TIAFMZEERKEN
T \FHESHNHLFLHE -

AB

Number of persons

0 to 250,000 4
250,001 to 350,000 3

Note: The members of the senior management disclosed above refer to those
employees other than directors and supervisors.

The remuneration committee held three meetings in 2018. It made
recommendations to the Board on the remunerations of the independent
non-executive directors and the specific remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management. The attendance
record of the members of the remuneration committee at the meetings
held in 2018 is set out below:

4] HEE EHERH
Members Attendance/Number of Meetings
BiTES

Executive Director

BFYEE 3/3
Mr. LUO Yuguang

WIAFRITES

Independent Non-executive Directors

v 3/3
Mr. LONG Tao

RANTHE(F/E) 3/3
Mr. SONG Xiaojiang (Chairman)

Bl —REE 3/3
Mr. LIU Erh Fei

ZIRGTEE 3/3

Mr. LIU Tianni



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERERE

ARFER EMRAIKIBZZ BRI ATHE
BEHE BRZEemIBFNTES
MK P EE T MY B RERAR R
BRI RAER - EREEGHR/ NI LEERE
FXE - Rt E A RIAREBEL - BI-RE
ERBIRERE

ERZEBeNBERESRRAEEFRRERI
BPEFHE  EBARRAMEHERE
it - BERARANMBEANERE  FEA
RAEIAEIE - BERRRER EIMNPES 2
HAE -

BERZEER T \FETT2ReH &
BARR —T—tFEEEREN_T—/\F
EHRBMEERS - THABRZEEREN
T \FHFEERNHFLE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with specific terms
of reference in accordance with the Listing Rules. The audit committee
is comprised of four independent non-executive Directors, who possess
appropriate commercial and financial skills and experience to understand
financial statements. The audit committee is chaired by Mr. SONG
Xiaojiang and other members are Mr. LONG Tao, Mr. LIU Erh Fei and Mr.
LIU Tianni.

The terms of reference of the audit committee include the duties to
recommend the engagement and replacement of external audit firms,
oversee the Company’s internal auditing system and implementation,
verify the Company’s financial information and disclosure, examine
the Company's internal control system, and take charge and act as a
communication channel between internal and external auditors.

The audit committee held two meetings in 2018. It reviewed the final
results for 2017 and the interim results for 2018. The attendance record
of the members of the audit committee at the meetings in 2018 is set
out below:

241 HEE FRRH
Members Attendance/Number of Meetings
WIERTESE

Independent Non-executive Directors

EEKE 202
Mr. LONG Tao

KRNI E(FE) 2/2
Mr. SONG Xiaojiang (Chairman)

BI=FREE 2/2
Mr. LIU Erh Fei

ZIRRFRE 2/2

Mr. LIU Tianni
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board adopted the Terms of Reference for Corporate Governance
set out in Code D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Code as the terms
of reference for the Board to perform their duties in relation to corporate
governance on 26 March 2012, which include developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
making recommendations to the Board; reviewing and monitoring the
training and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management; reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) for the Company’s employees and directors;
and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During 2018, the Board has performed the corporate governance function
as mentioned above.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the ultimate responsibility in overseeing the operation of
all business units under the Company’'s management. It shall appoint
suitable qualified personnel to serve on the boards of all subsidiaries
operating in key business areas, attending their board meetings to
oversee the operations of these companies. The management in each
business division is accountable for the operations and performance of
the business within its area of responsibility.

The Company’'s management has implemented a system of internal
control to provide reasonable assurance that the Group’'s assets are
safeguarded, proper accounting records are maintained, applicable laws
and regulations are complied with, reliable financial information are
provided for the Company’'s management for publication purposes and
investment and business risks affecting the Group are identified and
properly managed.

The Board is responsible to ensure a sound and effective risk
management and internal control system to safeguard investments of
Shareholders and assets of the Group and provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against the risks of material misstatement or loss,
and to manage but not eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives.
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The Board review the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries at least once every
year. The scope of a review includes financial control, operation control,
compliance control and risks management functions. The Board will also
consider the adequacy of resources, staff qualification and experience,
training programs and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function. As at 27 March 2019, the Board has completed the
aforementioned review for 2018 and the Board is of the view that the
Company’s risk management and internal control systems can properly
and effectively safeguard the investments of the Shareholders and the
assets of the Group.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of its
obligations under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and
the Listing Rules and has established the inside information disclosure
policy with close regard to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” issued by the Securities and Futures Commission.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) contained in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors and supervisors. After specific enquiry with
all the Directors and supervisors of the Company, all Directors and
supervisors of the Company confirmed that they have completely
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout 2018.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The supervisory committee is comprised of two members, one of whom
is a representative of the Shareholders (namely Ms. MIN Qing) and one
of whom is the representative of the staff and workers (namely Mr. LEI
Bin). Mr. GUAN Jinming, the chairman of the Supervisory Committee,
resigned on 30 May 2018 and caused a temporary vacancy for the
position. In 2018, the supervisors of the Company exercised their right
of supervision in accordance with the laws to protect the legal interests
of the shareholders, the Company and the employees. The details of
the work of the Supervisory Committee are set out in the Supervisory
Committee’s Report in this annual report.
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The Supervisory Committee held one meeting in 2018. The attendance
record of the members of the Supervisory Committee at the meetings in
2018 is set out below:

HEE FRRAB

Attendance/Number of Meetings

BRARLEHES

Representatives of the Shareholders

BEREEFE) RS- \FRA=TH#MD

11

Mr. GUAN Jinming (Chairman) (resigned on 30 May 2018)

MEZ Lt
Ms. MIN Qing

RIRKKRHENES
Representative of the staff and workers
Mr. LEI Bin
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The external auditors currently appointed by the Company are the
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP
Chongging Branch and Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as its
PRC and international auditors respectively. In order to maintain their
independence, these accountants do not take on non-audit work.
The work the external auditors are engaged to perform must produce
measurable efficiency and added value to the Company and should not
cause adverse effect on the independence or independent standing of
their audit function. The remuneration of the auditor is disclosed in the
financial statements.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

With the assistance of the accounting department, the Board is
responsible for preparing the financial statements for each financial year
and ensuring that, in preparing such financial statements, appropriate
accounting policies are adopted and applied and the PRC accounting
standards and systems and International Financial Reporting Standards
are observed, to give a true and fair view of the financial position and
operating results of the Company. The statement of the auditor about
their responsibilities on the Group's financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 65 to 70.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS

After the announcement of the Company’s interim and annual financial
results, the Company has proactively arranged for briefing meetings for
people from the investment community at regular intervals, using the
opportunity to promote investor relations and two-way communication.
The Company, through the investor relations manager, responds to the
information requests and inquiries from the investment community.
The Company also publishes information such as the Company's
announcements and circulars on its website (www.qgingling.com.cn)
in a timely manner under the requirements of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

The Company encourages shareholders to attend the annual general
meeting in which the Chairman and directors will answer questions
about the Company’s business raised by shareholders. The Company
distributes annual and interim reports to shareholders in a timely manner
for their inspection.

During the year, the Company has convened two general meetings. The
attendance record of directors at the general meetings is set out below:

= HEE BRRAERE
Attendance in person/

Directors Number of General Meetings

RiTESE

Executive Directors

BFENEEEFR) 2/2

Mr. LUO Yuguang (Chairman)

AEE R4 2/2

Mr. Keiichiro MAEGAKI

KHIEREE 0/2

Mr. Masanori OTA

AR EE (RS- \FR A =1+ BT 0/1

Mr. Etsuo YAMAMOTO (resigned on 30 May 2018)
WE—FRE(BIEEFRREHE) R _Z— \FEA=THEZD 171
Mr. Shuichi HAYASHI (Vice Chairman and General Manager)

(appointed on 30 May 2018)
FEELAE
Mr. LI Juxing
TRIRSEAE
Mr. XU Song

BWIERTEE

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BEREE

Mr. LONG Tao

RNIHEE

Mr. SONG Xiaojiang

Bl Rk

Mr. LIU Erh Fei

PN

Mr. LIU Tianni

2/2

2/2

2/2
2/2
2/2

2/2
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The amendment to the articles of association were approved at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 12 December
2018, the amendment is mainly in respect of the change of the
Company's business scope. As at the date of this report, it has made an
application to the relevant authorities of the PRC for this amendment.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders of the
Company:

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

Pursuant to Article 80 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
two or more shareholders who hold an aggregate of 10% or more
of the shares carrying voting rights at the meeting proposed to be
held may, sign one or several written requisition in the same form
requesting the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting of
shareholders or a class meeting of shareholders, specifying the objects
of the meeting. Upon the receipt of the aforesaid written request(s),
the Board shall convene an extraordinary general meeting or a class
meeting of Shareholders as soon as possible. The number of the shares
held as aforesaid shall be calculated based on these shares held by the
Shareholders as at the date of the written requisition.

Where the Board fails to give a notice convening the meeting within
thirty days upon the receipt of the aforesaid written requisition, the
requisitionists may themselves convene a meeting, within four months
upon the receipt of the said requisition by the Board. A meeting convene
by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened by the Board.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of
the failure of the Board duly convene a meeting, shall be borne by the
Company and be deducted from the amounts payable by the Company to
such directors who were in default.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at shareholders’ general
meetings by shareholders

The content of a proposal shall be a matter that should be determined
by shareholders’ general meeting, which shall have definite topics to be
discussed and specific matters for resolution and shall be in line with the
laws and administrative regulations.
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Shareholders that independently or collectively hold more than 3% of
shares in the Company may make a temporary proposal and submit
it to the convener(s) in written form ten days prior to a shareholders’
general meeting. The convener(s) shall give a supplementary notice of
shareholders’ general meeting to announce the content of the temporary
proposal within two days upon receipt of the proposal.

Except as provided in the preceding paragraph, after sending out a notice
of shareholders’ general meeting, the convener(s) shall not make any
amendments to the proposals included in the notice or add any new
proposals.

The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
director is made available in the website of the Company.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board of the Company in writing through Mr. ZOU Guanghua, the
company secretary, whose contact details are as follows:

Mr. ZOU Guanghua

Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

1 Xiexing Cun, Zhongliangshan, Jiulongpo District, Chongging,
the People’s Republic of China

E-mail : hk1122@gingling.com.cn

Tel : (86) 23-65264125

Fax : (86) 68830397

The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholders’ enquiries and
concerns to the Board and/or relevant board committees of the Company,
where appropriate, to answer the shareholders’ questions.

In 2019, the Company will continue to dedicate efforts into enhancing the
standard of its corporate governance according to the ongoing regulatory
changes, development trend of the Company, and feedback opinions
from shareholders, ensuring a stable and healthy growth for the Company
while adding value to shareholders.

By Order of the Board
Z0U Guanghua
Company Secretary

Chongging, the PRC
27 March 2019
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To the Shareholders of Qingling Motors Co., Ltd.

(a Sino-foreign joint venture joint stock limited company incorporated in
the People’'s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Qingling
Motors Co., Ltd. (the “"Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 71 to 183, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code"), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

B8 HE D ARRE 2 7 Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF INVENTORIES

We identified the estimated impairment of inventories as a key audit
matter due to the management judgment required in the estimation
of the net realisable value, which is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated cost to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had inventories of approximately
RMB652,059,000 (net of write-down for inventories of approximately
RMB88,731,000), as disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements. In determining the net realisable value, the management of
the Company considers the historical selling prices of similar products,
the current market conditions, forecast usage and sales volume of similar
products.

Our procedures in relation to the impairment of inventories included:

° Obtaining an understanding of the Group's forecast usage, selling
prices and sales volume of inventories which are used by the
management in the estimation of the net realisable value;

° Considering the selling prices and sales volume of inventories
during the year ended 31 December 2018 and subsequent to the
year end and comparing this information with the Group's expected
selling prices and sales volume of inventories at year-end date;

° Challenging the assumptions of determining the estimated selling
prices and sales volume of forecast sales with reference to the
current market conditions and historical selling prices and sales
volume of similar products; and

° Comparing the cost of inventories at year-end date with the
estimated net realisable value and checking if adequate impairment
of inventories has been made.
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Independent Auditor's Report

PROVISION FOR LITIGATION

We identified provision for litigation as a key audit matter due to the
uncertainty and judgment involved in assessment of the adequacy of
provision.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group made a provision for litigation of
RMB80,000,000 in respect of a material legal proceeding of the Company
initiated by a bank which claimed to have suffered losses in respect of
a credit agreement entered into between a customer of the Company
and the bank. In determining the provision for litigation, the directors
of the Company reviewed all documents and agreements in relation
to this litigation and the court judgment dated 14 May 2018. Besides,
the directors of the Company also consider the possible outcome of an
appeal to Guangdong Province Higher People’s Court, the possible timing
and cash outflows for the litigation and the opinion of the Company’s
external PRC legal adviser. Details of uncertainty and judgment are set
out in note 4 while details of this litigation and provision therefor are also
set out in note 36.

Our procedures in relation to the provision for litigation included:

° Obtaining an understanding of the litigation, the court judgment and
the appeal by reviewing all relevant documents and agreements;

o Discussing the litigation, the court judgment and the appeal with
the Company’s management and external PRC legal adviser to
understand the Group’s possible liabilities and obtaining from them
the updated assessments of the possible outcome of the appeal;

o Obtaining the assessment of the possible timing and cash outflows
for the litigation by the directors of the Company and challenging
the material underlying assumptions and judgment; and

° Considering the adequacy of the provision for litigation and
appropriateness of disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor's Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is K.W. Yim.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HBE T\ F+ - HA=+—HIFE
For the Year ended 31 December 2018

gE BHE
ZE-)\E —TE—fF
+ZA=+—-B +ZA=+—H
ILLEE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
J(0k23 AREFT ARETFT
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
1§~ Revenue 5,6 5,253,252 5,073,336
HEMRAK Cost of sales (4,253,332) (4,151,846)
=7 Gross profit 999,920 921,490
HA Other income 285,060 223,597
BRI (kR A E) Impairment losses, net of reversal (1,210) 1,749
HFERIBLFE Other gains and losses, net (12,973) 174
D3R S E R AR Distribution and selling expenses (236,649) (226,758)
ERER Administrative expenses (262,824) (234,229)
MmEEA Research expenses (187,923) (124,137)
FAEE Provision for litigation 36 (80,000) =
DREE RANEF Share of profit of an associate 539 210
DMEBERREE Share of results of joint ventures 26,229 18,611
G3:0p ] Profit before tax 9 530,169 580,707
FriSfi sz Income tax expense 7 (68,654) (78,912)
FRRFIR Profit and total comprehensive
o= ¢ income for the year 461,515 501,795
THALEIGERRT Profit and total comprehensive
Rizeka - income attributable to:
RAREREBA Owners of the Company 453,772 496,926
FEE R R Non-controlling interests 7,743 4,869
461,515 501,795
FRERZF Basic earnings per share 14 RMBO0.18 RMB0.20
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

{—F—\F+-A=+—H
At 31 December 2018

RIE—N\FE HZZT—+F
+ZA=+—B +=A=1-~
At 31 December At 31 December

72

2018 2017
Mz ARBFT AREFr
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
ME - BERRE Property, plant and equipment 15 750,856 755,433
B LS Prepaid lease payments 16 36,677 38,060
REME Investment properties 17 28,901 30,917
BYAE Intangible assets 18 265,574 215,327
TEAHW*’“ Al Interest in an associate 19 7,801 7,262
REERRI 2R Interests in joint ventures 20 501,768 498,781
EERBEEE Deferred tax assets 21 23,384 31,752
1,614,961 1,577,632
mBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 22 652,059 632,989
JEUERTR - BRI R A bR IE Trade, bills and other receivables
RIBRFIE and prepayments 23 2,756,258 2,936,675
RS Prepaid lease payments 16 1,383 1,383
[REIEARBE=E A 2 RITER Bank deposits with original
maturity more than three
months 24 1,134,314 1,343,202
ZREIRITAER Restricted bank balances 25 79,999 79,999
RITHER - RITEBREIRE Bank deposits, bank balances
and cash 25 4,654,277 4,250,191
AR EIRIR Tax recoverable - 18
9,278,290 9,244,457
mEBRE Current liabilities
FERTBRTR - FERT SRR R Bt B (5 5RIE Trade, bills and other payables 26 2,169,853 2,731,936
BIEERE Tax liabilities 9,848 21,546
BHEE Contract liabilities 27 418,380 =
REAE Refund liabilities 28 84,316 -
2,682,397 2,753,482
nHEERE Net current assets 6,595,893 6,490,975
HEERTBHAR Total assets less current liabilities 8,210,854 8,068,507
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

(—F—\FF+=A=+—H
At 31 December 2018

RIE—N\FE HZZT—+F
+ZA=+—B +=A=1-~
At 31 December At 31 December

2018 2017
st AR¥FiT ARETFT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B R % fid Capital and reserves
BRA Share capital 29 2,482,268 2,482,268
PN Share premium and reserves 5,331,605 5,276,035
RArEmER ABGLER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 7,813,873 7,758,303
IR Non-controlling interests 310,241 304,544
gans Total equity 8,124,114 8,062,847
FERBAR Non-current liabilities
EIEWA Deferred income
— B8 - governments grants 30 6,740 5,660
AR Provision for litigation 36 80,000 =
86,740 5,660
8,210,854 8,068,507

FINERFI1BE LT EMBHRER=ZZE—N The consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 183 were approved
FZA-TLREESSIERRERT I and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2019 and

A TIESREES are signed on its behalf by:
*EE BEE Li Juxing DIRECTOR
iR EF Xu Song DIRECTOR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BHE2—F—\F+-H=+—HIFFZE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

FLTRERAARKER
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
EELARE HELES FEREG
K% REBE BFLHE  Statutory Discretionary  RHRH Non-  E&HE
Share Share  Capital  surplus  surplus  Retained @it controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve fund reserve fund profits Total interests equity

NBETT NREFT AREFT AREFT AEEFr ARETT AREFr AREFT AREFT
AMBO00  RMBOO0  AMBOOO  RMBOOO  AMBUO0  RMBOOO  AMBU00  RMBOO0  AMB000
Wz R WEw)
Note) — Note 11) (Note 12)

-t5-A-H At1 January 2017 2482268 1,764,905 572,239 1,049,035 2347 1,787,746 7,658,540 301,349 7,959,889
iMﬂ FaEkE Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - 496,926 496,926 4,869 501,795
EEAR Appropriation for the year S S - 49280 - (9280 - - -
FHZF-RERERE 2016 final dividend paid
W13 Note 13) S = = - - (397163 (397,163) - (3977163
—FEHBATRES SR Dividend paid by a subsidiary to
eSS its non-controling shareholder 5 5 = 5 5 5 = 1,674) (1,674)
“Z—+E+-A=t-H At31 December 2017 2482268 1,764,905 572,239 1,098315 2347 1838229 7758303 304544 8,062,847
¢WMJ&@¢., e Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - 453,772 453,772 7,743 461,515
EEAR Appropriation for the year 5 5 - 44885 - (4880 - - -
FHZF-LERERE 2017 final dividend paid
Wit13) ote 13) - = - - - (B97963)  1397,163) - (397169
—FMBLAAAESESER  Dividend paid by a subsidiary to
REL RS its non-controling shareholder S 5 = = = = = (2,046 (2,046

= A

—FAELEAHRLT Loss on merger of a business
SRERRAREERE  contributed by the Company's
HERUAMEELMEE  ultimate holding company and

(Wizt20) substantial shareholder by a oint

venture (Note 20) - - (1,039 - - - (1,039 - (1,039
“5—\E+ZA=1-H At31December 2018 2,482,268 1,764,905 571,200 1,143,180 2347 1849973 7813873 310241 8124114
Bag: BRALAEESETERE —SFHARE Note: The capital reserve mainly includes an amount of approximately
572,206,000t (ZEE—+F : ARK RMB572,206,000 (2017: RMB572,206,000) which represents
572,206,000C) X8 - TEEEEERE the excess of the value of the net assets immediately before the
PR ENBEARAANTEKRIIHER A establishment of the Company injected into the Company by E§%
i(ig)ﬁﬁEQT(f}gﬁA%@J A& SE (£ E) AR 2 F("Qingling Group” - ultimate holding company
BESKRIEBRARRESAEAR AT of the Group) and E$4/5E B A7 as part of the reorganisation in
WAKRRD A E’] BEFZEUEA—LALTE 1994 which was approved by the State Administration of State-owned
FEHH D 0 LEARD B KB Assets, over the nominal value of the 1,500,000,000 shares issued

Fr2$171,500,000,000 X E B A R upon establishment of the Company of RMB1,500,000,000.

1,500,000,0007C 2 FBH EB 5 ©
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BZ_F—\FF+_HA=1—HIFEZE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

BEZB-\FE HE_TLF
+ZA=+—-R t-A=1—H

J1:3: 4 LFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ARETFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEER OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BREE A& A Profit before tax 530,169 580,707
EIEFHE Adjustments for:
FISHA Interest income (191,996) (172,988)
915%5%’2\ Al Share of profit of an associate (539) (210)
DMERELNREE Share of results of joint ventures (26,229) (18,611)
R ST 50 e LA B W R TR (S 98 (1 (D) Impairment loss (reversal) on trade
and other receivables 1,210 (1,749
FEMRZETEEEE Write-down of inventories to
net realisable value - 108,953
WE - BEREETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 46,007 48,231
B AERH Amortisation of intangible assets 27,080 26,435
A ki S Release of prepaid lease payments 1,383 1,383
BEMERE Depreciation of investment properties 2,016 2,015
HEWE - BE REE 2 EETE Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment, net 3,779 203
i 5 (es) B5 1B 550 Net foreign exchange (gain) loss (624) 527
BEECHABICREERHER Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital 392,256 574,896
FEEM Increase in inventories (19,070) (154,786)
EBER - ERER KA MEKFIE Decrease (increase) in trade, bills
R FRIE R (2 0) and other receivables and prepayments 207,631 (453,399)
FERTERR « B B4R e Eo At A SRR OB ) 32 (Decrease) increase in trade, bills
and other payables (82,593) 492,591
AR EEM Increase in contract liabilities 46,196 =
REBAERD Decrease in refund liabilities (7,305) =
SFrEAB L N Increase in provision for litigation 80,000 =
KEEBEHRS Cash generated from operations 617,115 459,302
B PETTIA Income taxes paid (71,966) (69,464)
HERBFERLPH NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 545,149 389,838
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

B2 —F—\F1 - A=1—HIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2018

BEZB-\FE HE_TLF
+ZA=+—-R t-A=1—H

LEE LFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ARETFT AREFT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
BREES INVESTING ACTIVITIES
FEARIEBBB=EA ZRITER Placement of bank deposits with original
maturity more than three months (1,606,423) (2,230,554)
R HABB=EAZRITER Withdrawal of bank deposits with original
maturity more than three months 1,820,554 3,910,396
WEEME - BB &% Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (51,269) (62,988)
WiEEPEE Acquisition of intangible assets (94,148) (3,878)
FBUA Interest received 186,753 200,828
HEME - BEREEMERE Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 975 5,367
A EBR C BT A Government grants received related to
assets 1,080 5,660
REEBRBHLRHE NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 257,522 1,824,831
MEES FINANCING ACTIVITIES
ERRE Dividends paid (397,163) (397,163)
B —FENB A RM IR RS Dividends paid to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary (2,046) (1,674)
MEXEBRARS CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (399,209) (398,837)
HeRBASEEMENBH NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 403,462 1,815,832
R—B—HZBRERELERED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1
JANUARY 4,250,191 2,434,886
DM R ez RBZEREDNTE Effects of exchange rate changes on
the balance of cash held in foreign
currencies 624 (627)
R+ZBE+—BZHERHALEEN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31
DECEMBER,
EPSRTHER « RITHBERAS represented by bank deposits, bank
balances and cash 4,654,277 4,250,191
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B2 —ZF—\F+-HA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

1. GENERAL

Qingling Motors Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is a sino-foreign joint venture
joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC") with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company is 1 Xiexing
Cun, Zhong Liang Shan, Jiu Long Po District, Chongqing, the PRC. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
are the production and sale of Isuzu light-duty trucks, multi-purposes
vehicles, pick-up trucks, medium and heavy-duty trucks, chassis and
automobile parts, accessories and others.

The parent and ultimate holding company of the Company is Qingling
Group (a state-owned enterprise established in Chongging, the PRC).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB")
which is also the functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effect for
the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration
Amendments to HKFRS 2 Clarification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions
Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

ERERMD AR AR Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE2—F—\F+-H=+—HIFFZE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. ERERMBEREEN(ES 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

MBREEA])ZHMITRER TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
x (18 STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) (CONTINUED)
HEFERNERZEESMEREENZHET New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effect for
BRAEETH(1R) the current year (Continued)
AN - REEBRFEAT BV RS ELE In addition, the Group has early applied Amendments to HKFRS 9

S (BRI AV AR B R AT 50 - TS Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation which will be
EfmE - ZBEAER-_Z—-NF—-—H—BH mandatorily effective for the Group for the financial year beginning on 1
95 B B B T R I AR K January 2019.

BRIICETIAON - RAFERAST BT BRESE Except as described below, the application of the amendments to
B Z SRR N BARNE R AR E 2 M5 & HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group's
WRAR RS2 E A R FTE E financial performance and positions for the current and prior years and/or
EERNERNTE - on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

2.1 BEBHBEHREERFISHEFEERSH 2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
ZEA

NEBNRKREE G NERESUBGHELERF The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the current year.
16558 « BB KREEREI5ENREES HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction

HERE18EMA C BAEGIEAE115RE Contracts and the related interpretations.

LFEHRIBRRE o

AEECENEREEMBRELRSE 15 The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the cumulative
8 MEANERZERMN B ER Y N ER effect of initially applying this Standard recognised at the date of initial
B -Z—)\F—A—H#ER REIERE application, 1 January 2018. Any difference at the date of initial application
EIEiﬂ’q{ﬂﬁj%%ﬁﬁé%ﬁ%}ﬂ%%}jﬁ%lj(gjﬂgﬁéa’g is recognised in the opening retained profits (or other components
H BRI (Rn@EM)) PR - WEES of equity, as appropriate) and comparative information has not been
WER o WA - RIBBBMBMELAE15 restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the transition provisions in
FEHPEE RS AEEIRIEEUEE - HKFRS 15, the Group has elected to apply the Standard retrospectively
—\F—HA—HRERTHRNE LB ERZE only to contracts that are not completed at 1 January 2018. Accordingly,
B - ARLEEBER IIRIER S HERIFE18 certain comparative information may not be comparable as comparative
SENA RBEREBEE - AE THEER T information was prepared under HKAS 18 Revenue and the related
BE BRI o interpretations.

REEBERAKREUTHRPANEENEZENR The Group recognises revenue from the following major sources which
TRZWA - arise from contracts with customers:

o HERAEAE . Sales of light-duty trucks

o HEZ IR 8 o Sales of multi-purposes vehicles

o HERRE o Sales of pick-up trucks

o  HEPHEREBHES e Sales of medium and heavy-duty trucks

o HERA o Sales of chassis

o HERESH -« 2B REAM o Sales of automobile parts, accessories and others
ERERNEENBAIS NN EREEIT GRS Information about the Group's performance obligations and the
RIE1BR TSI B 5T ER 2 B R 9 B B accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 15 are disclosed
PR FES R FIFES © in notes 5 and 3 respectively.
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BZ_F—\FF+_HA=1—HIFEZE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effect for
the current year (Continued)

2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15

There was no material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue
recognised upon adoption of HKFRS 15. The adoption of HKFRS 15 in
current year also did not result in any material impact on retained profits
at 1 January 2018 and revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The following adjustments were made to the amounts recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at 1 January 2018. Line items
that were not affected by the changes have not been included.

FAR-E—t4F REEEUBRE
+_H_+ A EH|F 1550
BSREREE —F-/\¥-A-AR
Carrying amounts SIREREE
previously reported Carrying amounts
at 31 December EH75%  under HKFRS 15 at
2017 Reclassification 1 January 2018
it AREF NEETT ARETFT
Note RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
REBRAR Current Liabilities
ERER  BENREREMERFUE Trade, hills and other payables a 2,731,936 (463,805) 2,268,131
AHER Contract liabilities a = 372,184 372,184
BEAE Refund liabilities a = 91,621 91,621
Kzt - Notes -
(a) R-ZE—NE—A—H LRt AEME (@) As at 1 January 2018, advances from customers of RMB463,805,000

P BNERREAEMRENTERE SR
B AR#463,805,000LEFHEAEGNA
BEARY372,184,000c R REBEBARK
91,621,0007T °

o) AREABEREIRSELEEINEE_ZT )N
FH_A=1+—AULFEELNRERE
EEBECHREBENAR EXREAN_F
;ﬁgﬁ—ﬂ — B EIYIAR & ISR R TT

TR FE R BTSSR EERF 165G A
EER T N\F+-A=+—BNEREHS
RREZAEEEENFE - REFENHEB X
TR o

previously included in trade, bills and other payables were reclassified
to contract liabilities of RMB372,184,000 and refund liabilities of
RMB91,621,000 respectively.

(b) For the purposes of reporting cash flows from operating activities under
indirect method for the year ended 31 December 2018, movements in
working capital have been computed based on opening consolidated
statement of financial position as at 1 January 2018 as disclosed above.

The following table summarises the impacts of applying HKFRS 15 on the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018 for each of the line items affected. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.

ERERMD AR AR Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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BHE2—F—\F+-H=+—HIFFZE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. ERERMBEREEN(ES 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

MBEHREEN ] ZHETRERT TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

% (#8) STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)
HAEFEERAENCEEMBFREENZHET New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effect for
RAEET & (#8) the current year (Continued)

2.1 BEBHBEHREERNFISHEREEFERSH 2.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Continued)

ZIA (#8)
B A B A B 2 Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position
[ERE BT
WEAERIE 155
RIS
Amount without
Kk B gy application of
As reported Ad]ustment* HKFRS 15
ARKETFT ARETFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
mBRE Current Liabilities
JERERIR BN 4R K Eoph fE A 5008 Trade, bills and other payables 2,169,853 502,696 2,672,549
AHEE Contract liabilities 418,380 (418,380) -
REAE Refund liabilities 84,316 (84,316) -
HiraHenEXmgZE Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows
[ER BB
HEARIE155
AR &
Amount without
FReRE HER B application of
As reported Adjustment* HKFRS 15
ARETFT ARETFT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EEES OPERATING ACTIVITIES
FERTERIR - B RE Decrease in trade, bills and
R ptb S FOR R A other payables (82,593) 38,891 (43,702)
AR B EIEM Increase in contract liabilities 46,196 (46,196) -
REBERD Decrease in refund liabilities (7,305) 7,305 -
* S ERAEME FEUS AR -2 —+F & The nature of the adjustments is similar to the reclassification made to
+ - A=1+—H3ENEEEETETD the carrying amounts previously reported as at 31 December 2017.
¥ o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effect for
the current year (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
and the related consequential amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9
introduces new requirements for 1) the classification and measurement
of financial assets and financial liabilities, 2) expected credit losses
("ECL") for financial assets and 3) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the transition
provisions set out in HKFRS 9. i.e. applied the classification and
measurement requirements (including impairment) retrospectively to
instruments that have not been derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date
of initial application) and has not applied the requirements to instruments
that have already been derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The difference
between carrying amounts as at 31 December 2017 and the carrying
amounts as at 1 January 2018 are recognised in the opening retained
profits and other components of equity, without restating comparative
information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be comparable
as comparative information was prepared under HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments. Recognition and Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9 are disclosed
in note 3.

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9

As at 1 January 2018, the directors of the Company reviewed and
assessed the Group's existing financial assets for impairment using
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue
cost or effort in accordance with the requirements of HKFRS 9.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure ECL
which uses a lifetime ECL for trade and bills receivables. To measure
the ECL, trade and bills receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and have been individually assessed based on
internal credit rating, customers’ ageing and historical observed default
rates over the expected life of the customers and adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.

B8 HE D ARRE 2 7 Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effect for
the current year (Continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Loss allowances for other financial assets at amortised cost mainly
comprise of other receivables, bank deposits with original maturity more
than three months, restricted bank balances, bank deposits and bank
balances, are measured on 12-month ECL (*12m ECL") basis and there
had been no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company, additional
impairment loss on the Group's trade, bills and other receivables, bank
deposits with original maturity more than three months, restricted bank
balances, bank deposits and bank balances recognised under HKFRS 9 as
at 1 January 2018 was insignificant.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 16 Leases’
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?®
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'’

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business®

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
and HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of Material®

Amendments to HKAS 19  Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement!

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle'

Amendments to HKFRSs
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

A Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

& Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the

acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020

e Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

Except for the new HKFRS 16 Leases below, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of all other new and amendments
to HKFRSs and interpretations will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of
lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and
lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related
interpretation when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the basis of
whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer. Distinctions
of operating leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

$& BB P AR AR Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently
measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as
the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments
as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and
those classified as investment properties while other operating lease
payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated
into a principal and an interest portion which will be presented as
financing cash flows by the Group, upfront prepaid lease payments
will continue to be presented as investing or operating cash flows in
accordance with the nature, as appropriate.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised prepaid lease
payments for leasehold lands where the Group is a lessee. The
application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification
of these assets depending on whether the Group presents right-of-use
assets separately or within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable to lessor,
HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a
lease either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of RMB40,094,000 (2017: RMB67,817,000) as disclosed
in note 35, including RMB38,160,000 is generated from one-year leases.
A preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all
these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

The application of new requirements may result in changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above. The
Group intends to elect the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to
contracts that were previously identified as lease applying HKAS 17 and
not applying this standard to contracts that were not previously identified
as containing a lease applying HKAS 17. Therefore the Group will not
reassess whether the contracts are, or contain a lease which already
existed prior to the date of initial application. Furthermore, the Group
intends to elect the modified retrospective approach for the application
of HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial
application to opening retained profits without restating comparative
information.

$& BB P AR AR Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in use in HKAS 36 /mpairment of
Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.



3. FEEHBRGE

BEAERHIAT -
ReakEEE

FAVBBRERBEARRREE 2 B KK
BRRZFE®MEK » WEATIER - BIARRF]
BRI

AHRBEHRITERES

ALRR AL R £ BT TEERAE
EEAREH K

o HENETEERIMPZEZFLR -

HEFEXEAB T LA =REHREF A
—HYAEHBREH  AREEENTEEE
BEHREHR -

REENIESH B A RIE RSN B A Rl4R
AR WK EME R A BRI A
% BREmME  RAFEANBARTEE ZHE
NEIZWARRY - IHEAEEESITSEE
ARREAEBAEMBATIEHEE AL - &5
ANFEEEREMEEKERA -

BRIk EtEERE 2 SERE DEBRAR
AIER ANOEmR S - IMB AR 2 2
BEDEBNAREEA AR - B
E RS EBOHE RS E L BANERS o

MEBARZHMBRENEFTREA TELRA
B UEESHBREARESF R 5 -

PEEBARRREERERE - # - WA -

xHRBER(EALZERBERARZRSE
BN GARER TUZEEH -

BB 2 A RS A B P 1
M5 ERNABE AR BRI
SRR B AR A B FEZ AN B
WS -

,.\m 7f ﬁ&#ﬁ%:z Bﬁ ;I

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BZ_F—\FF+_HA=1—HIFEZE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The principal accounting policies are set out as below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and
its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately from
the Group's equity therein, which represent present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements of associates and joint
ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net assets of the
associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in
ownership interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group's interest in that
associate or joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate
or joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the investment
over the Group’'s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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3. FESrIBEE) 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

REBEAFIREGELEZREM) Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

AEBETEREHFERE B BB RN — M The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that the

NANA SRR O] seF A R E - a0 interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired. When any
GEEMNREERE  ZBERENEIERE objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(BIEER)SREBE 2 ERIE369AE— (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36

BEMAFXETRENS - FERHLEER] as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
W[l & 58 (BNE AEEE A A EER DS A in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
&S E) BEREE - TR EE Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of
BERZERENEREEAEN— - B@ERE the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
BRI IR IR IR E R AT e S5 A accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
BIEIMERA TIRBEE S GTERE 365 1 the investment subsequently increases.

7
A ©

MAEBHBE NG THEEATE  AAK When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate

FAHEZREHR 2 2HER  EEZRE or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of
YRR IR PR o AR E{RE R pIEE the entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
NARABCEZEEAZREERA—BE recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
BB EERNBRBERN SrEE - A former associate or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial
AEEERZARAABETEREER - asset within the scope of HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained
ZARBEESRARVPERR I AAEE - interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
B AR EECE 2 REEREMNREER value on initial recognition. The difference between the carrying amount
MHEBE AR A &P EEERTER of the associate or joint venture, and the fair value of any retained
BARBEBZZE  SRETHEZBER interest and any proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest in the
Al A B EZ WS EBR AR o tboh - R associate or joint venture is included in the determination of the gain or
EEgBLAEEMEEREHZEE A RIH loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the Group
AEPEBRIMASBALR - EEHEZEE accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
AASAECEEELEHBEERBEMR income in relation to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as
EXAR - Bt - Wi A nlkEe gL would be required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed
AIEREMEEWERER 2 WmsEE - 2n of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
HERBEERBEREN BB &% recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
EgREE SBHEEREELEARNEED venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
¥ERB M ERBEEREREN Y EEERE(IF related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
BEFHERARE) - equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/

partial disposal of the relevant associate or joint venture.

REEERRZIREBR ARG ERE ZIRE IR The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment in
AEPEZIERARBE AR ZIRER - & an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an investment
SEEERAERS S NBEEEESE 2R in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate. There is no
B TAEEHTEANER- remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

AR EEREREE ARG ERE LA When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a
EREmmMAEEEET AR EAMIER joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity method, the
FRHEREEESBBRENDERER Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
RIARSEES LR E R E M2 ER R that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
AT AEERE B WS BRI PEF D relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would
8% o be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or

liabilities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the associate or
joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of HKFRS
15 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle of
goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services
that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group's performance as the Group performs;

° the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer goods or
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or
an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BZ_F—\FF+_HA=1—HIFEZE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of HKFRS
15 in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same contract are
accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Revenue from sales of trucks, vehicles, chassis, automobile parts,
accessories and others are recognised when the control of goods is
transferred, being when the goods are delivered to the customer’s
specific location. A receivable is recognised by the Group when the goods
are delivered to the customer’s specific location as this represents the
point in time at which the right to consideration becomes unconditional,
as only the passage of time is required before payment is due. The
customers have neither rights of return nor rights to defer or avoid
payment for the goods once they are accepted by the customers.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the Group estimates
the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled using the most
likely amount, depending on which method better predicts the amount of
consideration to which the Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included in the
transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that such
an inclusion will not result in a significant revenue reversal in the future
when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the estimated
transaction price (including updating its assessment of whether an
estimate of variable consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully
the circumstances present at the end of the reporting period and the
changes in circumstances during the reporting period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of HKFRS
15 in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Warranties

If a customer has the option to purchase a warranty separately, the Group
accounts for the warranty as a separate performance obligation and
allocates a portion of the transaction price to that performance obligation.

If a customer does not have the option to purchase a warranty separately,
the Group accounts for the warranty in accordance with HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets unless the
warranty provides the customer with a service in addition to the assurance
that the product complies with agreed-upon specifications (i.e. service-
type warranties).

For service-type warranties, the promised service is a performance
obligation. In that case, the Group allocates a portion of the transaction
price to the warranty.

Refund liabilities

The Group recognises a refund liability if the Group expects to refund
some or all of the consideration received from customers.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in the
normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are delivered
and title have passed, at which time all the following conditions are
satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over

the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group, and

the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction
can be measured reliably.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018) (Continued)
Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the rights to
receive payments have been established.

The Group's accounting policy for recognition of revenue from operating
leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing below.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than properties construction for production as described below))
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets other than
properties under construction and specialised production facilities and
moulds, over their estimated useful lives after taking into account of their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line method.

Specialised production facilities and moulds which can be identified in
relation to specific production processes are depreciated by reference
to the expected production volume of these facilities and moulds after
taking into account of their estimated residual values.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The estimated useful lives, residual values, the expected production
volume and the depreciation method are reviewed at the end of the
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals.

Investment properties are initially measured at costs, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is
recognised so as to write off the cost of investment properties over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leases

Leases are classified as finances lease whenever the terms of lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land held under
operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest which includes
both leasehold land and building elements, the Group assesses the
classification of each element separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
each element have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the entire property is
accounted for as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and building element
at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that
the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income, if any, in the consolidated statement of
financial position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes are dealt with
as payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans where the
Group's obligations under the plans are equivalent to those arising in a
defined contribution retirement benefit plan.

In addition, on 1 December 2017, the Qingling Group established
a voluntary defined contribution enterprise annuities program (the
“Enterprise Annuities”) in accordance with the Qingling Group's
Enterprise Annuities Plan for its eligible employees (including eligible
employees of the Group). Contributions paid by the Group for its eligible
employees are made based on a percentage of their wages and salaries
and are charged to the Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Enterprise Annuities. The assets of the Enterprise
Annuities are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit before tax because of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
conseqguences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when
they relates to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.
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3. EEEBEGE 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

mEaE Intangible assets

BLIKIBEE BEEEE Intangible assets acquired separately

BERAEAFEH @ IWIE 2 B EERK Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are

BRI R AR R EEEIR - BR carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
A AFH 2z A ER G A RFHNE impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful

SRORBESH o (RETT A RE T A E B ER lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
EHIRETE R AR B — O - lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed

at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

AEBELER R EE - IREH Internally-generated intangible assets — research and development
expenditure
I R B A BRI ER A - Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the

period in which it is incurred.

EFEEB) (3 AE0IE B FERER) M EDELE An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
ZEREEENFE AT RERER activities (or from the development phase of an internal project) is
recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

o TERRT - Be S Te A B & EE AR (R A 5k . the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it
HE will be available for use or sale;

o HETKEFEEWINAFE A2 H e the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

&

o BERENFERAKEEBREE o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

. 1 & B Q0 f] 2 AE TT RE Y R SR ASE F . how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic
ol benefits;

. R - W R EMEJRATTRK o the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources
BWFEALEELEE & to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset;
and

o BRI AT E AT EER M e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
FX o intangible asset during its development.

MAFELEZ B EERRAC CRIIRELE The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets

EERFE LilERERNE B i_Ffrf%:JrE’JFfﬁi is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible
4REE o (WENESEAC EREER THER - Al asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
FEBRARNEEHRTEERRER generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
EVIRTER R - AREECEFEERKRES Subsequent to the initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets
B 2 B A ERREZLE - DARANER R are reported as costs less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
N 2EREREA) 27 - impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets that are

acquired separately.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and development
expenditure (Continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expensed from use or disposal. Gains or losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that these assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then
to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro-rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash- generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts with customers which
are initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1 January 2018.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Trade and bills receivables arising from contracts with customers are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKFRS 9 are
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.

Financial instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (upon
application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL"), except that at the date of initial application/
initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
other comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither held
for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that are
required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

All of the Group's financial assets recognised under HKFRS 9 are
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for
financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the determination
that the asset is no longer credit impaired.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions
in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets which
are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade, bills and other
receivables, dividend receivable from a joint venture, bank deposits with
original maturity more than three months, restricted bank balances, bank
deposits and bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12m
ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessment are done based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade and bills receivables.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually.

For all other instruments (including other receivables, restricted bank
balances, bank deposits and bank balances), the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should
be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of
a default occurring since initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions
in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instruments external (if available) or internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk,
e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

U an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological environment of the debtor that results
in a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.

B8 HE D ARRE 2 7 Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions
in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(i) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an event of
default occurs when information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has occurred
when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of default
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit
impaired includes observable data about the following events:

(a)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions
in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating
that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
Financial assets written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with transitions
in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for
all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade, bills and other receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance account.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets (before
application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets are classified as loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade,
bills and other receivables, bank deposits with original maturity more than
three months, restricted bank balances and bank deposits, bank balances
and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate,
except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.

Impairment of loans and receivables (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1
January 2018)

Loans and receivables of the Group are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period. Loans and receivables are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the loans and receivables, the estimated future cash flows of the loans
and receivables have been affected.

The objective evidence of impairment could include:
° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1
January 2018) (Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period, observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For loans and receivables carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced by the
impairment loss directly with the exception of trade, bills and other
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable or
other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss.

For loans and receivables measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial
asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities including trade, bills and other payables are

subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal
or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is
the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value
of money is material).

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

Below is the critical judgment, apart from those involving estimations
(see below), that the directors of the Company have made in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Joint control over Qingling Isuzu Engine

Note 20 describes that E 8%+ (EE) #E)# AR 2 7)("Qingling Isuzu
Engine”) is an joint venture of the Group although the Group only owns
19.33% ownership interest in Qingling Isuzu Engine as at 31 December
2018. The Group has joint control of arrangement with other two parties
over Qingling Isuzu Engine by virtue of the contractual right to appoint
one out of the seven directors to its board of directors, whose decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of inventories

Impairment of inventories require the estimation of the net realisable
value, which is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated cost to be incurred to completion and disposal.
These estimates are based on the historical selling prices of similar
products, the current market conditions, forecast usage and sale volume
of similar products. It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste or competitor actions in response to severe consumer
product industry cycles. Management reassesses these estimates at
the end of the reporting period. As at 31 December 2018, the carrying
amount of inventories is RMB652,059,000 (2017: RMB632,989,000), net
of write-down for inventories of approximately RMB88,731,000 (2017:
RMB155,807,000).
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Provision for litigation

As at 31 December 2018, the Company has involved in a material legal
proceeding and is liable for compensation according to the judgment
(the “Judgment”) from I A& A RIERT (transliterated as Shenzhen
Intermediate People’s Court) (the “Shenzhen Court”). The Company
appealed against the Judgment. On 25 March 2019, BR&E & A
R %£PBt(transliterated as Guangdong Province Higher People’s Court)
(the “Guangdong Court”) conducted a trial on the Judgment and a
court investigation thereof, but has not yet made a final ruling as at the
approval date of these consolidated financial statements. The directors
of the Company reviewed all documents and agreements in relation
to this litigation and the Judgment, and also considered the possible
outcome of the appeal as well as the possible timing and cash outflows
for the litigation. In view of the fact that there is no further evidence
that the Company shall assume more responsibilities, the directors of
the Company, with reference to the opinion of the PRC legal adviser,
expected the Company will not pay off the amount within one year from
the end of the reporting date and have made a non-current provision for
litigation of RMB80,000,000 in these consolidated financial statements.
Details of this litigation and provision therefor are set out in note 36.
The outcome of the appeal, the timing and cash outflows are uncertain
and judgmental and could change substantially over time as new facts
emerge and the legal proceeding progresses.

Provision of ECL for trade, bills and other receivables

The Group assesses ECL for the trade, bills and other receivables
individually based on internal credit rating of these debtors. The estimated
loss rates are estimated based on the Group's historical observed
default rates taking into consideration forward-looking information that
is reasonable and supportable available without undue costs or effort. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are reassessed
and changes in the forward-looking information are considered. As
at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of trade, bills and other
receivables is RMB2,631,974,000 (net of allowance for credit losses of
RMB2,055,000) (2017: carrying amount of RMB2,869,924,000, net of
allowance for doubtful debts of RMB845,000).

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The information
about the ECL for the Group's trade, bills and other receivables are
disclosed in note 32.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BZ_F—\FF+_HA=1—HIFEZE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

5. REVENUE

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

The Group’s revenue represents sales of trucks, vehicles, chassis,
automobile parts, accessories and others to external customers, net of
discounts and sales related tax, that are recognised at a point in time.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major
products:

®BE BE
—E-N\F —E—+F
+=ZA=+—H +—A=+—H
IESFE HEE

Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2018 2017
AR¥TFiT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
o g0 Types of goods

HERAEAE Sales of light-duty trucks 1,160,920 1,297,496
HEZILAE Sales of multi-purposes vehicles 374 953
HERRE Sales of pick-up trucks 1,179,536 1,012,867
SHERA RERH Sales of medium and heavy-duty trucks 1,114,977 714,419
SHERE Sales of chassis 1,475,612 1,761,506

HERBETH - B REM Sales of automobile parts, accessories
and others 321,833 286,095
#Et Total 5,253,252 5,073,336

BRafhEEMBEREOBENARE
29,515,0007c(=ZF—tF : AR¥2,504,000
TN AEBEEMETAHENE TR E
BEANEP -

Except for export sales to countries outside the PRC amounting to
approximately RMB29,515,000 (2017: RMB2,504,000), all other sales of
the Group are made to customers located in the PRC.

$& BB P AR AR Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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5. & (#H) 5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)
(i) SIFXEEFSHHKEGE) (i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

TREFHEBERFTIHENRERFE LRI Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts with

AR ¢ customers disclosed in the segment information:
i3] YR RESH
HRE SYEKE KFHE EXE : 153 i3]
Multi- Mediumand ~ Automobile
Light-duty purposes Pick-up  heavy-duty parts and
trucks vehicles trucks trucks  accessories  Consolidated

ABRTL  ABRTT  ARRTT  ABRFT  ABRFT  ARRFZ
RMBYO00  RMBYUO  RMBU0O  RMBU0O  RMBUO)  RMBUOD

BE_T-N\ETZR=T-ALEE For the year ended 31 December

2018
HEAHERS Sales of light-duty trucks 1,160,920 = S 5 5 1,160,920
HESRAE Sales of multi-purposes vehicles 5 374 S 5 5 374
HER TS Sales of pick-up trucks 5 = 1,179,536 5 5 1,179,536
eI RERLE Sales of medium and heavy-duty

trucks - - - 1114977 - 1114977
HEER Sales of chassis 1231871 - 43,324 194411 - 1,475,612
HERERE  DERER Sales of automobile parts,

accessories and others - - - - 321,833 321,833
it Revene 2396797 W 180 130938 IEB 5253282
BECS-tEtIRCT-HLEE For the year ended 31 December

2017
HELHERS Sales of light-duty trucks 1,297.49 = = = & 129749
EsMEAE Sales of multipurposes vehicles = 953 = = & 953
HERTE Sales of pick-up trucks - - 1,012,867 = L 1,012,867
ERHRENE Sales of medium and heavy-duty

trucks - - - 71449 - 714,419
HERE Sales of chassis 1488618 - 42,050 230,838 - 1,761,506
HERBRN  DHRER Sales of automobile parts,

accessories and others - - - - 286,09 286,09
s Revene 2786114 By 10897 WBJT %6055 5073
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5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts with customers

The Group sells trucks, vehicles, chassis, automobile parts, accessories
and others to customers, including independent dealers and certain
related parties (details are set out in note 33), according to the relevant
sales agreements. Revenues are recognised when control of trucks,
vehicles, chassis, automobile parts, accessories and others has been
transferred, being when they have been shipped to the customers’
specific locations based on the quantity of trucks, vehicles, chassis,
automobile parts, accessories and others received by the customers.
No provisions for returns of trucks, vehicles, chassis, automobile parts,
accessories and others are set out in the relevant sales agreements,
except for replacement due to quality problems. Payments of transaction
price for sales of trucks, vehicles, chassis, automobile parts, accessories
and others are agreed at the point when the customers received them.
Advance payments in forms of bank remittance and/or bank bills from
independent dealers are normally required for sales of light-duty trucks,
multi-purposes vehicles, pick-up trucks, medium and heavy duties
trucks. Sales of chassis, automobile parts, accessories and others to
independent dealers and related parties are required to be settled in three
to six months according to the relevant sales agreements.

Under the Group's standard contract terms, customers have a right to
receive rebates paid by the Company. The Group uses its accumulated
historical experience to estimate the amount of consideration to which
it will be entitled using the most likely amount. A refund liability is
recognised for sales in which revenue has yet been recognised.

Sales-related warranties associated with trucks, vehicles and chassis
and automobile parts, accessories and others cannot be purchased
separately and they serve as an assurance that the products sold comply
with agreed-upon specifications. Accordingly, the Group accounts for
warranties in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets consistent with its previous accounting treatment.

| B8 HE D ARRE 2 7 Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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5. & (#H)

(iii) BEZS—N\F+ZA=+—HILFE
SEFPEFEVHBRTREHRENIS
A%

RZE—NF+-A=+—8 xEBHE
FTHTEOETHNRIERAEEZNDARE
418,380,0007C * FEHIHEFRE « ABENREK
BAREENER -

ERNREPRAEENESHOER » AR
FHRAN T N\F+-_A=1+—A8% E%t
MRERAB NS ERENBE=_T—1
FHo-A=ZT—HALFEERRWES -

6. PEHEHE

AEBEERKEECEMAD AR &
HEAE  ZAE  KRE - PRUNRER

BARAEZME - B MEBLERKE
BIIN AR RMITES) BN ZFRFIRELZ
DEER - UDEDRERMHEERAE -
A? mE - REBFEMBHRELFSHRLE
P REENT 2HA AT
BRHAE — FERHERNHAE
MR
ZUReTE — FERIHESTEEE
KRE — FERHERRERE
2
hERNERE - AEREEDR
NERERER
METHREMT - AEREEIETH
- B R EA
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5. REVENUE (CONTINUED)

(iii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligation for contracts with customers for the year ended 31
December 2018

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had aggregate amount of the
transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations which
are mainly in respect of sales of trucks, vehicles and chassis that are
unsatisfied amounted to approximately RMB418,380,000.

Based on the information available to the Group at the end of the
reporting period, the directors of the Company expect the transaction
price allocated to the above unsatisfied contracts as at 31 December
2018 will be recognised as revenue during the year ending 31 December
2019.

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is engaged in the manufacture and sales of five categories
of products — light-duty trucks, multi-purposes vehicles, pick-up trucks,
medium and heavy-duty trucks and automobile parts and accessories
and the chief operating decision makers (i.e. the Company’s executive
directors) review the segment information by these categories to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance.

Specifically, the Group's reportable segments under HKFRS 8 Operating
Segments are as follows:

Light-duty trucks — manufacture and sales of light-duty trucks
and chassis
Multi-purposes — manufacture and sales of multi-purposes
vehicles vehicles
Pick-up trucks — manufacture and sales of pick-up trucks and
chassis

Medium and heavy-
duty trucks

Automobile parts -
and accessories

manufacture and sales of medium and heavy-
duty trucks and chassis

manufacture and sales of automobile parts
and accessories and others
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6. SEEHE(HE) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(i) SBBERES (i) Segment revenue and results

AEEWE R FEEIRE BRI 2| F T The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
T~ operating and reportable segment:

BT \F+-_A=+—HLFE For the year ended 31 December 2018

hHRENE SESHRHH

HUARE  SURRE KFE  Mediumand  Automobile
Light-duty Multi-purposes Pick-up  heavy-duty parts and #8
trucks vehicles trucks trucks ~ accessories  Consolidated
ABRTT  ARRTT  ABBTT  ARBFT  ABBFT  ARRTT
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RIMB000

GEe Segment revenue 2,398,797 374 1,222,860 1,309,388 321,833 5,253,252
S Result
GEl Segment profi 336,402 (499) 108,109 46,785 59,544 550,341
SHERER Central administration costs (49,894)
HEEEMRED) Impaiment losses, net of reversal (1,210
HiER Research expenses (187,923)
EgA - Otherincome:
FEMA Interest income 191,996
FEETION Rental income 45,714
BEE Government grants 45,685
it Others 1,665
AMHERERTE Other gains and losses, net (12,973)
e Provision for fitgation (80,000)
HMEBEDTER Share of profit of an associate 539
MEAEDFEE Share of results of joint ventures 26,229
REERREER Group's profit before tax 530,169

$RIFHEARHHRAF Qingling Motors Co. Ltd 119
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6. DEEE(E) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(i) SEPBSRERGE (i) Segment revenue and results (Continued)
(EZE—+tF+A=1T—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017
pHRENE AEERRDH
GHERE  ZYEAE FFE  Medumand  Automobile
Light-duty ~ Multi-purposes Pick-up heavy-duty parts and 5a
trucks vehicles trucks trucks accessories  Consolidated
NEEFT ARt AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFR
AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 AMB 000
AR Segment revenue 2,786,114 953 1,064,917 945,267 286,095 5,073,336
E+ Result
ABEN Segment profit 331,032 123 126,040 18,523 34,233 509,951
SHERER Central administration costs 49,448)
HESEMBRERD) Impairment losses, net of reversal 1,749
FREM Research expenses (124,137)
A Other income:
HEHA Interest income 172,988
HERA Rental income 45,854
USGE Government grants 2,632
it Others 2123
ﬁﬁﬁ'l SREXFE Other gains and losses, net 174
HMEBEDRER Share of profit of an associate 20
MEARLAIRE Share of results of joint ventures 18611
TEERRAER Group's profit before tax 580,707

BE_ZT-\F+_A=T—HILFEHED
MEHE(CE—LF 8 -

BERFTEROZE
SENE
B2 AE - e

NS RBRFHEE -
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FHERER P EESA
HE& D BPFTER
DESTFERER
BONREED) HAEEM - EMAKRA - ﬁﬁﬁ
AR E AT

MREDIERERFRE - JktBF'JIE,%&aJ%%
EREADEEREERE ZFETA

STECRARR © 2 8P4

FRAATEA

B

There have been no inter-segment sales during the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: Nil).

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3. Segment
profit represents the profit earned from each segment without allocation
of central administration costs, impairment losses (net of reversal),
research expenses, other income, other net gains and losses, provision
for litigation, share of profit of an associate and share of results of joint
ventures. This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision

makers for the purposes of resources allocation and performance

assessment.
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6. SEEHE(HE) 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(i) HPEERAER (i) Segment assets and liabilities

REFEENEEIREE R 2D DT The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by
T~ operating and reportable segment:

RZE—-N\F+ZA=+—H At 31 December 2018

hHRENE SESHRHH

HUARE  SURRE KFE  Mediumand  Automobile
Light-duty Multi-purposes Pick-up  heavy-duty parts and #8
trucks vehicles trucks trucks ~ accessories  Consolidated
ABRTT  ARRTT  ABBTT  ARBFT  ABBFT  ARRTT
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RIMB000

AE Assets
PHEE Segment assets 1,455,922 - 753,808 1,318,500 286,841 3,815,071
A EREEE Interchangeably used assets
between segments
-0%  BERAE - property, plant and equipment 208,446
-Bfttitis - prepaid lease payments 38,060
-FF& - inventories 181,421
Txﬁ%% Investment properties 28,901
REEREER Interest in an associate 7801
REERE R Interests in joint ventures 501,768
RBHETES  BOER - BOERRAS Restricted bank balances, bank
deposits, bank balances and cash 5,868,590
EHANAIEE Other unallocated assets 243,193
RBEE Consolidated total assets 10,893,251
f& Liabiliies
PHEE Segment liabilities 365,257 - 187,546 152,283 - 705,086

TR RS - BHEEREMERNZE Unallocated trade, bills and

other payables 1,967,463
AR AR Unallocated provision for ltigation 80,000
EAnAE A Other unallocated liabilities 16,588
ek Consolidated total liabilties 2,769,137

$RIFHEARHHRAF Qingling Motors Co. Ltd 121
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6. SEEHGE)
(i) HPRER R
R-F—tF+-A=+—H

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(i) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)
At 31 December 2017

PHRENE AERHREN

GHERE  ZYEAE FFE  Medumand  Automobile
Light-duty ~ Multi-purposes Pick-up heavy-duty parts and 5a
trucks vehicles trucks trucks accessories  Consolidated
NEEFT ARt AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFR
AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 AMB 000
AE Assets
AHEE Segment assets 1,676,184 7007 662,143 1,188,140 536,010 4,058,504
A EREEE Interchangeably used assets
between segments
-0% BERSE - property, plant and equipment 195,195
-Bfitife - prepaid lease payments 39,443
-F& - inventories 120888
RANE Investment properties 30,917
REENAI R Interest in an associate 7,262
RABREER Interests i joint ventures 498781
RBHHTES  BOER - FOERRERS Restricted bank balances, bank
deposits, bank balances and cash 5,673,392
ERTTHREE Other unallocated assets 197,607
TRELE Consolidated total assets 10,821,989
& Liabilties
ek Segment iablities 385,468 138 151,602 97917 - 635,125
MR EAE - BREEREMERZE Unallocated trads, bills and
other payables 2,096,311
ERTpEEE Other unallocated liabilties 27,206
rhEsR Consolidated total liabilities 2,759,142
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(i) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating
resources between segments:

o All assets are allocated to operating and reportable segments other
than interchangeably used assets between segments, investment
properties, interest in an associate, interests in joint ventures,
restricted bank balances, bank deposits, bank balances and cash
and other unallocated assets held by the head office; and

° All liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable segments
other than unallocated trade, bills and other payables, unallocated
provision for litigation and other unallocated liabilities of the head
office.

(iii) Other segment information
For the year ended 31 December 2018

PERENE RESHRDH

BUERE  SYRRE K+E  Mediumand  Automobile
Light-duty Multi-purposes Pick-up  heavy-duty partsand FURE 78
trucks vehicles trucks trucks  accessories  Unallocated  Consolidated
ABRTE  ARRTT  ARRTT  ARBFT ARRTT ARRTT  ARRFT
RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RIMB 000

Rt OTHER INFORMATION
FANBEERATEEZEE  Amount included in the measure of segment
profit or loss or segment assets:

TENE  BERS Additions to property, plant and equipment
REENEE Addtions to intangible assets

BYAERE Amartisation of intangible assets

% BERRENE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
RENENE Depreciation of investment properties

Al HpEeEs Release of prepaid lease payments

3,496 - 1,855 1,833 - 39,000 46,184
- - - 11321 - - 71321

- - - 239N - 3,109 27,080
11,525 148 6,968 13,691 - 13,675 46,007
- - - - - 2,016 2,016

- - - - - 1,383 1383

ERERMD AR AR Qingling Motors Co. Ltd

123



124

B IR R R M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHE2—F—\F+-H=+—HIFFZE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

n‘/-ﬁ

6. SEEHGE)
(i) ot 5 BB (1)
BE—T—+F+-A=+—ALFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(iii) Other segment information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

SYEAE PHRENE SETHRIPAE
anERs Multi- FFE  Medumand  Automobile
Light-duty pUPOSes Pickup  heavy-duty parts and Ank e
trucks vehicles trucks trucks  accessories  Unallocated  Consolidated
ANEETL  AREFT  AREFT  ARETT  AREFT  AREFT ARETT
AMB000 AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB000 AMB 000 AMB 000 AMB 000
RfER OTHER INFORMATION
HANBERIDTEEZEE: Amount included in the measure of segment
profit or loss or segment assets:
TEME R} Addtions to property, plant and equipment 233 - 590 10,340 = 65,087 76,250
EYEERH Amartisation of intangible assets 5 5 S 23326 s 3109 26,435
% BERRENE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14,310 180 8461 11,555 s 13,725 48231
REMENE Depreciation of investment properties 5 5 = 5 5 2015 2015
Bl gy Release of prepaid lease payments 5 5 = 5 5 1,383 1,383
(iv) MESF (iv) Geographical information

AEEBEARE1,591,5677,0007T(=F

£ AR#1,545,780,0007T) Z JEREBN B E
(BRIFEEFRIBEEIN EEERE - BRAaH R
BINERE O EE AR29,515,0007T (==
—+F ¢ AR¥2,504,0007T)490 » AREEHAM
FrEEEREFURTEZER -

(v) FREBREFRZRH

BREREBLEMB AT RER A TREEH
Gh - BEEE —INEE IR AR AR E B U A
10%FNAE - BE-_ZE—NE+-_A=+—
AIEFE  KEEREEREWBRARZIA
A ARME1,305,564,0000(—ZE—+F : AR
#51,480,754,0007T) & 2R B B §5 L+ 853 Bhik
WA B AR#728,736,0007(— B —+4F ¢
AR #628,635,0007T) °
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Non-current assets (excluding deferred tax assets) of the Group
amounting to RMB1,591,577,000 (2017: RMB1,545,780,000) are located
in the PRC and, except for export sales to countries outside the PRC
amounting to RMB29,515,000 (2017: RMB2,504,000), all other sales of
the Group are made to customers located in the PRC.

(v) Information about major customers

No revenue from a single external customer other than Qingling Group
and its subsidiaries and Qingling Isuzu Engine contributed 10% or more
of the Group's revenue. For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenue
from Qingling Group and its subsidiaries amounted to RMB1,305,564,000
(2017: RMB1,480,754,000) and revenue from Qingling Isuzu Engine
amounted to RMB728,736,000 (2017: RMB628,635,000).
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7. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

BEIZ-\F AT tF

+=RA=+—-B +=ZA=+-~H
LLEE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ARBFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BIEARETE Current tax 58,153 79,182
BEFERE D Under provision in respect of prior years 2,133 3,810
BERRIEW7721) Deferred tax (Note 21) 8,368 (4,080)
68,654 78,912

RIBECARNEABEASDAFEHRBEELE
FIEHRHAE) (BRRELBAE2012FF
125%) AP SRt @ S B AR EE 3 B &%) (AR BB
MUEEREESHE155)  URFREEE MR
VHEFEABRFEBEEXEEFHEEE
B AR A BEBLL BB IET70% KA 7
ZHIS%HEERDCEMEHR(EMSHRDH
R o RATBIRARBIZHBATIEEERER
ERAR(EREADMBEXBNIEEAN
MESERFAEHNSEIMEY  WARFELY
EBWABBERSESERABELIED
70%  MEBRAFTEZHEBRCEMSEH
FRE15% °

AARZHB AR EEERFEMROERET
AR(ERFEMPL)REBE_E—N\F+=
A=+—B It FE1%25% (=T —+4F : 25%)
BT RGN ZEFTIST ©

BER(RYIDFRER TEHERBERAB(TF
JFrgeiR] - RZB—NFNAMKILZ AR
ANBARRBE T \F+-_A=1+—
B 1L FE 1225 % BB R B KT -

According to the Notice of the Enterprise Income Tax for Implementation
of Exploration and Development of Western Region (Notice of the State
Administration of Taxation No. 12 [2012]) and the Catalogue of Industries
Encouraged to Develop in the Western Region (Order of the National
Development and Reform Commission No. 15), companies located in the
western region of the PRC and engaged in the businesses encouraged
by the PRC government are entitled to the preferential enterprise income
tax ("EIT") rate of 15% if the operating revenue of the encouraged
business in the current year accounted for more than 70% of the total
income. The Company and EEEEREEBR A F("Qingling Moulds”), a
subsidiary of the Company, are engaged in the encouraged businesses
included in the related notice and catalogue and the total revenue of their
major businesses for the year accounted for 70% of their respective total
revenue, and therefore continue to enjoy the preferential EIT rate of 15%
for the year.

BEEHFEMTOABREEAF("Qingling Technical Center”), a subsidiary
of the Company, is subject to EIT rate of 25% (2017: 25%) for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

B85 ORI Fae R A= 85 E RSB R 2 7(“ Shenzhen New Energy”, new
subsidiary of the Company established in August 2018), is subject to EIT
rate of 25% for the year ended 31 December 2018.

ERERMD AR AR Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

n‘/-ﬁ

7. FRRIASTH (48) 7.

AEFELZBRBENGABERR LEMEEK
SR ZBHRADEMTFAAT ZAE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before tax per
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

126

as follows:
BE_ES-N\FHE-_T—LF
+=-A=+—H t=—A=+—H
fl$:: 5 IHFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
AR¥TIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 A A Profit before tax 530,169 580,707
LAUBERFTSFR R 15%TE2HIB(ZZ—+t%F :  Taxat the applicable income tax rate
15%) of 15% (2017: 15%) 79,525 87,106
MBS T EEENM BAZHIEHE W7 @)  Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose (Note (a)) 12,445 96
AR AN B 2 5N = (75 b)) Additional tax benefit applicable to
the Group (Note (b)) (21,141) (9,310)
WBRARTRAME 2 Effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries 556 34
DR E N TR A 2 B Effect of share of profit of an associate (81) (32)
DMEEEREEBCTE Effect of share of results of joint
ventures (3,934) (2,792)
BREFEREBTR Under provision in respect of prior years 2,133 3,810
FRANAERER 2R EER Utilisation of deductible temporary
differences previously not recognised (849) -
AEE A Tax charge for the year 68,654 78,912
M - Notes:
(a) BE_ZT-N\F+_/=+—RAILFE & (a) For the year ended 31 December 2018, the amount included tax

SRBERDABREOHBZE -
AR 1 N RERE o

(b) ARBBBERAIRIER ﬁﬂﬁ’l&*’é‘a’]%ﬁﬂ
REBINEEEBERNTIS% (ZT—t
F 1 50%)MF %zif;—/\iJr A
=+—HIEFE  HEBBENESEAA
R¥21,141,000(ZE—+F : AR
9,310,0007%) o

AR RAT A Y
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effect of provision for litigation that its deductibility for tax purpose is

uncertain.

(b) Pursuant to the relevant tax rules and regulation, expenses in research
nature are deductible at 75% (2017: 50%) of such expenses incurred
additionally. The related tax benefit is amounted to RMB21,141,000
(2017: RMB9,310,000) for the year ended 31 December 2018.



8. EWFiEFIRTE

AEEEE SRR ARERERE—ER
e - Bt AEEBREREBEREEE
AEEETHMHMBNEEMNATHIEEZS
FEIFTEL AR o RIBMERETE - AR

FAMBMBRNEENRRES S —FEHE
ITE2HTETELOIZFE - AFEIRIEAER
ZHRIERR I EN e A ARKA44,644,000
TT(ZZE—+F : AR¥36,860,0007T) °

AN - RIEEREENICEFSHE] - BEX
EER _ZT—+tFE+ A BRIDGEFS
AFERENEL(BREAEENAEKRETD)
REFSFE - RECEFSHRKR - &
SEEAAERBEIHMMNERSRENHERET
TEZEFELH - TRNMEERE S ERERLS
AEEMEMEEARSRFIY - tEFE
ZEEBURALE  A—BUTEESE
Ao AFEREBEMABZHERBERIHENS
A AREEG,092,0007T(ZT—+4F : AR
3,561,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BZ_F—\FF+_HA=1—HIFEZE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

8. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group has a service agreement with its ultimate holding company,
Qingling Group, whereby the Group will reimburse the contributions
made by Qingling Group to a defined contribution pension scheme
administered by the municipal government in respect of the staff of the
Group. According to such scheme, the Company shall pay an amount
annually, calculated at a percentage of the total wages of the staff,
to a retirement fund administered by the municipal government. The
amount charged to profit or loss during the year under such arrangement
amounted to RMB44,644,000 (2017: RMB36,860,000).

In addition, on 1 December 2017, the Qingling Group established the
Enterprise Annuities in accordance with the Qingling Group's Enterprise
Annuities Plan for its eligible employees (including eligible employees
of the Group). Contributions paid by the Group for its eligible employees
are made based on a percentage of their wages and salaries and are
charged to the Group's consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the Enterprise Annuities. The assets of the Enterprise Annuities
are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The amount charged to profit or loss during the
year under such arrangement amounted to RMB6,092,000 (2017:
RMB3,561,000).

ERERMD AR AR Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

9. FRIRAIEF

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

BE-Z-N\§& HEZZ+F
+ZB=+-H +=ZA=1+-H
LEE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ARBFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
FRAEATA TS - Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging:
e REMBRZL Salaries and other payments and benefits 259,491 214,110
RINEFIFEIER 728 Retirement benefit scheme contributions (note &/ 50,736 40,421
BETKA(BREERESHEWZ10) Total staff costs (including directors’
and supervisors’ remuneration (note 10)) 310,227 254,531
REEFERMEE B TR Staff costs capitalised in inventories (88,323) (80,187)
221,904 174,344
HENE  BERREBEEE  F8 Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment, net 3,779 203
BV EESH Amortisation of intangible assets 27,080 26,435
nE - BERRENE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 46,007 48,231
REEREXL Capitalised in inventories (19,227) (20,762)
26,780 27,469
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BZ_F—\FF+_HA=1—HIFEZE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (CONTINUED)

BE-E-\& HE"TtF
+ZR=+-B tZA=t-H

LEE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ARBFTT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REMENE Depreciation of investment properties 2,016 2,015
BT EeEE Release of prepaid lease payments 1,383 1,383
BERENEREEREZRERERT Minimum lease payments under operating leases
in respect of rented premises and production
facilities 38,929 36,011
ZEME Auditor's remuneration 2,703 2,735
WREE Write-down of inventories - 108,953
EREREMWR)FE Net foreign exchange loss (gain) 9,194 (377)
BRBT L2 EERA Cost of inventories recognised as cost of sales 4,253,332 4,042,893
REFA and after crediting:
ﬁ’iﬁ FHIA Sales of scrap materials 1123 250
RITER R 2T SHA Interest income from bank deposits and balances 191,996 172,988
tﬁﬁ&ﬁ%%ﬂl&)\ Income from renting of investment properties 5,810 6,213
B EEREERERACRENEEREEER Less: Direct operating expenses from investment
properties that generated rental income
during the year (2,295) (2,295)
3515 3,918
HEEARTERE A Income from renting of moulds and
tooling equipment 39,904 39,641
BB Hrat) Government grants (note) 45,685 2,632

Hrat - %R E BT RGR A B A S B3 AR
HERTBHERENEEZIHARER -

Note: The amounts mainly represent government grants subsidising the
Group's research expenses on innovation projects and major new
products previously incurred.

$& BB P AR AR Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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BHE2—F—\F+-H=+—HIFFZE
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10. E¥  -EFERITHAZM< 10. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS
BECD-\ETIACT-ALER BECFtETCACT-RLEE
Year ended 31 December 2018 Year ended 31 December 2017
Bk 5
g BRA M REl
BER Pefomance  HBER ESR  Pefomance  EER
ARA related  Retirement EhEH related  Retiement
Salaries  incentive benefit Salaries incentive bengfit
i€ andother  payments  scheme Lhy B&  andother  payments  scheme it
Fee benefits (Note)  contributions Total Fee benefits Notg/  contributions Total

ABRTT  ARRTT  ABRFR  ARRTL  ARRTR  ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMBY  RNBUOD  AWBUO)  AMBUM  AMBWO  AWSU)  AVBUW AUBON  AMBU  AUBU

4iTEs Executive directors
B3p LUO Yuguang - il - 50 621 - 3l - 5 626
AEEZ Masanori OTA g g g g g = = = = -
-(A-3-\ERA=TREER) Shuichi HAYASHI appointed on 30 May 201 - 13 - - 13 - - - - s
WA (RF-tERRNREEER Etsuo YAMAMOTO (appainted on 9 June 2017
WN-2-)\ERAZTREM) and resigned on 30 May 2018) - - - - - - - - - -
B XU Song - 457 - 50 507 - 457 - b2 509
HEE-H Keiichiro MAEGAKI - 114 - - 114 - 339 - - 339
ERR(M-5-tE=A-TRARA) GAO Jianmin fresigned on 24 March 2017) - - - - - : 114 : s 114
ZRE LI Juxing - 457 - 50 507 - 457 - b2 509
- 11m - 150 1922 - 1938 - 159 2,097
BUEUTES Indgpendent non-executive directors
g3 LONG Tao 120 - - - 120 120 - - - 120
RN SONG Xizojang 120 - - - 10 10 - - - 0
#xi LI Tianni 120 - - - 120 120 - - - 120
4R LIV Erh Fei 120 - - - 1 120 - - - 120
480 - - - 480 480 - - - 480
ESHe Supervisors' remuneration
b MIN Qing - 4 107 50 203 - 4 107 52 205
i LEIBin - & 9 L] 181 - Y] 4 3 m
BERR-F-\FRAZTRED) GUAN Jinming (resigned on 30 May 2018) - 19 4 N 8 - 4 106 55 207
- 107 251 m 469 - 134 312 138 h84
480 1879 251 261 281 480 2012 31 297 3,161
Kiat - NBERSTDHISEEENERRREE @ I Note: The performance related incentive payments are determined by
HYMEE S (B —BPTESFREEBEL reference to the individual performance of the supervisors and approved
IEMITERER) A © by the Remuneration Committee (composed of an executive director

and four independent non-executive directors).
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ME—LE(REZEREER) RAEE—/
FEMME—REREREZZANA/ANDAIR
IR TEITITBAHESL  MEXREZH
B & FEpt B AR AT B AR B AT RR (2 AR 75 T 2
2 BN -

BE_Z—+FR_ZT-\F+-A=+—H
EFE - BRRAELRUAGERIN  HEES
REEWMEREZME -

AAREMATEENME HRERLEEARR
7 R EL T BB AR (it e AR 7% 1 28 S A< A0
R o

ARREIFFTESNME TR RAREER
ARAREEFRM 2 ARFS TS S E A

-]

AEBRUMERSALH  MU(ZT—+L
FAMDRATERRES  RERBE_ZT
—NFH-A=T—HALEFENHEER EX
WE - B T22(CE—LF  1DALTZME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B2 —ZF—\F+-HA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

10. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Shuichi HAYASHI (upon appointed as a director) and Mr. Keiichiro
MAEGAKI (before Shuichi HAYASHI's appointment as a director) are
General Manager of the Company and also assume the role as the Chief
Executive and their emoluments disclosed above include that for services
rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

Save as Masanori OTA and Etsuo YAMAMOTO, neither directors nor
supervisors waived their emoluments for the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2018.

The emoluments of the Company’s other executive directors are paid for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The emoluments of the Company’s independent non-executive directors
are mainly paid for their services as directors of the Company.

Employees

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, 3
individuals (2017: 4 individuals) were executive directors and supervisors
whose emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2018 are included
in the disclosure above and the emoluments of the remaining 2

T individuals (2017: 1 individual) were as follows:
BEZE-N\E HE-_ZT—+F
+=ZB=+—-H +=A ,-I— B
LLEE IHFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
#E R EAER Salaries, and other benefits 286 172
WiERS Performance related incentive payments 245 74
RINEFIF IR Retirement benefit scheme contributions 101 52
632 298

ERERMD AR AR Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

10. EF -EFRTTHASMN <
(#&)

& & (@)
LB ZMENNATHE :

10. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Employees (Continued)
The emoluments of the above employees are within the following band:

BE—S-I\F H=_TtF
+=R=t+—-R t=-A=+-H

LEE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
(ESAZ)
(Number of employees)
5,000,000 7T Less than HK$1,000,000 2 1

RZFFE  AEESERAAUMERSAL
(BREFEREB ) XNEMBRBERE AR
SEM D K RBERE

BAZELRS

EE RS EAR BN FARRBL R R
10% 2 &8 - HIREEEPBECX S £
(ThEPEE LR DAREARNABEE
MatHE o EE A AR ZD AR B EM
PR HIB0% B 1§ N IRE - RIBAQF MM
BER  EELHEZUARNBHEBEFERR
FAEINARA o KRR BB AT ABITALM T ADE
EABEER/EN  BD M&Z&*“Fé%
BIREREARREMBAN25% - DEE
HE2MERARGETE °
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For both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals (including directors and employees) as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office.

11. TRANSFER TO STATUTORY SURPLUS RESERVE
FUND

The statutory surplus reserve fund represents the appropriation of 10%
of profit after tax for the year of the Company, calculated in accordance
with relevant Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises in the
PRC ("PRC GAAP") and the Articles of Association of the Company.
The appropriation may cease to apply if the balance of the statutory
surplus reserve fund has reached 50% of the registered capital of the
Company. According to the Articles of Association of the Company,
statutory surplus reserve fund can be used to make up prior year losses
or to increase capital. The Company may capitalise the statutory surplus
reserve fund by way of bonus issues provided that the remaining amount
of statutory surplus reserve fund after such distribution shall not be less
than 25% of the registered capital of the Company. The amount shall be
submitted to shareholders’ general meeting for approval.



12. BAEELRS

TE - \EHERFTAREEEEATES
(ZZ—tF: 8|)- AEﬁ%st,oooEzg
EAEEEBRANBRATEBREANBAFE
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B2 —ZF—\F+-HA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

12. TRANSFER TO DISCRETIONARY SURPLUS
RESERVE FUND

No amount was appropriated to the discretionary reserve fund in 2018
(2017: Nil). The balance of RMB2,347,000 in the discretionary reserve
fund was the amount appropriated by a subsidiary, Qingling Moulds, in
previous years at a percentage of the profit after tax of the respective
years in accordance with PRC GAAP and Articles of Association of
Qingling Moulds.

13. &R 13. DIVIDENDS
BE_Z-N\FE HE-T—+F
+=ZA=+-B +ZA=+—H
LEE LFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ABEFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RERNERRD KBS : Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:
—E— t%ﬁﬁﬂﬂ’i@ BIRERAREO0.167T 2017 Final, paid — RMBO0.16
(ZF—+F : ZT-RFRARS - (2017: 2016 Final,
BIk—8ERARE0.167T) paid - RMBO.16) per share 397,163 397,163

RMEKRE  ARRESCESZINESE
E—N\E+=-A=1+— Etiﬁﬂ%%ﬁﬁx%t
A RE0.167T + £ AREE397,163,0007T(=
T—+F HE-_T—+E+-_A=1+—8H
IHFERBBREERARKE 16T AR
397,163,0007T) * ZE4E A% B FE fE ISR A F K
SHUER S AIER o

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of
RMB397,163,000 or RMBO0.16 per share in respect of the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: final dividend of RMB397,163,000 or RMBO0.16
per share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017) has been
proposed by the directors of the Company and is subject to approval by
the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

$& BB P AR AR Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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14. BEEF 14. EARNINGS PER SHARE
RARERFEE AEEFRERZFIRE TS The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the owners
BRETHE - of the Company is based on the following data:
2% Earnings
- ES BZE
ZE-N\E —T—tF
+=RA=+—-B +=ZA=+-H
LR HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ARSFiT AREFT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
R EFRERRF 2 &F Earnings for the purpose of basic
(A REERFA ANEIEFERM) earnings per share (Profit for the
year attributable to owners of the
Company) 453,772 496,926
B InE B Number of shares
BE BZE
ZE-N\E —T—tF
+=RA=+—-B +=ZA=+-H
ILEE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
Fi Fig
‘000 ‘000
Rt ESRERRN 2 BINEE Number of shares for the purpose of
basic earnings per share 2,482,268 2,482,268

AR B TE BB R (B 4F 2 1 3 1 T 1 AN R S No diluted earnings per share was presented as there were no potential
EIEN - W ESS| SRS ET - ordinary shares in issues in both years presented.
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15. Y% - BER &R 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Ba &
BEREE KERRHE
Moulds,  Furniture, RE  EEIE
#F  plantand fixtures and Motor Construction ]
Buildings  machinery equipment vehicles in progress Total

ARBTL ARETL ARKETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB000  RMB000  AMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB000  AMB'000

BAfE cosT
W-E—+5-F—H At 1 January 2017 649,052 3,620,176 66,537 20,097 28241 4,384,103
NE Additions 67 3,640 = = 72,543 76,250
ERAEREIR Transfer from construction in progress 4213 39,263 6 57 (43,539) -
HE Disposals (3,641) (17,604) (16) (1,593) - (22,854)
RZZE—+F+-A=+—H  At31 December 2017 649,691 3,645,475 66,527 18,561 57,245 4,437,499
RE Additions = 165 = 173 45,846 46,184
BEATREIR Transfer from construction in progress 3,430 1 8,907 1,053 (13,401) -
HE Disposals - (26,143) - (541) - (26,684)
“Z-\F+-A=1+—H  At31 December 2018 653,121 3,619,508 75,434 19,246 89,690 4,456,999
HERRE DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT
R-E—+5-A—H At 1 January 2017 433105 3,138,519 64,954 14,541 - 3651,119
FENERE Depreciation provided for the year 23,504 21,811 1,366 1,550 = 48,231
HE R Eliminated on disposals (3,051) (12,784) (15) (1,434) - (17,284)
W-ZE—+%+-A=+—H  At31 December 2017 453558 3,147,546 66,305 14,657 - 3,682,066
FENERE Depreciation provided for the year 20,194 23,417 1171 1,225 & 46,007
HE R Eliminated on disposals - (21,524) - (406) - (21,930)
RZZ-N\F+-A=+—H  At31 December 2018 473,752 3,149,439 67,476 15,476 - 3,706,143
FEE CARRYING VALUES
RZZ—+%F+-A=+—H  At31 December 2017 196,133 497,929 222 3,904 57,245 755,433
“Z-\F+-A=+—H  At31 December 2018 179,369 470,069 7,958 3,770 89,690 750,856

B2 AH A AR A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd 135
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15. W3 - W% B Ek i (48)

Lz - BERREERETIERERLE
RERREARIN G R EFFISREERER
TOEETAHERFRABRE T ANE

&t FER

ARS8 BE

gF 204F 10%

HE - BEKkikas 5Z104F 10%
(EREEZRER

EEARRIN
BRifh - BN 54 10%
RE 54 10%

AEMENEERRNSZFOEMAEAAR
#300,034,000 m(ZZE—tF : AR
310,011,000D) WEREERELER(BIE
RIBE - BERER) I2E R ERERIER
WIERTEEETUNE - f—REERBME
HIEE -« BE MR A B SENESE 105/
EET AT A FEATE -

R-E-N\F+_A=+—H REALEA
AR¥95222,000t(ZF—tF : AR
95,616,0007T) MIE A Rz E HAAEATHE
WA o

RZE—NF+_A=+— EI B A B
AR#3,829,199,000T(= T —+tF : AR
3,624,375,00070) 9 ¥ % - JFT&U%& R D BE
WEBIEFR -
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for
construction in progress and specialised production facilities and moulds,
are depreciated on a straight-line basis based on their estimated useful
lives, after taking into account the estimated residual value, as follows:

Estimated Residual

useful lives value

Buildings 20 years 10%

Moulds, plant and machinery 510 10 years 10%
(other than specialised production facilities and

moulds)
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years 10%
Motor vehicles 5 years 10%

Specialised production facilities and moulds with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB300,034,000 (2017:RMB310,011,000) included in moulds,
plant and machinery which can be identified in relation to specific
production processes are depreciated by reference to the expected
production volume of these facilities and moulds. Other moulds, plant
and machinery which are for general production purposes are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

As at 31 December 2018, the moulds and machinery with aggregate
carrying amount of RMB95,222,000 (2017: RMB95,616,000) was leased
out for rental income.

As at 31 December 2018, property, plant and equipment with original
cost of RMB3,829,199,000 (2017: RMB3,624,375,000) have been fully
depreciated but still in use.
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B2 —ZF—\F+-HA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

16. Wfttivia& 16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

RB—N\E KT
+=A=+-B +-A=t-A

At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
AB#TFIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEEMENLHHEBRE The Group's prepaid lease payments
represent:
A B Y A B - b {5 AR 4 Land use right in the PRC held under
medium lease term 38,060 39,443
RMEMEINAE - Analysis for reporting purpose as:
ERBEE Non-current asset 36,677 38,060
MENEE Current asset 1,383 1,383
38,060 39,443
17. BShE 17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
—Z-N\F ZE—+F
2018 2017
AR®TFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
573 COST
R—A—Bk+=-A=+—H At 1 January and 31 December 145,915 145,915
g1 DEPRECIATION
©wn—A—A At 1 January 114,998 112,983
FENERE Depreciation provided for the year 2,016 2,015
W+ZA=+—H” At 31 December 117,014 114,998
IREE CARRYING VALUES
W+ZA=+—~” At 31 December 28,901 30,917
DA IS BT ARE - S A ZHARR The above investment properties are situated in the PRC held under
Tyt R Fa s FIAABERI10% 8 0 A B 55k medium leases term and are depreciated on a straight-line basis over 20
DO0FEIE o years, after taking into account the estimated residual value of 10%.

MR AIE R Y TS AE - A EE 4] The fair value of the investment properties cannot be reliably measured as

SEEE AR EYE T AR BERLER the comparable market transactions are infrequent and alternative reliable
) estimates are not available.

ERERMD AR AR Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

\LEE 18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
SEEERR
BiT@iRE  Production
Technology management gt
transfer fees system Total

ARETLT AREFT ARETTL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

5% 3 COST
R=ZE—+tF—-A—BKT=-A=1+—H At 1 January and
31 December 2017 535,671 31,090 566,661
NE Additions 77,327 = 77,327
—N\&E+=A=+—H At 31 December 2018 612,898 31,090 643,988
e AMORTISATION
RZE—tF—-HA—H At 1 January 2017 315,572 9,327 324,899
FEBE Provided for the year 23,326 3,109 26,435
—+F+=-A=+—8 At 31 December 2017 338,898 12,436 351,334
FERBE Provided for the year 23,971 3,109 27,080
—NE+=-A=+—8 At 31 December 2018 362,869 15,545 378,414
IREE CARRYING VALUES
R=ZE—+tF+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2017 196,673 18,654 215,327
—\&+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2018 250,029 15,545 265,574

BREEARBEEREATEEDERA ST Payments of technology transfer fees, lump sum royalties under
(TR D ET A BT e e ik i S5 RO BT technology transfer agreements with Isuzu Motors Limited (“Isuzu”, the

EREN—EENEENENMCAEREE substantial shareholder of the Company), are capitalised as intangible
WIZEFAIFEREAN T TEE - =FEE assets and are amortised over the license period ranging from ten years

BTN A EFRERLT o RIERITEE RS to thirteen years, commencing from the use of the technologies in
SER R THEFIER TR EAERRIE production. Continuing royalties payable to Isuzu under the technology
I o transfer agreements are charged to profit or loss as and when incurred.

EEERRGTEHN D] R R AARA TSR The production management system has an estimated useful life of ten
ERRAER 105 - years and is expected to generate economic benefits to the Company in
the foreseeable future.

RZZE—\F+=—A=+—8 ' EFEENR As at 31 December 2018, intangible assets with an original cost of
KANE 5 ARE271,333,00070(ZZF —+4F - RMB271,333,000 in aggregate (2017: RMB271,333,000) have been fully
AR#271,333,0007T) Bt B E# sH B0 7E(E amortised but still in use.

=8
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B2 —ZF—\F+-HA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

19. REEARZEE 19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE
AEEREE QR 2 ERFBIT Details of the Group's interest in an associate are as follows:

R=B—NE  KoFtF
+=A=+-B ft-A=+-E

At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ABREFTT AREFT
RMB’'000 RMB’000
REE QAR ZIRERA - RE™ Cost of investment in an associate,
unlisted 6,333 6,333
DB N T Z R E Share of post-acquisition profit of an
associate 1,468 929
7,801 7,262
R \FER-_ZT—+F+-_A=+—8" As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had an interest in the
AEERTYEE AR PHEAERD following associate:
FREHE BEZ

ZEBILH REELA
SMsIhy ETEEEHY Proportion of Portionof ~ FEEH

i E4] REER Place of Principal place equity interests voting power  Principle
Name of entity Form of entity establishment  of operation held by the Group held  activities
ITHERER)ERIREARAR ML el e 25% 5% Rl
(E+ieR i) Incorporated The PRC The PRC Technical
ATHER(ER) TERITREERAR development

("Isuzu Qingling Engineering”)
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BHE2—F—\F+-H=+—HIFFZE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

19. RBHE ATz (M)

REEB SRR 2 HBEERBRRETIT o« T
SIBIIB BRI B B RIEE B M R EERR
RZBERRIMBEREAES 2T -

BENRRILESA P BERRANRAZRES
BR o

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

Summiarised financial information in respect of the Group's associate is
set out below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the associate’s financial statements prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs.

The associate is accounted for using equity method in these consolidated
financial statements.

RZ2—I\F RZT—+tF
+=B=+—-HB +=-A=+—H~

At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ARBFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
MENEE Current assets 28,863 28,187
IERBEE Non-current assets 4,677 3,772
mEAE Current liabilities (2,338) (2,912)
ERBAE Non-current liabilities = =
BEFE Net assets 31,202 29,047

REERE R R #EER LD Proportion of the Group's ownership
interest therein 25% 25%

AEBD L E QAR BEFE Group's share of net assets of an

associate 7,801 7,262
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19. RBHE ATz (M)

B2 —ZF—\F+-HA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

BE HE
ZE-N\E —T—+F
+=-B=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
\LEE IEFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
AR¥TFTT AREFT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
Yzs Revenue 44,984 14,251
FREMRERE W BT Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year 2,155 840
FREEE R AMEMES Dividend received from the associate
during the year - -
REESEEE R RIER Group's share of profit of an associate 539 210

20. REELRZER

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

RZB—N\E R-T—+F
+=RA=+—-BA +=-A=t+—A

At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ABETFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REEDEZRENAN  REW Cost of investment in joint ventures,

unlisted 368,639 368,639

DiEEEREWERES Share of post-acquisition results of joint
ventures 133,129 130,142
501,768 498,781
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P_E-N\FF+_HA=1—HIFE

31 December 2018

20. REEBELEZHEI () 20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
R \FRZE—+F+=A=1+—H" As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had interests in the
AEBERTIEEDEPEEER following joint ventures:
FREBHL 524
EEREpl RELH RRELE
Form of EMSINE  FEERME Proportion of Proportion ~ FERK
184 business Place of Principal place equity interests ofvoting Principal
Name of entity structure establishment  of operation held by the group power held  activities
BERATREHE Bz HE HE TE-N\F:1933% ZE-\F:1933%  BEEREEDHED
Qingling Isuzu Engine Incorporated ~ The PRC The PRC (CE—tF:50%) (CE—tF:50% 2
2018 - 19.33% 2018:19.33%  Manufacture of
(2017 : 50%) (2017 : 50%) engines and
relevant parts
BRATR(ER) AEHERBARAH Bl i HE 50% 50%  AtREESERSHHE
(BRATREE]) Incorporated ~ The PRC The PRC 50% 50% infiet

ERATR(ER)ERERBERAT

("Qingling Isuzu Sales")

B A TR RN
CRE L Sl YN ]
/584,260,000 7T -

T &E42,130,0003
)
EARZ50% °

B—A_

—ETHERARY T
R REE - EFMER
ANAREES RT3
7t (#9 AR #300,060,000

o ARBEA TR RFEED BB M

—NE+ZR - REER ﬁ-i—f’%*‘@b

WEA+HRER(EE)TESIHERA

([E+REKRAEZIMH]
A+EDRIEE49% K51 % HEZR
—N\FE+A-BET TREAMHGZ

R+ RESHEARIK

MEREH )SZ

p; Nt
Fﬁﬁq

BHATRERIETH

o BRATREBHEBERS G TKIEN

FERR
ﬁllﬁfg BE -

a) o RERTRERSE
% &8 AB -

e LES
ARE

HEf—EFEER  MATRERTEST
451#%%@%&1?%&)\@% B A 855
Fik A B AN A324,260,0003 7T (A RIS
2,110,104,0007T) - RAHTERE - A +85

B EB N AREE K
#50.61% - 30.06%

DR BEESRETHRED
$19.33% HIREHE -

MR EXFHLER TR EDHAHERT

BT (HER

5% RABFTKIR

htREBREET

EEERTHEERT)DH
NEEGBEBERER
BEZEBERAEBARE

1,039,0007T ' EEURIEHEE AEEDBfE

LEARTER -
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Sale of Isuzu brand
automobiles and
autoparts

Qingling Isuzu Engine was established in May 2007, and is principally
engaged in manufacture of engines and relevant parts. The registered
capital is USD84,260,000, and the Company contributed USD42,130,000,
approximately RMB300,060,000 to Qingling Isuzu Engine. Each of
the Company and Isuzu held 50% of its paid-up registered capital
respectively.

In December 2018, pursuant to a merger agreement dated 2 October
2018 entered into between Qingling Isuzu Engine and A +#%E % (&
)BT AR AT (“Isuzu Qingling Autoparts”, which was held by
Qingling Group and Isuzu as to 49% and 51%, respectively), Qingling
Isuzu Engine absorbed and merged with Isuzu Qingling Autoparts while
Qingling Isuzu Engine was the surviving company upon completion of the
merger and assumed all the assets, liabilities, operations, qualifications,
personnel, contracts and all other rights and obligations of Isuzu Qingling
Autoparts which was subsequently dissolved and deregistered. The
registered capital of Qingling Isuzu Engine was USD324,260,000,
approximately RMB2,110,104,000, upon completion of the merger and
each of Isuzu, Qingling Group and the Group held 50.61%, 30.06% and
19.33% of equity interests, respectively, therein.

As a result of the aforesaid merger of the business of Qingling Autoparts
(contributed by Qingling Group and Isuzu) by Qingling Isuzu Engine,
the Group recognised a loss of RMB1,039,000 directly debited to its
capital reserve as deemed distribution with owners for the change in the
Group's share of net assets of Qingling Isuzu Engine upon completion of
the merger.



20. REEBELEZHEI ()

BRATREENR ST N\FAAKY  =E
HEHERTRRENTBERTBET IS -
HiFEAA20,900,000% 7T AAFAE
PR ETE10,450,000E T (AR
68,579,0007T) ©

RECRURSREAASEEBRESHER
EXFAAKRERRNENREZZNERNR
i e

SELEZMBEEIE®
AEEZAECEZMBERBERETIILT -

TS BERB R BRERIEEBM RS ER
Rz AEEEMBMEAMZI S -
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BZ_F—\FF+_HA=1—HIFEZE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Qingling Isuzu Sales was established in September 2008, and is
principally engaged in selling Isuzu brand automobiles and autoparts.
The registered capital is USD20,900,000 and the Company contributed
USD$10,450,000, approximately RMB68,579,000, to Qingling Isuzu
Sales.

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of joint ventures to
transfer funds to the Group in form of cash dividends, or to repay loans or
advances made by the Group.

Summarised financial information of the joint ventures

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group’s joint
ventures is set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts shown in the joint ventures’ financial statements
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

BEPERFLRE WBRERAFEBER LT The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in these
BR o consolidated financial statements.
BRI REE Qingling Isuzu Engine
AZE—\FE RIZTF
+=ZA=+—-B +=ZA=+-°H
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ARBFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REEE Current assets 2,001,129 787,244
IERBEE Non-current assets 521,992 225,340
mEaE Current liabilities (216,942) (126,888)
EMBAE Non-current liabilities = -
BEFRE Net assets 2,306,179 885,696
T BEERBESREEENTSIEA The above amounts of assets and
liabilities include the following:
Re RS EY Cash and cash equivalents 1,417,227 319,212

//n,EjJ@ I%‘ﬁﬁ 15 (T@?ﬁﬂgﬁ' EIEH'A&
Hfth & < FRTE K2 B 488)

Current financial liabilities (excluding
trade and other payables and
provision) - -

ERERMD AR AR Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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BHE2—F—\F+-H=+—HIFFZE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

20. REEBELEZHEI () 20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
ERA+8REREE Qingling Isuzu Engine (Continued)
BE HE
—E-N\%F —EtF
+=ZB=+—-H +=-A=+—H
il IHEE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
AREFiT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
Wz Revenue 1,216,170 1,195,154
FREF KRG W85 Profit and total comprehensive income
for the year 52,357 45,035
T FEREFBEATRIE The above profit for the year include the
following:
MARBE R &R G ERAIRE Dividend declared to and receivable by
the Company 22,203 -
e REE Depreciation and amortisation 23,857 26,555
FEWA Interest income 29,121 21,015
FriSfisz i Income tax expense 9,241 7,955

B 2 P E BB AR & B TS R R A
RERTHRBEB MR 2 REENEE

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
carrying amount of the interest in Qingling Isuzu Engine recognised in the

consolidated financial statements:

—E-N\fE —tfF

+=A=+—-B +=A=+-H

At At

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

ARSFIT ARETFT

RMB000 RMB'000

BRI EEM  EEFE Net assets of Qingling Isuzu Engine 2,306,179 885,696

REERER A TREBI 2 B LD Proportion of the Group's ownership

interest in Qingling Isuzu Engine 19.33% 50%

PAREIR R FIEL < AE Adjustments for unrealised profit (2,228) (2,228)
AEERERATREDR  ERREEB Carrying amount of the Group's interest

in Qingling Isuzu Engine 443,556 440,620
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B2 —ZF—\F+-HA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

20. REELEZHEE () 20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
BRI+ HHE Qingling Isuzu Sales

R=B—NE  KoFtF
+=A=+-B ft-A=+-E

At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ARBFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
mENEE Current assets 143,603 188,078
ERBEE Non-current assets 7,446 8,301
neasE Current liabilities (35,271) (80,703)
ERBAE Non-current liabilities = -
BEFE Net assets 115,778 115,676
T EERABESBRENTSE The above amounts of assets and
liabilities include the following:
BakESEED Cash and cash equivalents 103,192 140,096
nBEmMme BT EEEMNERR Current financial liabilities (excluding
H A FE FRIE R ) trade and other payables and
provision) - -
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20. REEBELEZHEI () 20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)
EHRATHEEER Qingling Isuzu Sales (Continued)
8= HE
—Z-N\%F —E—tF
+=RA=+-B +=ZA=+—H
WLEE IEFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ARETFT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
ez Revenue 80,754 53,973
FRRF(E18) kiR A e () 85 Profit (loss) and total comprehensive
income (expense) for the year 102 (7,814)
FRFERF (BB BREUATEE The above profit (loss) for the year include
the following:
IE R Depreciation and amortisation 898 954
FEMA Interest income 5,263 3,651
FrsBi it Income tax expense = L
R 2 B RS A R B MR A B IS SRR FE A Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
REXROTHREERS ZIREENHER carrying amount of the interest in Qingling Isuzu Sales recognised in the

consolidated financial statements:

R-B-\F  HTtF
+=A=+-B t=A=t+-8

At At

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

ARSFIT ARETFT

RMB'000 RMB'000

BRATREEZEEFE Net assets of Qingling Isuzu Sales 115,778 115,676

REBERERA TIRHEE 2 A ERERLLA) Proportion of the Group's ownership

interest in Qingling Isuzu Sales 50% 50%

BARFIRRFED 2 7R Adjustments for unrealised profit 323 323
AEERERATRIEE ZERREE Carrying amount of the Group's interest

in Qingling Isuzu Sales 58,212 58,161
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B2 —ZF—\F+-HA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

21. DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The
following is the analysis of deferred tax balances for reporting purposes:

RZE—I\F RZT—+F
+=B=+—-H +=-A=+—H~

At At

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

ABREFTT AREFor

RMB’000 RMB'000

EERIBEEE Deferred tax assets 23,384 31,752

UTRAEBRAFEERERZ ERELEN A
BEKBEARERES

The following are the major deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised
and movements thereon during the current year:

i HEST)
HEET
BEERE WHEE  Accrual for mEHE BEWS

Impairment  Write-down of selling  Accelerated Deferred i
onassets inventories rebates  depreciation income Total
ANREFT AREFT  ARETT  AREFT  AREFT AREFI
RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
R=E—tF-f-AH At 1 January 2017 479 18,284 8,909 = = 27,672
RERHRIFTA (Charge) credit to profit or loss (262) 5,087 (745) - - 4,080
RZZ—+F+=-A=t—H At31 December 2017 217 23371 8,164 = = 31,752
RERTAGIR) Credit (charge) to profit or loss 123 10,061) 2,400 (1,841) 1,011 (8,368)
RZE-N\E+-A=1+—H  At31December 2018 340 13,310 10,564 (1,841) 1,01 23,384

B

JRE BB AR A R Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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22. &8 22. INVENTORIES
RIB-N\E HRZZ—LF
+=A=+-B ft-A=t+-H
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
A Raw materials 466,988 447,870
fEEMm Work in progress 43,159 67,697
BURK Finished goods 141,912 117,422
652,059 632,989

23. MUIES: - MY EEBRXMmE  23. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

WSS B T IS PREPAYMENTS
AR NEE Y EWEES - EUEE R At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s trade, bills and other
Hith EUYR B RFENMFIER T ¢ receivables and prepayments are as follows:
RZB—-N\F RNT+F
+=B=+—-H +ZR=+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ARHFIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FEWERZUR = BB, REREE Trade receivables, less allowance for
credit losses/doubtful debts 194,480 546,499
R R & Bills receivable 2,425,588 2,312,308
BER A THREBHEEAAR S Dividend receivable from Qingling Isuzu
Engine 22,203 -
HibEUIER EEEE RIERE Other receivables, less allowance for
credit losses/doubtful debts 11,906 11,197
R TR KR Prepayments for raw materials 102,081 66,751
2,756,258 2,936,675
R-E—)\&E+-_A=+—HR—"ZT—\&F— As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018, trade receivables from
A—H @ BEA4EEHEREZDRIAA contracts with customers amounted to RMB 194,480,000 (net of

FR15194,480,0007 (314 (= B BB A5 A RIE allowance for credit losses of RMB2,030,000) and RMB546,499,000 (net
2,030,0007T) B A R#546 499 0007T (314 1= of allowance for credit losses of RMB845,000), respectively.
BB EE{H AR ¥845,0007T)
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23. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Before accepting any new external customers, the Group uses an
internal credit scoring system to assess the potential customer’s credit
quality and assign credit limits thereto. Limits and scoring attributed to
customers are reviewed twice a year.

The average credit period granted on sales of goods is from 3 to 6
months.

At the end of the reporting period, the aged analysis of the Group's
trade receivables, net of allowance for credit losses, presented based on
invoice dates at the end of the reporting period, which approximated the
respective revenue recognition dates, is as follows:

B-N\F R_TLF

+=ZRA=+—HB +=-A=t+—H

At At

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

AB¥TFTT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

3ME A AR Within 3 months 174,530 515,765
3£61EA Between 3 to 6 months 3,029 5,709
72128 A8 Between 7 to 12 months 2,945 12,549
1 Over 1 year 13,976 12,476
194,480 546,499

$& BB P AR AR Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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23. BURIES:  BEW=EEREME  23. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
I BRIA R R FRIA (8) PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

RBEHR - AEE 2 BREERRS TN At the end of the reporting period, the aged analysis of bills receivable of
™~ the Group is as follows:

RB-N\E ATt
+=A=+-B t=A=t-A

At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
AEHTFIT ANEHTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1E A LAA Within 1 month 608,013 504,532
1Z22{8H Between 1 to 2 months 541,558 419,489
223{E A Between 2 to 3 months 315,727 298,946
3Z6{EA Between 3 to 6 months 960,290 1,089,341
2,425,588 2,312,308
it RN ER AIRITAKES - HREBRE N All the above bills receivable are guaranteed by banks and their maturity
BAMR - dates are within 6 months.
RERAEEAR - FEUNBRS « Efb pE NN TE N Fa T Included in the Group's trade and other receivables and prepayments at
HIAREREEE T Y 2 BEENT the end of the reporting period are amounts due from related parties as
follows:
RIB—N\E RT—+F
= H = B et Sy (B
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ABR¥TFIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EiEE Qingling Group 95,410 441,966
EREENKHIBAT Subsidiaries of Qingling Group 11,069 14,533
F R E SR TR B Isuzu Qingling Engineering 48 83
BT TRHE Qingling Isuzu Sales 10,370 34,805
TR ERITET Isuzu Qingling Autoparts - 6,982
B AT EREE B Qingling Isuzu Engine 57,403 =
174,300 498,369
FEREER c RIBEREERRRE The above amounts due from related parties are unsecured and interest-
free.
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R-ZE—N\E+_A=+—8  AEEEK
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,QAEMazwﬂmnd_? +F : AR¥E
605,0007T) * BRAFEABE(BEDmMIE
NEEEER ZNAEEEIIE -

R-E—-NFE+-A=+—8  K&EEER
FRIER B IERB MM (R TE S 2 IR
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55,673,0007T) °

RZZE—N\F+-A=1+—8  FALEHE
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TLZ FEWGRIE s BERRE B e R 8
HEh DR H0B A ENEFHABARK
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23. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group's trade and other
receivables and prepayments are amounts aggregating to approximately
RMB5,282,000 (2017: RMB605,000), which is denominated in Japanese
Yen (“JPY"), other than the functional currency of the respective group
entities.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s prepayments include advance
payments to independent suppliers of steel amounting to approximately
RMB85,682,000 (2017: RMB55,673,000).

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group’s trade receivables
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB18,316,000 which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the
past due balances, an aggregate of approximately RMB6,634,000 has
been past due 90 days or more and is considered as in default, of which
approximately RMB2,966,000 is due from subsidiaries of Qingling Group.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group's trade receivables
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB24,186,000 which are past due at the end of the reporting period
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss, of which
approximately RMB11,398,000 is due from subsidiaries of Qingling
Group. The Group does not consider any risk on subsequent collections,
and most of these receivables are expected to be settled in the coming
year. The Group does not hold any collaterals over these balances.

Aged analysis of trade receivables of the Group which are past due but
not impaired, net of allowances for doubtful debts, is as follows:

AZT—tF
+=-B=+—~8
At

31 December
2017
AREFr
RMB'000

B
1Z=618A
6EAAZ=1F
14E Ak

Overdue by:

1 to 6 months

6 months to 1 year
Over 1 year

17,741
2,256
4,189

24,186
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23. IR - B RER R HE

23. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

W R IR B TR A BRI () PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)
RIEERSH Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
NZT—tF
+-B=+—8H
At
31 December
2017
ARETFT
RMB’000
FHHERS Balance at beginning of the year 2,694
[REAEIERIE] Impairment reversed (1,749)
FRES Balance at end of the year 845

R-Z—+F+-A=+—8 REEEEA
oA AR 845,000 I8 R B & FEUBR 3k
(BRETBRE 2 BEE) -

R=F—\FT=A=1T—HAORKERNK &

H&mTE&E{mFEH& NBARER—REEDRE
HIR B RO ERT (4 2 S B R M RE32

24. REHABE=BAZCRITE

o

BRTEZRNIE1NBAARNIH (= —+F
+-A=+—8: A3&12(@A8) ﬁf K
FERRNF0.80%E3.58% (ZT—+F+—
A=+—H :1.60%%4.50%) °

RZBE—NFE+_A=+—H8 AR¥
26,423,00075(_2 +F : AR¥E5,554,000
To) ZRITEFAET(ET)IIE -

RIB-N\F+ZA=+—-RZREIHPHER

={EA ZRITFERABEF A ITERM
32
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As at 31 December 2017, allowance for doubtful debts are provided
for individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance of
RMB845,000 which are in financial difficulties.

Details of impairment assessment of trade, bills and other receivables
and dividend receivable from a joint venture as at 31 December 2018 are
set out in note 32.

24. BANK DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY
MORE THAN THREE MONTHS

The bank deposits are with a term from 3 to 12 months (31 December
2017: from 3 to 12 months) and carry interest at rates ranging from 0.80%
t0 3.58% (31 December 2017: from 1.60% to 4.50%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2018, the bank deposits of RMB26,423,000 (2017:
RMB5,554,000) were denominated in United Stated Dollar (“USD").

Details of impairment assessment of bank deposits with original maturity
more than three months as at 31 December 2018 are set out in note 32.
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BITHERESR

FITER RITHRRHAS
BROTTFEREBITEBOTHEENEN T
0.0001% £4.50%(ZZF—+t4F : 0.0001% %
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25. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES, BANK
DEPOSITS, BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank deposits, bank balances and cash
Bank deposits and bank balances carry interest at market rates which

ranging from 0.0001% to 4.50% (2017: 0.0001 % to 4.8%) per annum.

The bank balances and cash that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out
below:

RIB—N\E R-Z—+F

+=A=+-B ft-A=t+-H
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
AR¥TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
=T usD 11,115 2,621
=] JPY 1,365 721
B (ETl) Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD") 69 50
BT (&) European Dollar (“EUR") 42 15
HeE (] Great Britain Pound (“GBP") 3 3
12,594 3,410

ZIRFIERITHEER Restricted bank balances

BRMRITERERE DERBEHNRERTE
E8_T-AFN\ATABRRE TR~
FRARRFPE-FRRITEITNSRERER
WA o AR IEEHTEES6

R-E—NFt+_A=+—B2ZZRHIEITLE
& ~ BRITTFERRIRITE SRR ET A BEER
fFEE32 o

The balances have been frozen since 16 August 2015 according to the
civil ruling issued by a court in relation to a dispute in respect of a financial
credit agreement entered into between the Company’s customer and a
bank. Details of which are set out in note 36.

Details of impairment assessment of restricted bank balances, bank
deposits and bank balances at 31 December 2018 are set out in note 32.
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26. FEfHIRS - EMARERAME
fTRIA

RIREHHR - AEENRMNERR - BENRE
R EADREN IR

26. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s trade, bills and other

payables are as follows:

RIE—-N\E HZZT—+F
+=B=+-H +=ZA=+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FERBRSR RN R Trade and bills payables 1,751,638 1,883,428
EREEEA Selling expenses payables 200,954 172,476
FERTIGER Value added tax payables 28,162 30,943
HoAth R FRIE Other payables 189,099 181,284
TR P RIB (KT 7E) Advances from customers (Note) = 463,805
2,169,853 2,731,936

Wit RZZE—-—NF+ZA=+—H RF&EASE Note: As at 31 December 2018, advances from customers previously

BTSRRI 155« BE AN IR
% EAEER AN FENERES
HEETABEA DA MEREE R -«

PIREHER - AEEZ RARRNENRE

included in trade, bills and other payables were reclassified to
contract liabilities and refund liabilities for applying HKFRS 15.

At the end of the reporting period, the age of trade and bills payables of

BREQINT : the Group is as follows:
RIE—\F S
H=BI= ke H i = Fl
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
3MEA AR Within 3 months 1,529,723 1,692,716
3%6fEA Between 3 to 6 months 214,380 182,545
72128 A Between 7 to 12 months 1,255 2,498
12 AL Over 12 months 6,280 5,669
1,751,638 1,883,428
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26. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

Included in the balance of trade, bills and other payables at the end of the
reporting period are amounts due to related parties as follows:

RI-B—N\FE R-_F—+F

+=B=+—-H +-A=1+—H

At At

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

ARBFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

at+8% Isuzu 84,142 98,004
B TIRE Bk Qingling Isuzu Engine 65,698 71,919
EREENKHIBAR Subsidiaries of Qingling Group 65,870 56,386
AT RERT M Qingling Isuzu Autoparts = 2,815
BiREE Qingling Group 5 =
215,715 229,124

BRREABZUE - BER 28
HeEEHA3E6MEA -

RIREHIR - EAIRRREMENKIER
éé%%ﬂ\/&ﬁ%m,e% 0007L(ZZE—+%F :
AR#98,5682,0007T) * BREAEIARES
ﬁo

27. S¥IAR

R-E—NE—A-—BR-_Z—N\F+=A
=+—8 AEENEAHNEEIBARKE
372,184,0007T (Jy AR E 7 B 75 3 5 % A
FIEMEH D BABREFTERE) AR
418,380,0007T - AKEMENEBEETEEH
BAEEREREFIENEFBREB RS
BHREME -

AEER T N\F-A-HNAHEEER
BE—T— J\i-i—_ﬂfﬂ— B EFE R EE
WHER - MR —F—\F+_A=1+—BHNE
HWEBEERBE_ZT-hF+_H=1+—HIt
FENKEAER

These amounts are trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and the
credit period granted on purchases of materials is 3 to 6 months.

At the end of the reporting period, included in trade and other payables
are amounts aggregating to RMB84,696,000 (2017: RMB98,582,000),
which are denominated in JPY.

27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

As at 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018, the Group's contract
liabilities were RMB372,184,000 (which was reclassified from advances
from customers upon adoption of HKFRS 15) and RMB418,380,000,
respectively. The Group's contract liabilities mainly represent the Group's
obligation to transfer trucks and vehicles to customers subsequently for
which the Group has received advance payments from the customers.

The contract liabilities of the Group as at 1 January 2018 were recognised
as revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018, and those as at 31
December 2018 will be recognised as revenue for the year ending 31
December 2019.

ERERMD AR AR Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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28. BEAR 28. REFUND LIABILITIES

RREHERREAERERNE R ZRIHE The refund liabilities at the end of the reporting period are arising from
BiRF| selling rebates to customers.

29. & 29. SHARE CAPITAL

w-&—t&—A—H"
—Z—t&+-HA=+—H
R-—Z2—)\E+-A=+—H
At 1 January 2017,

31 December 2017

and 31 December 2018
AREFr

RMB'000

=t BEBRTRERE Registered, issued and fully paid 2,482,268

Bin&H

Number of shares
w-Z—t&—A—H"
—Z2—t&+-A=+—H
BR-E-N\E+ZA=+—H
At 1 January 2017,

31 December 2017

and 31 December 2018
Fhz

‘000

ER@mEARE1TTHRS Shares of RMB1 each
—NEK — Domestic shares 1,243,616
—Hi% —H shares 1,238,652

2,482,268

RNERAFBEEEF R SRR EFMR S AE Domestic shares are ordinary shares subscribed for and credited as fully
BUARERERARY AN EEX - m paid up in RMB by the PRC government and/or entities established in the

HAR A BT K, S pA R B s AR S ) 2 8 PRC. H shares are ordinary shares subscribed for in HKD and credited as

BAGN A LASE TT 228 12 A A M A BRI B 2 fully paid up in RMB by persons other than the PRC government and/or
AR o entities established in the PRC.

NEREHEREHENS T EHAZE RS Domestic shares and H shares rank pari passu in all respects with each
3% o WBARTAIRERBBATSHARATE other. Domestic shares are not freely traded in The Stock Exchange of
HEE - Hong Kong Limited.

RATIHER « B317 L& R AR TERIL There were no changes in the registered, issued and fully paid share
R EE o capital of the Company during both years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

30. DEFERRED INCOME - GOVERNMENT GRANTS

The deferred income represents government grants subsidising the
Group's equipment for technology innovation and environmental
protection.

31. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital, retained profits
and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure from time to
time. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. The
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

B85 /AE DA R A 7] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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32. &#MTH 32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) &MI AR (a) Categories of financial instruments
R-Z-)\%E R-Z—F
+=B=+—-H +=-A=f+-H
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ARBFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
SMEE Financial assets
EFRRENGE(BREZBHRITES - RITER Loans and receivables (including restricted
RITEARRIRD) bank balances, bank deposits, bank
balances and cash) N/A 8,543,316
RHERATENSREE Financial assets at amortised cost 8,522,767 N/A
SMAR Financial liabilities
BHERAR Amortised cost 2,141,691 2,237,188

(b) £EERREEHRRBR

AEENTESMT ABIERIERN - BKE
BREMBYTIE - BR—REEEERE
RIEABER=EA 2 RITFH - ZRHIRTT
Eer - BRITER  RITEBRKASE - AR
RENEE - BNHEBHAREERNRKIE -
ZESMITAENFERSBRMERKRE -
HZEem T AR @ ERSET SRR
ZRBRINER) - EHEREREE SR
b o AR A ZERBBEBERER IR T o &K
SEEmEZEREBOEEXNEEERAEZE
Bz sl MEANES - BEEEEERE
RERLERR  BREFSREXETEER
it
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(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include trade, bills and other
receivables, dividend receivable from a joint venture, bank deposits with
original maturity more than three months, restricted bank balances,
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and bills payables, selling
expenses payables and other payables. —Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk (interest rate risk
and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. —The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. —There has been no significant
change to the Group’s exposure to these risks or the manner in which
it manages and measures these risks. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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RS o AEBRANERRTE - Bkl EE

FHTH"J@TE/\%’J%MWI\EHKM 0 15@%‘5]%#’}“
EXREAERINERR

AT BAEERREARRANSHERFE
SNERBR B EERER AR REE

n‘/-ﬁ 7f ﬁ&#ﬁi Bﬁ ;I

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BZ_F—\FF+_HA=1—HIFEZE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk

(i) Currency risk

Several entities of the Group have foreign currency purchases, sales,
which expose the Group to currency risk. The Group considers the
currency risk insignificant and does not use any derivative contracts to
hedge against its exposure to currency risk. The Group manages its
foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rates.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities that are subject to currency risk
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

BE aff

Assets Liabilities
RIB-N\E AT —+F RIE-NE RZT—LF
+ZA=+-B +-A=t-R +ZB=+-B t-A=t-A
At At At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2018 2017
ABREFT ARETT ARBTFT AREFT
RMB'000 AMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
e usD 37,538 8,175 = =
AE JPY 6,647 1,326 84,696 98,582
BT HKD 69 50 - -
BT EUR 42 15 - -
W GBP 3 3 - -

BURRE DT Sensitivity analysis

AEEZEERBRKRAETRBEZEER
&) - FEETGEET - B RESEFERKR
FEEKXR - MAZINAREE AT - BTk
RISRRRE DT ©

The Group is mainly exposed to the risk of fluctuations in USD and JPY.
The management assessed the risks of fluctuations in HKD, EUR and
GBP are insignificant and did not present the sensitivity analyses in the
RMB against HKD, EUR and GBP.

ERERMD AR AR Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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32. &M I A(H#)

(b) SERBEEEHREEE
7 48 B8 (48)

() SNEmS ()

TRFMAEBRZARELEZETLRBEAE
5% ENTRE - b% IMEEEBRAERE
A EINERBR R B 2 RE LR - KK
BTEEBHINEERSEN ) 2 5TE o GUK
ENimMEREMAREENIINETEEBIEE -

AR EAREA AR H 2w Kk A BVERIER5%
MYELAIAE - TH(ABEHRRARE R
F T N B EIFHES % B B F AR 1 0% 1) Gl
I - WARBHETKRBEEZESS - 8l
SHFARB A FESERERNOZE -

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
(i) Currency risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase in the
exchange rate of RMB against USD and JPY. 5% is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 5% change in RMB
against USD and JPY. A (negative) positive number below indicates
(decrease) increase in post-tax profit for the year, respectively, where the
RMB strengthen 5% against USD and JPY. For a 5% weakening of the
RMB against USD and JPY, there would be an equal and opposite impact
on the post-tax profit for the year.

BEIZ-\FE HE_TLF

+=A=+—-H +ZA=+—H

LEE HFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

AR®TFT ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

B Profit or loss

E usb (1,595) (347)
=1E] JPY 3,317 4,133

(i) FIEmERE
AREBE R A EEN R R R R E E M X
SIRRHRBIHI R BB = A A 2 RITHFHER -

AREZ RS RENRERERETREANE
Biz¥ SR RITABRIBITERELEZF
R KIKE -
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(i) Interest rate risk

The Group's fair value interest risk relates preliminary to bank deposits
with original maturity more than three months carried at fixed interest
rates.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of deposit interest rate arising from the Group's bank balances
and bank deposits carried at variable rate.
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32. &M I A(H#)

(b) SEEREEERRBE )
7 8 R BE ()

(i) FIFmE ()

AT SUBE AT ORI A R4S B R IR 2 B 15
FHRFMEZ RITRBRRMEBET - %IJTL%
S fR1K0.256% (ZZE—+F : 0.25%) HAIEE
BEEABERPREFERRRRA - WRE
FEEHFREEAEE 2 5T o

i FIZE _EFtBRIK0.25% B F A HAb & &8 (R iF
T8 REERHEE-Z—\E+-_A=+—
AIEFE 2 BB RF R REE I, R HAR
#2,619,0007T(— T —+4F : #E1, HPAR
#£3,120,0007T) ° EEHNAEEREHIRITEH
R MIRTTIE R Z FIR BB ATE ©

15 /M B3 R i BT

RZZE-N\F+ZA=+—0  F&EEERS
BT REBTEAMELMBERZZAER
[\ 7o 7K B 47 & MR R TSI R BE RS
BEEZREE

BB RIPTEL BRI R IENSTE

AR AEE S E S GEES 2 EETAE
ZEBREFAREETSL  HR=ZZT—N\F
+ A=+ RAEKRBESRBELREARE
152,097,000t (EE B EEE-8) 2 Z ARk
BER - AEBEERNTAFINGER Z A
@ﬁﬁﬁ WEBFED R A B ERPEEE R
DIKEERE - AEBBFEEMARTES
MIEERBEMTD o N AEBEREESTE
BB IIR B R M TS -

REEERRR  AEEEREDHR—EN
HEEETEEREREERF AR
BRHEHE A Bl B R (R TE - ERUA BFE
ﬁgj AR EERRAEENGERARRERE
TR

NEERBEREE TR - BEIRKMESLE
HEZEF R EEHEN T —+F+=A
=+ HNEKREREEREEEE AR
2,859,652,000 0 TEE(E + WaTIREWIRIK
B AR ¥845,0007T ©
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to bank balances carried prevailing deposit interest rate at the
end of the reporting period. 0.25% (2017: 0.25%) increase or decrease
in interest rate is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’'s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 0.25% higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2018 would increase/decrease by approximately
RMB2,619,000 (2017: increase/decrease by RMB3,120,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its bank
balances and bank deposits.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying amounts of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Trade and bills receivables arising from contracts with customers

The credit risk on gross amounts due from related parties of
RMB152,097,000 (allowance for credit losses — Nil) as at 31 December
2018 is limited because the Group also periodically evaluated the related
parties’ credit rating and these related parties credit rating is high. Before
accepting any new external customers, the Group uses an internal credit
scoring system to assess the potential customer's credit quality and
assign credit limits thereto. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are
reviewed twice a year. Besides, recoverability of the existing customers is
reviewed by the management of the Group regularly.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits and
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debtors. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The trade and bills receivables of gross amounts of RMB2,859,652,000
of the Group as at 31 December 2017 were assessed on individual
customer basis based on internal credit rating, customers’ ageing and
historical default rates and an impairment provision for trade receivables
of RMB845,000 were made.

B8 HE D ARRE 2 7 Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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32. @I R>GR)

(b) BARPREE B MR KR ()

15 R P2 B sl (AT 15 (#)

B AMIFEL IR RIS A

BRMBABMGREEBIRAK - &

ERBARBMHREEANFIRNBILITER

z)

3L

=

HHERERX  ETRURER R ERERR

ReMRHEREX - AEtERMERE

%

RIB-NF+ZA=+—HEEEHRERK

Zpwase A R12,622,098,0007T TR IE

ey

ERRBRE#HSA - BREBEAIERFTR K

PRl M A PTEMFHESL RS
TIERIRHE - W BB HIBZRARS
ARRMATE AL A - RIEARQ

£
jJEﬂ

EEHARHE - AKE E*ETF%E%E%@EH%TE

SEAYENR B NF+-A=+—

FEU R RIN EHERBER IR AR 1,185,

JC °©
R~ A ETRERERAMBERIE

BB BT SR EERFIFIAR + K
BER-_Z—\F+-_A=+—HHME
THAAEE AR#511,931,000t MR — & —
T A=+ BHREN—REEDLERSE
R#22,203,000t (ZE B BEEE-£)D
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade and bills receivables arising from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Since the adoption of HKFRS 9, the Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for trade and bills
receivables. To measure the ECL, trade and bills receivables of gross
amounts of RMB2,622,098,000 as at 31 December 2018 have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and have been
individually assessed based on internal credit rating, customers’ ageing
and historical observed default rates over the expected life of the
customers and adjusted for forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Based on the assessment by the directors
of the Company, additional impairment loss of RMB1,185,000 on the
Group’s trade receivables as at 31 December 2018 under the lifetime
ECL was made.

Dividend receivable from a joint venture and other receivables

Since the adoption of HKFRS 9, the Group has assessed the impairment
for its other receivables of gross amounts of RMB11,931,000 as at 31
December 2018, individually and dividend receivable from a joint venture
of gross amounts of RMB22,203,000 (allowance for credit losses - Nil)
as at 31 December 2018, based on internal credit rating and ageing of
these debtors which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
have no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Based
on the assessment by the directors of the Company, an impairment loss
of RMB25,000 for 12m ECL on the Group's other receivables as at 31
December 2018 was made and no impairment provision for 12m ECL
was made for dividend receivable from a joint venture as at 31 December
2018.

Bank deposits with original maturity more than three months, restricted
bank balances, bank deposits and bank balances

The management of the Company assessed that the Group’s bank
deposits with original maturity more than three months, restricted bank
balances, bank deposits and bank balances with an aggregate gross
amount of RMB5,868,590,000 as at 31 December 2018 are at low credit
risk because they are placed with reputable banks with higher internal
credit ratings with reference to either international or PRC credit-rating
agencies, and ECL is insignificant.
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Allowance for impairment

During the current year, the movements in allowance for impairment in
respect of trade and other receivables were as follows:

FEW R R
2HIEHGER 2HEHER  HaEWRiE
2ES B 12AAEH
(ERRE) CHERRE) =RBX st
Trade receivables
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL Other
(credit— (not credit— receivables
impaired) impaired) 12m ECL Total
ARETFT AREFT ARETFT ARETFT
RMB000 RMB000 RMB’000 RMB000
RZE—\F—A—HNEH  Balances as at 1 January 2018 845 = = 845
Eﬁﬁwﬁfﬁiﬁﬁ Impairment losses recognised = 1,185 25 1,210
—N\F+-A=1+—HHK
b Balances as at 31 December 2018 845 1,185 25 2,055
=EHERBES Concentration on credit risk

MiEE23PT I R < IR BIE T SRIB 2 (E AR
&9 AEEEHTEBES 2 EFRARLS
KEZIREL TP - BRI AREZH
YRR M A RIR 2 E R AR TE
B&EF - RBROBREEIZHTRES °

A b A

REERDECRR - ARBEEREREE
%EVE?E%ZE@&L@%%@‘;%*SF AR
SELERHESRAERSRERDZF
& AEERBERERGEL RS REER
BESHR - REAEBEERERNKT A
HY PR NR SRS R AT A N fE A A UER
MIRTTAEERAI A A 5 B IEER « IRIFETR S
BeTRA - ARREFREAREERA AR
BEZRESRNEMBEE -

There is concentration of credit risk on amounts due from related
parties, which have been disclosed in note 23 and the Group periodically
evaluated the related parties credit rating and also look for more
non-related party customers. Apart from that, the Group does not
have significant concentration of credit risk on other trade and other
receivables, with exposure spread over a number of counter-parties and
customers.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies on cash generated from
operating activities as a significant source of liquidity. Trade and bills
receivables can be received within six months based on the earliest date
on which the Group can require payments and bank balances can be
drawn on demand. The directors of the Company believe that the Group
will have sufficient funds available to meet its financial obligations in the
foreseeable future based on management working capital forecast.

ERERMD AR AR Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity
for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment
terms. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay.

E3 g FRz
ReRElE IREE
Pi—ER EREIE Total Carrying
Less than 1E3(8R8 3 months undiscounted amount at
1month  1-3 months to 1year cash flows year end
AREFL AREFT ARETT AREFT  ARETFT
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
R-Z-\E+-A=+—8 At 31 December 2018
AN ANES Trade and bills payables 661,227 524,315 566,096 1,751,638 1,751,638
EHEERREMENTUE Selling expenses payables and
other payables 181,490 140,143 68,420 390,053 390,053
842,717 664,458 634,516 2,141,691 2,141,691
RZZE—tEF+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2017
AN ARES Trade and bills payables 966,252 596,100 321,076 1,883,428 1,883,428
[ERHE B R REMENIE Selling expenses payables and
other payables 225,086 71,024 57,650 353,760 353,760
1,191,338 667,124 378,726 2,237,188 2,237,188

(c) HREFHEELAOAREHEZFSKE
eHMEERSMARZIANRKRE

rEEeREENERBEZAABERER
RZEBRANRENRCHRARERESINE

=
ARBEERR WA ERER AR HK

Rz eRMEERERABB I REERZER
REERE -
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(c) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised costs in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

The Group's related party balances are set out in notes 23 and 26.

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with
related parties:

(i) Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries

BE-S-\E HE-T L7
+=A=t+-B +-A=1-A

LLEE TEE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
RRER Types of transactions 2018 2017
AR#TT AERETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HEERTELEHE Sales of chassis to Qingling Group 1,239,140 1,419,794
HEABTHHREMT : Sales of automobile parts and others to:
—ERERBEARAR(EREE]) - EEEREEAR A" Qingling Casting”) 24,062 26,894
- EEERERARRA(ERERE)) - EEERBEBEARAF("Qingling Axle") 13,949 10,866
—EEERAEBRAERAR(ERER]) - EERRAEEBRERAFI"Qngling
Chair") 10,072 9,955
-EEERIATBARAR(ERER)) - EEERERAEBRAFI"Qingling Zhuan
Yong”) 5,648 3,184
—ERBRAEEEADRERAR(ERER]) - ERERABEAIDMARAT("Qingling
Chassis") 3,889 3,612
-BEEBRERRAR(ERRE]) - EERRBEBR A F("Qingling Forging”) 2,705 3,343
—ERERAERNDREERRAR(EREMm) - EEERAERNDnBERRAR
("Qingling Jijia") 2,466 1,256
—ERERENABRAR(EREM]) - EEESRBAERAT("Qingling Plastics”) 1,447 724
-~ EEERBIEARAR(EREBE) - ERERERARAF)("Qingling Cast
Aluminium") 1,474 1,220
—-BRER - Qingling Group 712 6
66,424 60,960
R REEHRe Purchases of automobile parts from:
—BREE - Qingling Axle 421,801 393,142
—BRER - Qingling Chair 61,347 55,096
—BiH - Qingling Plastics 59,321 62,314
—BiRiE - Qingling Forging 40,961 35,277
—BiEE - Qingling Casting 29,249 25,040
— L5 - Qingling Cast Aluminium 11,066 9,289
Ll - Qingling Jijia 9,038 2,396
—EREA - Qingling Zhuan Yong 6,869 3,899
-ERESR - Qingling Chassis 4,621 4,431
—EEEREFDRHEARAR(EREHDR]) - BEEEREHBRHIEARAR("Qngling
Vehicle Parts”) 1,276 934
—EREE - Qingling Group 38 =
645,587 591,818

ERERMD AR AR Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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33. MESRH () 33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES

(i) HERKRERENRELTERESE)

(CONTINUED)

(i) Transactions with Qingling Group and its subsidiaries

(Continued)

BE_Z-N\F EE-_T—LF
+=ZRA=+—-B +=A=+—H
ILEE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
RRER Types of transactions 2018 2017
AR#FIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HAEEERSSE - Rental expenses for renting warehouse:
—-EREE - Qingling Group 8,168 8,114
HAEEFHRSIE - Rental expenses for renting building:
—-EREE - Qingling Group 830 =
HREREReH Rental expenses for renting equipment:
—BERBE - Qingling Forging 20,089 19,974
-BREH - Qingling Group 873 867
RGBS - Service fee expense:
—-EREE — Qingling Group 89 3,916
RIEBUA Service fee income:
-EBEREE - Qingling Group 1,550 =
HHABEES LA Rental income from leasing plant:
—BERBE - Qingling Forging 182 180
HIAREHES WA Rental income from leasing equipment:
—ERER - Qingling Axle 437 521

3} 2018 ANNUAL REPORT
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33. MEFXH, (i) 33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(CONTINUED)
(i) HAE+8EHXS (ii) Transactions with Isuzu

BES-I\F H="T—1F
+=A=+—H +-A=+—H

ILLFE HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
ZRER Types of transactions 2018 2017
ARSFIT ARETFT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
BERESH R Purchases of automobile parts and
components 387,765 544,446
WEELEE Acquisition of intangible assets 77,327 =
HERBEREMEREENEAERIERE Royalties and license fee paid on sales of
trucks and other vehicles 22,137 17,368
BEWHEER Marketing fee received 7,133 2,858
HEERT I REATESF REPMHT Sales of accessory sets and other automobile
parts and components 4,168 3,104
HEFRE Sales of trucks 760 =
MEEA Research expenses - 2,677
(iii) HERA+ERHBROTS (ili) Transactions with Qingling Isuzu Engine
BE_Z-N\E FE-_T—LF
+=A=+-H ‘l'_ﬂ_'i' =
LLFE FE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
RRER Types of transactions 2018 2017
AREFT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
BE BT REME Purchases of automobile parts and raw
materials 1,200,482 1,188,106
HE BT REME Sales of automobile parts and raw materials 728,736 628,635
AR E 2 A Rental income from leasing equipment 39,285 39,120
AR EWE 2 WA Rental income for investment properties 4,260 4,234
BB REWA Experiment service income = 1,287
HIBRBEBA Miscellaneous service income 1,019 991
SEMIHA Collaborative processing income 6 16

B2 AH A AR A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd 167
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33. ESARH HEeR(|E 33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(CONTINUED)
(iv) HERATHRHENRSH (iv) Transactions with Qingling Isuzu Sales

BE-S-\F HE-T 7
+ZAS+-B t-A=t-A

ILEE HFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

RRER Types of transactions 2018 2017

AR#FIT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

HERBRAETHH Sales of trucks and automobile parts 36,142 57,166

IR EE 2 WA Rental income from investment properties 1,550 1,541

HIERBBA Miscellaneous service income 2 472

HISIRSE R Maintenance service expense 2 =
(v) HAE+SESRHTGRRNHES (v) Transactions with Isuzu Qingling Engineering

BES-I\F H="T—1F
+=A=+—H +-A=+—H

LLEE HFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

ZRER Types of transactions 2018 2017

ARBTFT ARETFT

RMB’'000 RMB'000

HIBRRFEBA Miscellaneous service income 1,105 1,040

B EME 2 WA Rental income for investment properties = 438

HERETHREMH Sales of automobile parts and raw materials 5 6
(vi) BRE+8EERSESHENHES (vi) Transactions with Isuzu Qingling Autoparts

EB-N\E HE_ZT—+F
= e el - S = 5 = [

LLEE LFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
ZHER Types of transactions 2018 2017
ABRETFT AREFT
RMB000 RMB'000
HESES N REME Sales of automobile parts and raw
materials 92,469 125,402
HIERBUA Miscellaneous service income 1,035 1,013
BERBETHMH Purchase of autoparts 8,732 2,815
MREERBER Reimbursed expense for logistical
packaging - 10

168 %} 2018 ANNUAL REPORT
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(CONTINUED)

(vii) During the year, the Group’s joint venture (Qingling Isuzu
Engine) merged with Qingling Autoparts in December 2018.
Details of the merger are set out in note 20.

The above transactions with related parties also constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and are conducted in accordance with the terms
of the relevant agreements.

(viii) Transactions/balances with other government-related entities
in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently predominated
by entities directly or indirectly owned or controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by the PRC government (“government-
related entities”). In addition, the Group itself is part of a larger group
of companies under Qingling Group which is controlled by the PRC
government. Apart from the transactions with Qingling Group and its
subsidiaries disclosed in section (i) above, the Group also conducts
businesses with other government-related entities. The directors of the
Company consider those government-related entities are independent
third parties so far as the Group’s business transactions with them are
concerned.

Material transactions/balances with other government-related entities are
as follow:

BE—B-I\F B=_TtF
+=RA=+—H —I'fﬂ_-l— A

LEE HFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

AR¥TFT ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

BH5iHE Trade sales 327,865 465,939
BI5RE Trade purchases 276,332 164,597

ERERMD AR AR Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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33. MEFXH, (i)

(viii) REAftBFERERNZS i

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
(CONTINUED)

(viii) Transactions/balances with other government-related entities

(#) in the PRC (Continued)
RIBE-N\E HRZZ—LF
+ZA=+—-H +ZA=+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B EMBTEREENE Sk EtEH Trade and other balances due to other

government-related entities 88,214 64,990

M EA BT IEEEROE S R EMEH Trade and other balances due from other
government-related entities 224,361 272,325

AN ARER B EEBBIET RE TBBA
HRERNRITIUBHBETZERS 8
ELARBS R BRSNS RE/ BE 7
FAREM —ARIRITRE IRTS - ERULFIRIT
RHHMNE - ARBREFAREHERKEL

B EXPIEESIN - ARBEERAR - BBUF
HAERETHRZRAEENEREM S LT
EPNE

(ix) EE - -EERFEEEARZHH

FREF EFERAMEIZEBABZBHMENW
T

In addition, the Group has entered into various transactions, including
utilities services and surcharges/taxes charged by the PRC government,
and deposits and other general banking facilities with certain banks
and financial institutions which are government-related entities in their
ordinary course of business. In view of the nature of these banking
transactions, the directors of Company are of the opinion that separate
disclosure is not meaningful.

Except as disclosed above, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that transactions with government-related entities are not

significant to the Group's operations.

(ix) Compensation of directors, supervisors and key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors, supervisors and other members of key
management during the year are as follows:

BEZZ-I\F AT tF

+=A=+—-H +=A=+-H

LB LFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

ARBFT AREFor

RMB’000 RMB'000

KEEF Short-term benefits 3,754 3,951
BRI EAR A Post-employment benefits 483 487
4,237 4,438
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34. COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following capital
commitments:

RB—N\E  R-T i
+=A=t+-B +-A=t-A

At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ABRETFTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

BETERNGA B RRBENEARE Contracted for but not provided in the

consolidated financial statements in

respect of:
—BARREDE - BER&E - acquisition of property, plant and

equipment 23,438 33,860

35. EEHR
FEMERKEA
RIS BER - REERENA T MBS

PRI E S BT AAESN R RZERE
HIEMT

35. OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessee
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which
fall due as follows:

HEREE With Qingling Group
RIBE-N\E HRZZ—LF
+=A=+—-B +=A=+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
AR#TFIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
16/ Within one year 10,942 10,021
B2FZEF (BIEERME) In the second to fifth year inclusive = 10,021
10,942 20,042

B2 AH A AR A Qingling Motors Co. Ltd 171
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35. EEHERGE)

35. OPERATING LEASES (CONTINUED)

EEEESEHEA (18) The Group as lessee (Continued)
HERNHE With Qingling Forging
RZE—N\E PRZT—F
+=ZB=+—-H +=-A=+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
15/ Within one year 23,370 23,370
F2FZESF (BEERMF) In the second to fifth year inclusive - 23,370
23,370 46,740
BHEMEE With other landlords
+=ZB=+-H +=-A=+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
AREFT AREFoT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1R Within one year 3,848 621
F2FEEFESF (BEEEMT) In the second to fifth year inclusive 1,934 414
5,782 1,035

REHENREAEERAEETREREE
REXNOES  BHREHEEA—FE=
F o

3} 2018 ANNUAL REPORT

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
certain of its warehouses and production facilities. Leases are negotiated
for term of one to three years.
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35. OPERATING LEASE (CONTINUED)
The Group as lessor
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants

for the following future minimum lease payments in respect of land and
buildings and production facilities:

BERA1RBER With Qingling Isuzu Engine
R-B—N\FE H_ZT+F
+=B=+—H +=ZR=+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ARBFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
1R Within one year 48,610 50,401
FE2FEELF (RIEEREMT) In the second to fifth year inclusive s 48,610
48,610 99,011

HERR18N8E With Qingling Isuzu Sales

R-B—N\FE HN=ZT+F
+=A=+-B +-A=+-A
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ARBFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
15/ Within one year 1,710 1,710
E2FEELF(REEREMTE) In the second to fifth year inclusive = 1,710
1,710 3,420

B85 /AE DA R A 7] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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35. EEHE ) 35. OPERATING LEASE (CONTINUED)
TREEHHEA (8 The Group as lessor (Continued)
HENER With Qingling Axle

R=B-N\E  R-TtE
+ZA=+-B +t=A=t-A

At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ARBFT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB'000
15/ Within one year 300 510
FOFEFESF (BEEEMT) In the second to fifth year inclusive - 300
300 810
V- kg =y g3 -k With Isuzu Qingling Engineering
+=ZA=+—-B +=ZA=+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ARBFT ARETFT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
1R Within one year - 972
EFEESF(RIEEREME) In the second to fifth year inclusive - 972
i 1,944

BA P ESN - NEENRE RS EH Other than the above, the Group does not have any other commitments

MR AI MY « RERSE RIS EY S for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
RYAQETE 7 R RS T & SR IE - leases of property, plant and equipment and investment properties at the
end of the reporting period.
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36. HRFERIEOR

BRI MERREARERELNREETE
2 ER—RARREF(ZEFR] By
RARE) B BIN—RIRIT([RITADEFTNS
RMEFABMALL  NEEMIRITESB AR
79,999,000t EB —E—HENA T+ NBHE

+
i o

R-T—AF - RITAEEZEPAKRERE
REHZRNATHTENRES - BRZR
EWENEOSEHE  RITATBRERZEF
RAFEAMAEET 2285 E  RITAE
— R ARRRERAE N  BZBEFEX
NH2EEFIE TR RIS B RERTT
ABTEHRE  ERABBREHZ  AMEE
SZEIBKFEETEEEM - BITAEBZEF
ABREREZHMOBES KX AEARES 0008
TC o 2B MRARE S RERIRITARKN A
NCINE

RARRZZE—N\FHEAZ TR BKEIRINE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

36. PROVISION FOR LITIGATION

According to the civil ruling issued by FIJITREAREARZE
(transliterated as People’s Court of Futian District, Shenzhen) in relation to
a dispute in respect of a financial credit agreement entered into between
the Company's customer (the “Customer”, who is independent to the
Company) and another bank (“Bank A"), the Group's bank balances of
RMB79,999,000 have been frozen since 16 August 2015.

In 2015, Bank A alleged that the Customer has failed to meet the margin
calls according to the requirements under a credit agreement, constituting
an event of default of such agreement. Bank A is also entitled to demand
the Customer to prematurely repay all the amount granted under the
relevant credit facilities. Bank A further alleged that the Company did
not, as instructed by the Bank A, deliver the vehicles that had not been
picked up but paid by the Customer in full with loan to the warehouse as
specified by Bank A, leading to a breach of the relevant credit agreement,
and should be jointly and severally liable to compensate for the losses it
suffered. Bank A stated that the outstanding credit balances due from the
Customer was RMB80 million in aggregate. The replacement of Bank A
by Company Y ultimately as the plaintiff was approved by relevant court
afterwards.

The Company received the Judgment dated 14 May 2018 from Shenzhen
Court on 25 May 2018. Summary of the Judgment is as follows:

(1)  the Customer shall pay Company Y the principal amount of
approximately RMB80 million and the interest of the loans;

(2)  related guarantors (guarantor A, guarantor B, guarantee company
A and guarantee company B) shall be jointly and severally liable
to compensate Company Y in respect of the abovementioned
indebtedness of the Customer; and

(3) the Company shall assume the supplementary compensation
liability for the abovementioned indebtedness of the Customer and
the aforesaid guarantors. Upon the supplementary repayment, the
Company is entitled to recover it from the Customer.

The Company appealed against the Judgment. On 25 March 2019,
Guangdong Court conducted a trial on the Judgment and a court
investigation thereof, but has not yet made a final ruling as at the
approval date of these consolidated financial statements. The directors
of the Company reviewed all documents and agreements in relation
to this litigation and the Judgment, and also considered the possible
outcome of the appeal as well as the possible timing and cash outflows
for the litigation. In view of the fact that there is no further evidence
that the Company shall assume more responsibilities, the directors of
the Company, with reference to the opinion of the PRC legal adviser,
expected the Company will not pay off the amount within one year from
the end of the reporting period and have made a non-current provision for
litigation of RMB80,000,000 in these consolidated financial statements.

ERERMD AR AR Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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37. FLAFIMBATFS 37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY
RZZE—-N\F+-_A=Z+—AKkK=ZF—+tF Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 December 2018 and 31
+ZA=+—R AREHBABF BN December 2017 are as follows:
T
FAFEREEN
BEMRESER RERRAS gmEs BREEENESL
HELFRE Country of registration ~ Form of business Registered  Proportion of ownership interests £ E#H
Name of subsidiary and operation structure capital directly held by the Company Principal activities
ZE-\E —E+F
2018 2017
BRIEA F Giilizav 38,166,6005 T 50.56% 50.56%  AEMETHHBHMER
Qingling Moulds The PRC Incorporated USD38,166,600 50.56% 50.56%  Production of moulds
for the manufacture of
automobile parts
BREMmTL hE ML 29,980,000%7C 51.00% 51.00% HARHEH
Qingling Technical Center The PRC Incorporated USD29,980,000 51.00% 51.00%  Not yet commenced
business
R e hE Bz AR #9,000,00070 100.00% TER  AERERERERS
Shenzhen New Energy The PRC Incorporated RMB9,000,000 100.00% N/A Automobile retailing and
after-sales services
FRZEWB R T ARBITEMERRES o None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the

year.

TERBARINIRSKEAMAEFEEREE S There are no significant restrictions on the ability of principal subsidiaries
BEERSMAEB BRI HIIEST|E R to transfer funds to the Group in form of cash dividends, or to repay loans
Rl o or advances made by the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

37. ELFME LTSGR 37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

T%%ZZ»VI%E@%&%‘EK?H M IERE

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the

MB A EIREES Group that have material non-controlling interests:
FERERSHLZ
BAEEGSRARHEAL
Proportion ownership AEEFRREINAT EH S
ENGES interests and voting rights held Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary by non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
Z-0\E e 3 - 23 E-t% -0\F I 13
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
% % ARBFT AREFT  ABRTT AR
% % RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB'0000 RMB 000
BRER
Qingling Moulds 49.44 49.44 5,635 4,743 168,546 164,957
BREL
Qingling Technical Center 49.00 49.00 2,108 126 141,695 139,587
7,743 4,869 310,241 304,544

BRASEREEAHERER  ZMBA
ZIBERBEFHIMT - LATE?H‘%%H«HEﬁEx
FEEREARNRELHATNEREE

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group is
subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is set out below.
The summarised financial information below represents amounts before

intragroup eliminations.

BHRER Qingling Moulds

NZE—\FE RTF
+=A=+—-B +=ZA=+-°H
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ARBFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
TEEE Current assets 342,000 350,241
FERBEE Non-current assets 21,302 22,487
MBAE Current liabilities (17,935) (34,615)

NNk 2SN Equity attributable to owners of the
Company 176,821 173,156
AR Non-controlling interests 168,546 164,957

ERERMD AR AR Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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37. EATFIME LTS E) 37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
EREA R Qingling Moulds (Continued)

BEZS-\& BE=_T+F
+ZA=+—-B +-A=1—H

LLEE EFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

ARBTFT AREFIL

RMB’000 RMB'000

Wiz Revenue 59,135 59,797

53 Expense (47,737) (50,203)

FREF Profit for the year 11,398 9,594
ARRRA NEIERF REFE B Profit and total comprehensive income

attributable to the owners of the Company 5,763 4,851
FHERER B S KR A Bl Profit and total comprehensive income

attributable to the non-controlling interests 5,635 4,743

B ERRS Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 2,046 1,674

BE_E-N\FE HE-ZT—+F

H=B = F e e

LEE IFE

Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

ARBTFT AREFIT

RMB'000 RMB'000

B 7 RSTLFE Net cash outflow from operating activities (9,056) (5,154)

REEB RS R FE Net cash outflow from investing activities = (57)

BEE RERLFER Net cash outflow from financing activities (4,144) (3,387)

WE R FE Net cash outflow (13,200) (8,598)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (CONTINUED)

B HE RO Qingling Technical Center
+ZA=+—-B +ZA=+—H
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
AREFiT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB’000
TENEE Current assets 289,578 284,871
mEaE Current liabilities (405) =
ANEHEE AEG RS Equity attributable to owners of the
Company 147,478 145,284
IR Non-controlling interests 141,695 139,587
BE-B-N\§ HE_TF
+=-A=+—HA +=R=+—H
LEE EFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
AREFIT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FSHA Interest income 5,449 373
X Expenses (1,147) (116)
FREF Profit for the year 4,302 257
AR AR NEG R RiRE B Profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to the owners of the Company 2,194 131
FEE R PR B R Ar A Profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to the non-controlling interests 2,108 126

ENFEERESRE

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

ERERMD AR AR Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

37. F LTI L FIEN ()

37. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

BEE RO (1) Qingling Technical Center (Continued)
BE_B-N\§ HE-_TtF
+ZRA=+—H +=ZA=+—H
j12-3: 5 HFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
AREFIT AEEFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
LEEB RS RNFE Net cash inflow from operating activities 3,528 395
REEZO RERNFE Net cash inflow from investing activities 10,262 =
RERAFHE Net cash inflow 13,790 395

38. MEEBFRIELEARZAGER

TRV AEEREDDAELNEEEHF
NEERERIFReEE) - RELHHEL
HEEERERECRARKE S REHNE

SESAREAERANEABELZDRENR
EWAE-

38. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement
of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

RS

Dividend mEr

payable Total

AREFT AREFT

RMB'000 RMB'000

—N\F—A—H At 1 January 2018 & =

mﬂﬁiﬁﬁmg(ﬂ/f}f) Financing cash flows (Note) (399,209) (399,209)
FREEE Non-cash changes:

EERRE Dividend declared 399,209 399,209

—E-N\F+ZRA=1+—H At 31 December 2018 = =

R-ZE—+tF—F—H At 1 January 2017 = =

BERSTEW ) Financing cash flows (Note) (398,837) (398,837)
FREEH : Non-cash changes:

EEIRRE Dividend declared 398,837 398,837

R-2—t&+=-A=1+—H

Kt HBREREREGERERERAIIRE
A FARRARER R RN E A AR T
BB RO S, o

3} 2018 ANNUAL REPORT

At 31 December 2017 - =

Note: The cash flows represent dividend paid to shareholders of the
Company and a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary in the
consolidated statement of cash flows.
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B2 —ZF—\F+-HA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

39. ELT)MIEHKNR K 6= 39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

RIZ—)\fE RZZ—+F
+ZB=+-B +=A=1+-H
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ABRBFT AREFT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
FRBBE Non-current assets
mE - BEREE Property, plant and equipment 739,638 743,029
B Lile Prepaid lease payments 36,677 38,060
REME Investment properties 28,901 30,917
EVEE Intangible assets 265,574 215,327
RBAR ZRE Investments in subsidiaries 294,073 285,073
R EREZHE Investment in an associate 6,333 6,333
REEREZRE Investments in joint ventures 368,639 368,639
ERETIEAE Deferred tax assets 23,384 31,752
1,763,219 1,719,130
REEE Current assets
"E Inventories 632,650 627,986
FEMRTS - ISR IR I H R UGB R BTV Trade, bills and other receivables and

prepayments 2,686,083 2,865,783
B LiEe Prepaid lease payments 1,383 1,383

REBEBR=AA 2 BIER Bank deposits with original maturity more than
three months 1,125,947 1,325,245
XBHIRI TS Restricted bank balances 79,999 79,999
BOGER - BOEBERE Bank deposits, bank balances and cash 4,119,812 3,717,113
8,645,874 8,617,509

ER/AERMHAMR AR Qingling Motors Co. Ltd 181
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39. FLATMIFHK N R o0 & (18) 39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

+=B=+-H ‘I‘:HE‘I‘ 5]
At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
ABRBFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB 000
nBEE Current liabilities
FERTIRSR - IR R AN Trade, bills and other payables 2,153,062 2,695,846
HEak Tax liabilities 7,980 20,127
BHBE Contract liabilities 415,066 =
REBE Refund liabilities 84,316 =
2,660,424 2,715,973
mEAEFE Net current assets 5,985,450 5,901,536
BEERRSBE Total assets less current liabilities 7,748,669 7,620,666
BARGE Capital and reserves
R Share capital 2,482,268 2,482,268
RAE(E R F#E Share premium and reserves 5,179,661 5,132,738
BEER Total equity 7,661,929 7,615,006
FrnEaE Non-current liabilities
BRI - B8 Deferred income — government grants 6,740 5,660
FREABLE Provision for litigation 80,000 =
86,740 5,660
7,748,669 7,620,666
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B2 —ZF—\F+-HA=+—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2018

39. ELTF)MIEHRNR B iR x (1) 39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

ENFIRFEZET Movements in reserves of the Company
BELES
BERE EFLEE Statutory RERH
Share Capital surplus Retained #st
premium reserve  reserve fund profits Total
AREFT  ARETT AREFT AREFT  AREFT
RMB'000 ARMB000 AMB'000 AMB 000 RMB'000
R=F—+F—-A—H At 1 January 2017 1,764,905 572210 1043159 1675649 5055923
FRRT ki e Bl Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - - - 473,978 473,978
FENE Appropriation for the year = = 49,280 (49,280) -
i‘zﬁ_i NERERE 2016 final dividend paid - - - (397,163) (397,163)
RZZB—+F+ZA=+—-A At 31 December 2017 1,764,905 572,210 1,092,439 1,703,184 5,132,738
FRE T KR e allE Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - - - 444,086 444,086
FEE Appropriation for the year = = 44,865 (44,865) =
ﬁﬁ_f TERBRE 2017 final dividend paid - - - (397,163) (397,163)
—E-N\§+ZHB=+-H At 31 December 2018 1,764,905 572,210 1,137,304 1,705,242 5,179,661

B85 /AE DA R A 7] Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

BHERE — RETEMBREER Financial summary — in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards

REXRE CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

BE+_A=+—HLEE
For the Year ended 31 December
—E-N\g —T—tF ZETRE ZT-HF T-MF
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ARBFIT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

WA Revenue 5,253,252 5073336 4,633,785 5,504,296 5,800,078
BRI AR R Profit before tax 530,169 580,707 566,626 565,449 522,735
FrsBiFx Income tax expense (68,654) (78,912) (80,577) (80,310) (74,037)
F A5 Profit for the year 461,515 501,795 486,049 485,139 448,698
FEBN Attributable to:
RAREREB A Owners of the Company 453,772 496,926 481,287 479,887 444,549
FEE R Non-controlling interests 7,743 4,869 4,762 5,252 4,149

461,515 501,795 486,049 485,139 448,698

A MBIRRR CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION

®»+=-B=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-N\Eg —T+F —ZT—RE ET-HF —TNF
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ARBTT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BEE Total assets 10,893,251 10,821,989 10,197,850 10,210,173 10,180,560
BmaE Total liabilities (2,769,137) (2,759,142) (2,237,961) (2,337,385) (2,392,488)
SRR Total equity 8,124,114 8,062,847 7,959,889 7,872,788 7,788,072
FEBR Attributable to:
RAREREBA Owners of the Company 7,813,873 7,758,303 7,658,540 7,574,416 7,491,692
IR RS Non-controlling interests 310,241 304,544 301,349 298,372 296,380

8,124,114 8,062,847 7,959,889 7,872,788 7,788,072
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PROPOSAL FOR APPROPRIATION OF PROFIT
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FOR THE YEAR OF 2018

In accordance with the pertinent regulations and based on the actual
situation of the Company, the board of directors of the Company resolved
that the proposed appropriation of profit for the year of 2018 be as
follows:

1. The appropriation of net profits after taxation shall be:10% for
Statutory Reserve Fund * 0% for Statutory Public Benefit Fund
(Note 1) and 90% for profit available for distribution.

2. A final dividend of RMBO0.16 per share in cash (Note 2). Subject to
the approval of the shareholders at the annual general meeting, the
proposed final dividend is expected to be paid to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of shareholders of the
Company on Thursday, 13 June 2019. Further announcement will
be made as to the exact form of payment.

Notes: 1. In accordance with the amendment to the Company
Law of PRC on 27 October 2005 effective from 1
January 2006, and pursuant to the Company's articles of
association and the resolutions of the board of directors
of the Company, the Company decided not to accrue for
Statutory Public Benefit Fund from the year of 2006.

2. According to the regulations of the Enterprise
Income Tax Law of the People's Republic of China,
Implementation Regulations on Enterprise Income Tax
Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Notice
of Withholding and Payment of Enterprise Income Tax
Regarding China Resident Enterprise Paying Dividend to
Non-Resident Enterprise Holders of Overseas H Shares
issued by China’s State Administration of Taxation(Guo
Shui Han [2008]N0.897 on 6 November 2008), any China
resident enterprise which pays dividend to nonresident
enterprise holders of overseas H shares for the year
of 2008 and subsequent years shall withhold and pay
enterprise income tax at a unified tax rate of 10%.

As stated above, in respect of any non-resident
enterprise holders of H Shares (including HKSCC
Nominees Limited, other custodians, corporate
nominees and trustees such as securities companies
and banks, and other entities or organizations)
whose names appear on the Company’s register of
shareholders on the Record Date of Dividend, the
Company will pay the 2018 final dividend payable to
such shareholders after deducting enterprise income
tax payable from the 2018 final dividend.

In respect of any individual holders of H shares
whose names appear on the Company's register
of shareholders on the record date of dividend, the
Company will not deduct the enterprise income tax
from the 2018 final dividend which such shareholders
have right to receive.

Qingling Motors Co. Ltd
27 March 2019
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Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public Accountants LLP

Chongging Branch
43/F World Financial Center

188 Minzu Road, Yuzhong District

Chongging 400010
the People's Republic of China

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
35/F, One Pacific Place
88 Queensway, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS

as to Hong Kong laws:

Tung & Co.

Office 1601, 16/F

LHT Tower

31 Queen’s Road Central
Central, Hong Kong

Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo
26/F, Jardine House

1 Connaught Place
Central, Hong Kong

as to PRC laws:

Haiwen & Partners

20/F, Fortune Financial Center
5 Dong San Huan Central Road
Chao Yang District

Beijing 100020

the People’'s Republic of China
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